
Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 
 

Lleoliad: 
Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - Y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Iau, 21 Tachwedd 2013  

 

Amser: 
09:25 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Llinos Madeley 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8403 
PwyllgorIGC@cymru.gov.uk  
 

 

Agenda 
 

(Rhag-gyfarfod 09.25 - 09.30) 

1 Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon (09:30)  

2 Sesiwn graffu gyffredinol gyda’r Prif Swyddog Deintyddol (09:30 - 
11:00) (Tudalennau 1 - 24)  

Tystion: 

David Thomas - Prif Swyddog Deintyddol 

Lisa Howells - Uwch Swyddog Deintyddol  

3 Papurau i’w nodi (11:00) (Tudalennau 25 - 42) 

 
Gwybodaeth ychwanegol a gyflwynwyd i’r ymchwiliad dilynol i leihau’r risg o 
strôc yn dilyn y sesiwn ar 23 Hydref  (Tudalennau 43 - 80) 
 

Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol - darparwr 
brechiad sengl ar gyfer y frech goch  (Tudalen 81) 
 

Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol - cynlluniau 
gofal heb ei drefnu a chynlluniau gaeaf ffurfiol  (Tudalennau 82 - 83)  
 

4 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd ar gyfer gweddill y cyfarfod hwn (11:05)  

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



EGWYL (11.05-11.15) 

5 Sesiwn graffu gyffredinol gyda’r Prif Swyddog Deintyddol - 
trafodaeth breifat i ystyried y dystiolaeth (11:15 - 11:30)  

6 Trafod y materion allweddol sy’n codi o’r ymchwiliad dilynol i 
leihau’r risg o strôc (11:30 - 11:45) (Tudalennau 84 - 93) 

7 Trafod y materion allweddol sy’n codi yn sgîl sesiwn graffu’r 
Pwyllgor ar ofal heb ei drefnu - bod yn barod ar gyfer gaeaf 
2013/14 (11:45 - 12:00) (Tudalennau 94 - 108) 

8 Cylch Gorchwyl (12:00 - 12:15) (Tudalennau 109 - 118) 



Eitem 2

Tudalen 1

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



 

 
 
Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 
 
Dyddiad: Dydd Iau 21 Tachwedd 2013 
 
Lleoliad: Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru 
 
Teitl: Mynediad at Ddeintyddion y GIG 
 
Pwrpas  
 
1. Mae’r Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol wedi bod yn trafod ei flaengynllun 
gwaith ar gyfer tymor y gwanwyn ac wedi enwi mynediad at ddeintyddion y GIG fel 
maes posib ar gyfer cynnal ymchwiliad iddo yn y dyfodol.  
 
2. Mae’r Pwyllgor wedi gofyn am bapur tystiolaeth ar y materion ar gyfer ei sesiwn 
craffu cyffredinol ar 21 Tachwedd, i’w fynychu gan y Prif Swyddog Deintyddol David 
Thomas.  
 
Cefndir 
 
3. Wrth edrych ar yr heriau cysylltiedig â mynediad a’r newidiadau sydd wedi’u 
gwneud i’r system ddeintyddol, mae’n bwysig cofio am lefel y newid sydd wedi bod 
mewn anghenion deintyddol a’r galw am ddeintyddion ers sefydlu gwasanaeth 
deintyddol y GIG yn 1948. Yn ystod y blynyddoedd yn syth ar ôl y rhyfel, roedd 
deintyddion y GIG yn gwasanaethu cenedl gyda iechyd y geg cyffredinol wael a 
llawer iawn o bydredd heb ei drin mewn dannedd, ac felly roedd y gofynion am 
driniaeth yn helaeth.  Roedd cyfran fawr o oedolion heb ddannedd. Hyd yn oed mor 
ddiweddar â 1973, roedd 40% o’r boblogaeth heb ddannedd naturiol.  
 

4. Adlewyrchai system ddeintyddol y GIG a sefydlwyd yn 1948 fyd ble’r oedd y bobl 
oedd â dannedd, fel rheol, angen triniaeth gymhleth am bydredd helaeth, a’r bobl 
heb ddannedd angen dannedd gosod llawn. O ddechrau’r 1970au ymlaen, mae 
datblygiadau mewn gofal deintyddol ac, yn benodol, defnydd ehangach o bâst 
dannedd fflworid, wedi golygu bod cyfran gynyddol o oedolion yn cadw eu dannedd 
ar ôl mynd i oed. Canfu’r Arolwg diweddaraf ar Iechyd Deintyddol Oedolion, a 
gyhoeddwyd yn 2011, mai dim ond 10% o oedolion Cymru oedd heb ddannedd. 
Roedd mwyafrif y rhain yn 75 oed a hŷn. Roedd cyfraddau’r pydredd wedi gostwng 
yn y grwpiau i gyd (ond mae bwlch nodedig o hyd rhwng grwpiau economaidd-
gymdeithasol – Atodiad 1 Tabl A). 
 

5. Yn ystod y ddau ddegawd diwethaf yn fras, mae ffocws cleifion wedi symud oddi 
wrth fod ar sicrhau bod eu dannedd yn iach a di-boen yn unig at ddyhead cynyddol 
am ddannedd sy’n edrych yn ddel yn gosmetig. Dyma gyflwyno heriau newydd o 
ran ble mae pennu’r ffiniau rhwng triniaeth y mae ei hangen yn glinigol – ar gael ar 
gyfer pawb sydd ei heisiau gan y GIG – a thriniaeth gosmetig yn unig, y byddai’r 
rhan fwyaf yn cytuno na ddylai gael ei chyflwyno o angenrheidrwydd gan y GIG. 
 

Tudalen 17



 

6. Roedd y system a sefydlwyd yn 1948 yn seiliedig ar ddarparwyr a thriniaethau. 
Roedd y deintyddion yn penderfynu ar lefel a lleoliad y gwasanaethau ac, ar sail 
taliad yr eitem am wasanaeth, po fwyaf o driniaeth yr oedd y deintydd yn ei rhoi, a 
pho fwyaf cymhleth oedd y driniaeth honno, y mwyaf yr oedd enillion y deintydd. 
Cyflwynwyd ffioedd deintyddol y GIG yn 1951 ar gyfer oedolion a oedd yn talu 
ffioedd (mae unigolion o dan 18 oed, merched beichiog neu unigolion sy’n derbyn 
budd-daliadau penodol wedi’u heithrio o dalu’r ffioedd i gyd). Seiliwyd y ffioedd ar 
eitemau gwasanaeth unigol.            
 
7. O ddechrau’r 1990au ymlaen, daeth y risgiau cynhenid a oedd yn gysylltiedig â 
system a weithredwyd gan y darparwyr, a oedd yn gadael i ddeintyddion 
benderfynu ar ble a pha lefel o wasanaeth ddylai fod ar gael, yn amlwg. Wrth i 
ddeintyddion symud oddi wrth y GIG, nid oedd gan gomisiynwyr y gwasanaeth 
unrhyw bwerau i geisio darparwyr yn eu lle. Rydym yn gyfarwydd iawn â’r 
anawsterau mynediad a ddaeth i’r amlwg wedyn, ac yn dal i ddelio â’u heffeithiau 
heddiw. Roedd y cymhelliant i gyflwyno triniaeth adfer gymhleth yn briodol iawn i 
genedl gydag iechyd y geg wael, ond yn gynyddol amhriodol wrth i gyfraddau 
pydredd ddirywio. Cwynai deintyddion am fod ar felin gerdded nad oedd yn caniatáu 
unrhyw amser ar gyfer triniaeth ataliol neu adfer.                            
 
8. Fis Hydref 2004, cyflwynodd y Sefydliad Cenedlaethol ar gyfer Rhagoriaeth 
mewn Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol (NICE) ganllawiau ar gyfer yr amser galw’n ôl 
rhwng archwiliadau deintyddol rheolaidd. Gan fod iechyd y geg y genedl wedi 
gwella’n ddramatig yn ystod y degawdau diwethaf, nid yw ymweliadau rheolaidd â’r 
deintydd bob chwe mis yn angenrheidiol i bawb erbyn hyn. Mae’n rhaid i bawb 
ymweld â’i ddeintydd yn rheolaidd, ond gall yr amser rhwng yr ymweliadau amrywio, 
gan ddibynnu ar anghenion clinigol y claf (hyd at flwyddyn rhwng ymweliadau ar 
gyfer plant a hyd at ddwy flynedd ar gyfer oedolion).  
 
9. Creodd diwygiadau deintyddol mis Ebrill 2006 lawer mwy o sefydlogrwydd ar 
gyfer cyllid a mynediad, gyda’r GIG yn lleol, am y tro cyntaf erioed, yn cael 
rheolaeth leol ar adnoddau deintyddol. Mae Byrddau Iechyd Lleol yn defnyddio’r 
cyllid hwn i gytuno ar gontractau lleol gyda deintyddion ac, os bydd deintydd yn 
gadael y GIG, gall ddefnyddio’r cyllid a ryddhawyd i gynnig gwasanaethau newydd.  
 
10. Gwelwyd y prif fanteision ar lefel leol. Mae rhai ardaloedd a wynebai 
anawsterau difrifol wedi gweld gwelliannau sylweddol o ran mynediad i bobl leol. 
Mae ardaloedd Byrddau Iechyd Lleol Hywel Dda, Betsi Cadwaladr a Phowys wedi 
profi llwyddiannau penodol wrth roi sylw i broblemau mynediad sy’n bodoli ers cryn 
amser.  
 
Prif ddata gweithgarwch ac angen 
 
11. Ym mis Mawrth 2006, cyn sefydlu’r contract newydd, roedd 50.7% o’r 
boblogaeth wedi cofrestru gyda deintydd. Ers 2006, mae mynediad at wasanaethau 
deintyddol ‘stryd fawr’ y GIG wedi parhau’n gymharol sefydlog, gyda rhyw 54-55% 
o’r boblogaeth yn cael gofal deintyddol rheolaidd gan y GIG. Fodd bynnag, mae 
nifer y cleifion unigol wedi cynyddu o fwy na 30,000, gan adlewyrchu’r cynnydd yn y 
boblogaeth. Ceir amrywiaethau o hyd rhwng ardaloedd y Byrddau Iechyd Lleol 

Tudalen 18



 

(Atodiad 1 – Tabl B) ond maent wedi gostwng yn sylweddol o gymharu â’r sefyllfa 
yn y 1990au.  
 

• Cofnodwyd bod 1.68 miliwn o gleifion yn cael triniaeth ddeintyddol y GIG yn 
ystod y 24 mis hyd at 31 Mawrth 2013. Dyma 54.8 y cant o’r boblogaeth - 64.7 y 
cant o blant (o dan 18 oed) a 52.2 y cant o oedolion. Dyma gynnydd o ryw 8,500 
o gymharu â’r un cyfnod yn ystod y flwyddyn flaenorol.  

• Hefyd, daeth y Gwasanaeth Deintyddol Cymunedol, sy’n gweithio gyda chleifion 
ifanc ac agored i niwed yn bennaf, i gysylltiad â 71,400 o gleifion unigol ledled 
Cymru yn ystod 2011/12 (nid yw’r ffigur hwn wedi’i gynnwys yn y cyfansymiau 
uchod ar gyfer y rhai sy’n gwneud defnydd o wasanaethau deintyddol eraill y 
GIG).  

• Dangosodd y data gweithlu diweddaraf ar gyfer y flwyddyn a ddaeth i ben ar 31 
Mawrth 2013 bod 1,392 o ddeintyddion wedi cofnodi gweithgarwch y GIG, sy’n 
cyfateb i 4.5 o ddeintyddion am bob 10,000 o boblogaeth. Mae hyn yn cymharu 
â 1,360 ar 31 Mawrth 2012 a 1,087 ar 31 Mawrth 2006. 

• Dywedodd 89.9% o gleifion eu bod yn fodlon gyda’r gwasanaeth deintyddol 
roeddent yn ei dderbyn. Roedd 84.2% o gleifion yn fodlon gyda’r amser yr oedd 
rhaid iddynt ei aros am apwyntiad.  

• Roedd cyfanswm y gwariant deintyddol (net) yn £140.2m yn 2012/13. 
 
12. Canfu’r Arolwg ar Iechyd Deintyddol Oedolion bod 69% o’r oedolion sydd â 
dannedd yng Nghymru wedi dweud eu bod yn mynd at ddeintydd am archwiliadau 
rheolaidd; dywedodd 7% eu bod yn mynd yn achlysurol; dywedodd 23% mai dim 
ond pan oeddent yn cael trafferth gyda’u dannedd yr oeddent yn mynd i weld 
deintydd; a dywedodd 1% nad oeddent byth yn mynd i weld deintydd. Yn 
gyffredinol, dywedodd 79% o’r oedolion sydd â dannedd yng Nghymru eu bod yn 
mynd i weld eu deintydd bob 2 flynedd o leiaf.             
 
13. Canfu’r arolwg ar iechyd y geg a gynhaliwyd ar blant 12 oed yn 2008/09 bod 
canran y plant 12 oed a effeithir gan bydredd dannedd (h.y. y rhai gydag o leiaf un 
dant wedi pydru, wedi dod allan oherwydd pydredd neu wedi’i lenwi) wedi gostwng 
o 51% yn 2001 i 42.5% yn yr arolwg diweddaraf hwn.  
 
14. O gymharu â 2007/08, mae arolwg epidemiolegol deintyddol 2011/12 ar blant 5 
oed yn dangos gostyngiad o 6% yng nghyfran y plant sydd â phrofiad o bydredd 
dannedd yng Nghymru (47.6% yn gostwng i 41.4%). Adlewyrchir hyn gan 
ostyngiadau sylweddol yn ystadegol yn y profiad o bydredd ar gyfartaledd ledled 
Cymru a’r lefelau pydredd gweithredol. Mae lefelau’r afiechydon deintyddol mewn 
plant yn gwella yng Nghymru yn yr holl grwpiau cymdeithasol. Ni cheir unrhyw 
dystiolaeth o anghydraddoldeb cynyddol. Mae hyn yn groes i’r arolygon blaenorol, 
ble’r oedd lefelau pydredd gwell yn gysylltiedig fel rheol ag anghydraddoldeb 
cynyddol. 
 
15. Gofynnodd Arolwg Dinasyddion Cymru ar Wasanaethau Deintyddol yn 2009/10 
pam nad oedd pobl wedi cysylltu â meddygfa ddeintyddol yng Nghymru yn ystod y 2 
flynedd ddiwethaf. Dyma’r rhesymau a roddwyd:  
 
 

Tudalen 19



 

Dim angen  63% 

Cael gwasanaethau yn Lloegr  9% 

Anodd cael deintydd y GIG  8% 

Ofn/ddim yn hoffi deintyddion 7% 

Methu cael gwybodaeth i gysylltu â’r feddygfa                                            4% 

Rhy ddrud     3% 

 
16. Yn gyffredinol, roedd 70% o’r oedolion gyda dannedd naill ai’n cael gofal 
deintyddol yr oeddent yn talu amdano neu ofal deintyddol am ddim gan y GIG (37% 
yn talu; 33% am ddim), ac roedd 29% yn cael gofal deintyddol preifat. Roedd 
cyfanswm yr incwm gan gleifion y GIG yn 2012-13 yn £28.5m.  
 
Ymrwymiad y Llywodraeth i wasanaethau deintyddol y GIG 
 
17. Ceir ymrwymiad yn y Rhaglen Lywodraethu i barhau i gynyddu’r mynediad i 
wasanaethau deintyddol y GIG ble ceir problemau lleol. Er mwyn darparu incwm 
ychwanegol i Fyrddau Iechyd Lleol, gwelwyd cynnydd yn ffioedd cleifion deintyddol 
y GIG rhwng 1 Medi 2012 ac 1 Ebrill 2013 – y cynnydd cyntaf ers chwe blynedd. 
Bydd hyn yn cynhyrchu refeniw o ryw £0.8m y flwyddyn, yn benodol fel bod 
Byrddau Iechyd Lleol yn gallu cyllido gwasanaethau deintyddol gwell ac 
ychwanegol.       
 
18. Ceir tystiolaeth bod rhai cleifion yn dal i gael eu galw’n ôl yn amlach na sydd 
angen ac mae’r swyddogion yn gweithio gyda Byrddau Iechyd Lleol a chontractwyr 
deintyddol er mwyn hybu’r defnydd o gyfarwyddyd cyfredol NICE ar yr amser 
priodol rhwng galw pobl yn ôl ar gyfer apwyntiadau. Bydd hyn yn helpu i wella gallu 
ac mae’r Byrddau Iechyd Lleol wedi derbyn cyfarwyddyd er mwyn anelu at sicrhau 
bod gwasanaethau deintyddol y GIG yn cael eu cyflwyno’n effeithiol a bod rheolaeth 
effeithiol ar gontractau.  
 
Cyflwyno Gwasanaethau Orthodontig y GIG 
 
19. Mae’r galw am driniaeth orthodontig wedi cynyddu ledled y DU a does dim 
amheuaeth bod rhai ffactorau cymdeithasol a diwylliannol yn gysylltiedig. Gall 
ceisiadau ‘cosmetig’ gynyddu’r galw a hefyd presenoldeb y darparwyr Arbenigol 
(Stryd Fawr) eu hunain.                               
 
20. Gyda’r pwysau ar wariant sy’n wynebu’r GIG, mae’n rhaid gosod y ddarpariaeth 
orthodontig yng nghyd-destun y blaenoriaethau iechyd deintyddol eraill. Mae 
cyfanswm y gwariant ar orthodonteg fel rhan o ddeintyddiaeth gofal sylfaenol eisoes 
yn ganran arwyddocaol o gyfanswm y cyllid i wasanaethau deintyddol. Felly, mae’n 
hanfodol bod y cyllid parhaus yn seiliedig ar asesiad cadarn o anghenion, 
blaenoriaethu a dull integredig o weithio rhwng darparwyr gwasanaethau deintyddol 
orthodontig.  
 
21. Ceir anawsterau o hyd i gleifion sy’n ceisio triniaeth orthodontig mewn rhai 
rhannau o Gymru ac rydym wedi clywed am amseroedd aros hir iawn am driniaeth. 
Ceir sawl rheswm dros hyn ac mae’r Byrddau Iechyd Lleol wedi bod yn gweithio i roi 
sylw i faterion gallu parhaus mewn gwasanaethau orthodontig gofal sylfaenol ac 

Tudalen 20



 

eilaidd. Mewn rhai achosion, mae meintiau’r rhestri’n chwyddo oherwydd cyfeirio 
cynnar neu amhriodol, neu ddyblygu cyfeirio, ac oherwydd ffactorau eraill. Hefyd, 
mae recriwtio a chadw wedi bod yn broblem ar gyfer gwasanaethau gofal eilaidd ac 
arbenigol mewn rhai ardaloedd gwledig.                  
 

22. Ym mis Medi 2009, archwiliodd grŵp annibynnol o arbenigwyr, a gadeiriwyd gan 

Yr Athro Stephen Richmond, Athro Orthodonteg yn Ysgol Ddeintyddiaeth Prifysgol 
Caerdydd, y ddarpariaeth orthodonteg yng Nghymru. Cyflwynodd adroddiad yr 
adolygiad rai casgliadau diddorol a heriol.          
 
23. Mewn cyfnod economaidd mor anodd, roedd yn galonogol bod yr adroddiad 
wedi canfod bod y gwariant presennol ar orthodonteg yng Nghymru – mwy na £13 
miliwn y flwyddyn – yn gallu diwallu anghenion orthodontig cleifion Cymru i raddau 
helaeth. Nododd yr adolygiad bod nifer y triniaethau orthodontig a gwblhawyd gan y 
GIG ar gyfer plant yn cynnwys y canlynol: 8,991 wedi’u cynnal fel rhan o wasanaeth 
deintyddol cyffredinol; 1,620 gan Wasanaeth Deintyddol mewn Ysbyty; a 420 gan y 
Gwasanaeth Deintyddol Cymunedol yn ystod y flwyddyn galendr.  
 
24. Hefyd, roedd yr adroddiad yn datgan yn glir nad oedd llawer o driniaethau 
diangen yn cael eu cynnal, er bod angen dilysu gwell a chadarnhad pellach o ran 
ansawdd y gwasanaethau a ddarperir. Cyflwynodd y Pwyllgor Iechyd, Lles a 
Llywodraeth Leol adroddiad ym mis Rhagfyr 2010 ar ei ymchwiliad ei hun i 
wasanaethau orthodontig yng Nghymru. Roedd argymhellion y Pwyllgor yn cefnogi 
ein cyfeiriad polisi presennol a hefyd yn adlewyrchu darganfyddiadau ac 

argymhellion y grŵp o arbenigwyr.  

 

25. Rydym wedi sefydlu Grŵp Cynghori Strategol i lunio adroddiad blynyddol ar y 

ddarpariaeth o wasanaethau orthodontig yng Nghymru ac i ystyried argymhellion y 

grŵp o arbenigwyr a’r Pwyllgor. Rydym wedi cyhoeddi cyfarwyddyd i helpu i gefnogi 

Byrddau Iechyd Lleol a darparwyr orthodontig i gyflwyno gwasanaethau orthodontig 
mwy effeithiol, gyda Rhwydweithiau Clinigol a Reolir yn cael eu sefydlu yn y De 
Orllewin, y De Ddwyrain a Gogledd Cymru.                  
 
26. Mae datblygu’r Rhwydweithiau hyn yn helpu i greu proses fwy effeithlon ar gyfer 
rheoli’r cyfeirio, i leihau cyfeirio cynnar, niferus ac amhriodol. Bellach, mae’r 
Byrddau Iechyd Lleol yn defnyddio’r Rhwydweithiau hyn i ganfod cleifion sydd wedi 
cael eu cyfeirio at fwy nag un orthodontydd neu wedi cael eu cyfeirio cyn bod 
angen, er mwyn rhyddhau lle; mae’r ddwy broblem wedi cyfrannu at hyd y rhestri 
aros yn y gorffennol.                             
 
Rhaglen Beilot Ddeintyddol Cymru    
 
27. Sefydlodd Gweinidog blaenorol ar gyfer Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 

Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen er mwyn adolygu’r contract deintyddol a gyflwynwyd yn 

2006 ac i edrych ar ystod o faterion er mwyn gwella’r ffordd y mae’r contract yn 

gweithio. Roedd sawl mater yn achos pryder i’r Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen, gan 

gynnwys yr angen am adolygu a dadansoddi cyfrededd y contract. Daethpwyd i’r 
casgliad bod angen treialu nifer o fodelau newydd a fyddai’n edrych ar ffyrdd eraill o 

Tudalen 21



 

weithio, gwella ansawdd, a newidiadau i daliadau mewn perthynas â’r contract 
deintyddol.           
 
28. Mae Rhaglen Beilot Cymru wedi cael ei sefydlu er mwyn profi systemau talu a 
chyflawni newydd ac i ddod o hyd i strwythur a fydd yn gweithio ar gyfer darparwyr, 
Byrddau Iechyd Lleol a chleifion fel ei gilydd. Rydym yn treialu systemau sy’n 
symud oddi wrth Unedau o Weithgarwch Deintyddol fel cyfrwng i fanylu ar 
gategorïau triniaeth a thalu i ddeintyddion, tuag at un sy’n canolbwyntio ar ofal 
teilwredig o gleifion yn seiliedig ar asesiad risg ac ansawdd. Telir i’r darparwyr peilot 
fesul claf ar sail y pen wedi’i phwysoli, a chaiff perfformiad y meddygfeydd ei fesur 
gan ddefnyddio nifer o ddangosyddion perfformiad allweddol ar gyfer mynediad ac 
ansawdd y driniaeth. Mae’r broses wedi cael ei hymestyn yn awr i barhau tan fis 
Mawrth 2015.  
 
29. Mae’r darganfyddiadau ansoddol yn dangos bod staff meddygfeydd a chleifion 
yn gweld gwerth yn y newidiadau. O ran gwerthuso, mae hon wedi bod yn broses 
barhaus. Mae Miller Research Ltd yn darparu monitro a gwerthuso ansoddol. Mae’r 
monitro a’r gwerthuso ansoddol yn cael ei wneud gan Iechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru. 
Cyhoeddir adroddiad gwerthuso terfynol ar y Rhaglenni Peilot yn 2015. 
 
Defnydd o Fynediad Uniongyrchol at Weithwyr Gofal Deintyddol Proffesiynol 
 
30. Mae Gweithwyr Gofal Deintyddol Proffesiynol (GGDP) yn cynnwys 
therapyddion, hylenyddion a nyrsys deintyddol. Tan fis Ebrill 2013, dim ond gyda 
chyfarwyddyd gan ddeintydd yr oedd GGDP yn gallu rhoi triniaeth. Fis Mai 2013, 
cymeradwyodd y Cyngor Deintyddol Cyffredinol gyfarwyddyd a oedd yn dileu’r 
angen am i gleifion weld deintydd cyn cael rhai triniaethau gan GGDP. Adolygwyd a 
chymeradwywyd cyfarwyddyd ‘Scope of Practice’ y Cyngor Deintyddol Cyffredinol 
ym mis Medi 2013. Roedd adolygiad 2013 yn caniatáu rhywfaint o weithgarwch 
ychwanegol gan bob GGDP ac yn egluro’r cyfarwyddyd blaenorol. Seiliodd y 
Cyngor Deintyddol Cyffredinol ei benderfyniad ar adolygiad llenyddiaeth 
cynhwysfawr o fwy na 100 o bapurau ymchwil deintyddol ac iechyd eraill. Tynnodd 
yr adolygiad sylw at y ffaith nad oedd unrhyw dystiolaeth ar gael am broblemau 
sylweddol gyda diogelwch cleifion yn sgil gweithgarwch clinigol y GGDP a bod 
tystiolaeth gref bod mynediad at ofal deintyddol yn gwella o ganlyniad i drefniadau 
mynediad uniongyrchol, a hefyd manteision o ran cost i gleifion a lefelau uchel o 
foddhad ymhlith cleifion.  
 
31. Ceir gwir gyfle yn awr i GGDP gyflawni triniaethau heb gyfarwyddyd deintydd. 
Mae gan lawer o gleifion sy’n cael eu trin gan Wasanaethau Deintyddol Cymunedol 
gyfraddau pydredd uchel. Mae anghenion y cleifion hyn yn mynd â chyfran 
sylweddol o amser clinigol deintyddion. Yn aml iawn, ceir llithro gyda’u galw’n ôl 
oherwydd blaenoriaethau cleifion eraill. Treulir llawer iawn o amser yn monitro 
hylendid y geg, yn rhoi cyfarwyddyd ynghylch glanhau dannedd, ac yn trafod deiet a 
defnyddio fflworid, ac maent i gyd o fewn cwmpas gwaith llawer o GGDP.                                                    
 
32. Fis Hydref 2013, cymeradwyodd y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol astudiaeth beilot a fydd yn profi mynediad uniongyrchol at weithwyr 
gofal deintyddol proffesiynol fel rhan o Wasanaethau Deintyddol Cymunedol yn 
ardaloedd Byrddau Iechyd Lleol Betsi Cadwaldwr a Hywel Dda. 

Tudalen 22



 

 
Blaenoriaethau allweddol ar gyfer cyflwyno gwasanaethau deintyddol yn y dyfodol 

yng Nghymru 

33. Mae gwasanaethau deintyddol yn parhau i fod yn hynod bwysig i gleifion a bydd 
cyhoeddi Delivering Better Oral Health (ein cyfarwyddyd seiliedig ar dystiolaeth a 
ddatblygir ar y cyd â Public Health England) yn fuan yn galluogi i glinigwyr 
fabwysiadu dull mwy ataliol o weithredu wrth fynd i’r afael ag afiechydon deintyddol 
yn eu meddygfeydd. Hefyd, rydym yn gweithio i ddatblygu contract newydd ar gyfer 
gwasanaethau deintyddol gofal sylfaenol y GIG. Mae cyfraniad a brwdfrydedd y 
clinigwyr cysylltiedig â phroses y cynllun peilot wedi bod yn eithriadol galonogol ac 
mae’n rhaid i ni barhau â hyn.                                              
 
34. Rydym yn gweithio gyda chlinigwyr a chomisiynwyr er mwyn datblygu llwybrau 
gofal ar gyfer cleifion sydd angen elfen o ofal uwch. Mae’n rhaid i ni sicrhau ein bod 
yn defnyddio sgiliau’r tîm deintyddol cyfan fel rhan o wasanaeth a arweinir gan yr 
arbenigwyr, ond heb ei gyflawni ganddynt o angenrheidrwydd, gan ddarparu gofal o 
safon uchel ym mhob lleoliad. Mae pawb yn deall bod yr hinsawdd ariannol gyfredol 
yn un anodd iawn ond rydym wedi ymrwymo i ddatblygu system sy’n cyflwyno 
gwasanaethau deintyddol i gleifion yn seiliedig ar wella canlyniadau iechyd, sy’n 
gost-effeithiol ac yn effeithiol yn glinigol ac yn cynnig profiad cadarnhaol o ofal i 
gleifion mewn amgylchedd diogel.                               
 
35. Lansiwyd y Cynllun Cenedlaethol ar gyfer Iechyd y Geg “Law yn Llaw at Iechyd: 
Cynllun Cenedlaethol Cymru ar gyfer Iechyd y Geg” ym mis Mawrth 2013. Mae’r 
Cynllun pum mlynedd yn amlinellu sut bydd blaenoriaethau allweddol ac 
ymrwymiadau’r Rhaglen Lywodraethu mewn perthynas ag iechyd y geg a 
deintyddiaeth yn cael eu bodloni, ac mae’n canolbwyntio ar y canlynol:  
 

• yr anghydraddoldeb mewn afiechydon y geg a phwy yn benodol sy’n wynebu 

risg; 

• sut gallwn wella effeithiolrwydd ac effeithlonrwydd gwasanaethau;  

• sut mae gwella ansawdd gwasanaethau deintyddol er mwyn hybu mynediad;  

• gwella effeithlonrwydd y trefniadau deintyddol contract presennol; a 

chanlyniadau iechyd, yn ychwanegol at ddarparu triniaeth ragorol.  

 
36. Un o ofynion allweddol y Cynllun yw i Fyrddau Iechyd Lleol ddatblygu 
Cynlluniau Iechyd y Geg Lleol i roi sylw i anghenion iechyd y geg eu trigolion, gan 
sicrhau comisiynu a chyflawni effeithiol mewn perthynas â’r holl wasanaethau 
deintyddol. Mae’n rhaid cyflwyno’r Cynlluniau hyn i Lywodraeth Cymru erbyn 31 
Rhagfyr 2013. 
 
 
 
 

  

Tudalen 23



 

Atodiad 1  
 

Tabl A 
Nodweddion oedolion sydd â dannedd yn ôl dosbarthiad economaidd-
gymdeithasol  

 
 Nodweddion oedolion sydd â dannedd  

Dosbarthiad 
economaidd-
gymdeithasol y 
teulu  

Nifer y 
dannedd 
naturiol 

(Cyfartaledd) 

Presenoldeb 
gwaedu  
(Oes %) 

Amledd y 
glanhau  

(>= Dwywaith 
y dydd) 

Statws ysmygu 
(% sy’n 
ysmygu) 

Presenoldeb 
plac 

(Oes %) 

Rheoli neu 
broffesiynol    

25.3 47 79 14 
67 

Galwedigaethau 
canolraddol  

23.5 57 64 27 
77 

Rheolaidd a 
Llaw 

23.7 61 66 32 
85 

Ffynhonnell: Arolwg Iechyd Deintyddol Oedolion 2009 

 

 

Tabl B 
Cleifion y GIG a gafodd eu trin: oedolion a phlant yn ôl Bwrdd 
Iechyd Lleol – 2 flynedd yn dod i ben ar 31.3.13 

   

        Nifer y 
cleifion a 
gafodd eu 

trin  

% y cleifion 
a gafodd eu 

trin 

Nifer yr 
oedolion a 
gafodd eu 

trin 

% yr 
oedolion 
a gafodd 
eu trin 

Nifer y plant 
a gafodd eu 

trin 

% y plant 
a gafodd 
eu trin 

Cymru  1,684,427.00 54.8 1,276,175.00 52.2 408,252.00 64.7 

Bwrdd Iechyd 
Prifysgol Betsi 
Cadwaladr  

350,565.00 50.8 264,237.00 48 86,328.00 61.6 

Bwrdd Iechyd 
Powys  

80,295.00 60.4 64,074.00 59.8 16,221.00 62.9 

Bwrdd Iechyd 
Hywel Dda  

172,765.00 45.1 129,157.00 41.9 43,608.00 58 

Bwrdd Iechyd 
Prifysgol Abertawe 
Bro Morgannwg  

322,343.00 62.1 245,448.00 59 76,895.00 74.1 

Bwrdd Iechyd Cwm 
Taf  

171,228.00 58.1 136,133.00 58.7 35,095.00 56.2 

Bwrdd Iechyd 
Aneurin Bevan  

325,579.00 56.3 244,454.00 53.9 81,125.00 65 

Bwrdd Iechyd 
Prifysgol Caerdydd 
a’r Fro           

261,652.00 55 192,672.00 51.2 68,980.00 69.8 

Ffynhonnell: 
StatsWales 

         
 

Tudalen 24



 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 

 

Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - y Senedd 
 

 

  
Dyddiad:  Dydd Iau, 7 Tachwedd 2013 

 

  
Amser:  09:30 - 14:00 

 

  Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar Senedd TV yn: 

http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=en_400000_07_11_2013&t=0&l=en 

http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=en_400001_07_11_2013&t=0&l=en 

 

 

Cofnodion Cryno: 

 

   
Aelodau’r Cynulliad:  David Rees (Cadeirydd) 

Mohammad Asghar (Oscar) AC 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Elin Jones 

Darren Millar 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn R Price 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

 

  

   
Tystion:  Kate Chamberlain, Arolygiaeth Gofal Iechyd Cymru 

Mandy Collins, Arolygiaeth Gofal Iechyd Cymru 

Alyson Thomas, Arolygiaeth Gofal Iechyd Cymru 

Emma Coles, Llywodraeth Cymru 

David Pritchard, Llywodraeth Cymru 

Mark Drakeford, Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau 

Cymdeithasol. 

Grant Duncan, Llywodraeth Cymru 

Janet Davies, Llywodraeth Cymru 

 

  

   

Eitem 3

Tudalen 25



Staff y Pwyllgor:  Llinos Madeley (Clerc) 

Joanest Jackson (Cynghorydd Cyfreithiol) 

   

 

1 Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon  

1.1 Cafwyd ymddiheuriadau gan Darren Millar AC. Dirprwyodd Mohammad Asghar AC 

ar ei ran.  

 

2 Ymchwiliad i waith Arolygiaeth Gofal Iechyd Cymru:  Tystiolaeth gan 

Arolygiaeth Gofal Iechyd Cymru  

 

2.1 Ymatebodd cynrychiolwyr o Arolygiaeth Gofal Iechyd Cymru i gwestiynau gan 

aelodau’r pwyllgor. 

 

2.2 Nododd y tystion y byddent yn croesawu cyfle i ddychwelyd i siarad â’r Pwyllgor 

pan fo cynllun busnes yr Arolygiaeth ar gyfer y dyfodol ar gael. 

 

3 Papur briffio ffeithiol ar y Papur Gwyn ar Ddyfodol Rheoleiddio ac 

Arolygu Gofal a Chymorth yng Nghymru  

 

3.1 Cafodd yr aelodau bapur briffio ffeithiol ar y Papur Gwyn, Dyfodol Rheoleiddio ac 

Arolygu Gofal a Chymorth yng Nghymru.  

 

4 Ymchwiliad i waith Arolygiaeth Gofal Iechyd Cymru:  Tystiolaeth gan y 

Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol  

 

4.1 Holodd y Pwyllgor y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol ynghylch 

gwaith Arolygiaeth Gofal Iechyd Cymru.  

 

4.2 Cytunodd y Gweinidog i ysgrifennu i’r Pwyllgor er mwyn egluro a yw rhaglen waith 

yr Arolygiaeth yn cael ei chymeradwyo gan un o’i gyd-Weinidogion.   

 

5 Papurau i’w nodi  

 

5.1 Llythyr gan y Dirprwy Weinidog Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol: Memorandwm 

Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol diwygiedig ar y Bil Gofal - trefniadau cyfatebol ar gyfer 

awdurdodau lleol yn yr Alban  

 

5.1 Nododd y Pwyllgor y llythyr. 

Tudalen 26



 

5.2 Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol: gwybodaeth 

ddilynol yn dilyn y cyfarfod ar 9 Hydref ynghylch gofal heb ei drefnu - bod yn barod ar 

gyfer gaeaf 2013/14  

 

5.2 Nododd y Pwyllgor y llythyr. 

 

5.3 Llythyr gan Fwrdd Rhaglen Cynllun De Cymru: rhagor o wybodaeth ddilynol yn dilyn 

y cyfarfod ar 3 Hydref ynghylch ad-drefnu gwasanaethau byrddau iechyd lleol  

 

5.3 Nododd y Pwyllgor y llythyr. 

 

6 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd o 

weddill y cyfarfod ar gyfer eitemau 1 a 2 ar agenda’r cyfarfod ar 13 

Tachwedd  

 

6.1 Derbyniwyd y cynnig. 

 

 

7 Trafod ymchwiliad arfaethedig y Pwyllgor i gaethiwed i feddyginiaethau 

a geir ar bresgripsiwn a dros y cownter  

 

7.1 Trafododd y Pwyllgor yr ymchwiliad arfaethedig i gaethiwed i feddyginiaethau a 

geir ar bresgripsiwn a dros y cownter. Cytunodd yr aelodau i ohirio dechrau’r 

ymchwiliad tan fod y gwaith a amlinellir yn Gweithio Gyda’n gilydd i Leihau Niwed - 

Cynllun Cyflawni Camddefnyddio Sylweddau 2013-15 - y bwriedir iddo gael ei gyflawni 

erbyn mis Mawrth 2014 - wedi’i gwblhau. 

 

 

8 Trafod Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol atodol:  y Bil Gofal  

 

8.1 Trafododd y Pwyllgor y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol atodol ar y Bil 

Gofal a chytunodd i ystyried adroddiad drafft yn y cyfarfod nesaf ar 13 Tachwedd 

2013. 

 

 

Tudalen 27



 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 

 

Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - y Senedd 
 

 

  
Dyddiad:  Dydd Mercher, 13 Tachwedd 2013 

 

  
Amser:  09:02 - 12:14 

 

  
Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar Senedd TV yn: 

http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=cy_400000_13_11_2013&t=0&l=cy 

 

 

Cofnodion Cryno: 

 

   
Aelodau’r Cynulliad:  David Rees (Cadeirydd) 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

William Graham 

Elin Jones 

Darren Millar 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn R Price 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

 

  

   
Tystion:  Gwenda Thomas, Dirprwy Weinidog Gwasanaethau 

Cymdeithasol 

Julie Rogers, Llywodraeth Cymru 

Mike Lubienski, Llywodraeth Cymru 

 

  

   
Staff y Pwyllgor:  Llinos Madeley (Clerc) 

Helen Finlayson (Ail Clerc) 

Sarah Sargent (Dirprwy Glerc) 

Victoria Paris (Ymchwilydd) 

Joanest Jackson (Cynghorydd Cyfreithiol) 

Lisa Salkeld (Cynghorydd Cyfreithiol) 

  

Tudalen 28



 

 

 

1 Trafod Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol: y Bil Gofal  

 

1.1 Trafododd y Pwyllgor ei adroddiad drafft ar y Memorandwm Cydsyniad 

Deddfwriaethol ar y Bil Gofal a chytunodd arno.  

1.2 Cytunodd y Pwyllgor i osod yr Adroddiad cyn y terfyn amser a bennwyd gan y 

Pwyllgor Busnes. 

 

2 Trafod y flaenraglen waith  

 

2.1 Cytunodd y Pwyllgor i gynnal ymchwiliad i argaeledd llawdriniaeth bariatrig yng 

Nghymru a chytunodd ar y cylch gorchwyl. 

2.2 Cytunodd y Pwyllgor i gynnal ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus; bydd manylion ar gael yn 

fuan. 

 

3 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon  

 

3.1 Ni chafwyd unrhyw ymddiheuriadau. 

3.2 Croesawodd y Cadeirydd y Dirprwy Weinidog Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a'i 

swyddogion i'r cyfarfod. 

 

4 Y Bil Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant (Cymru):  Cyfnod 2 - Trafod 

y gwelliannau  

 

4.1 Yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 26.21, gwaredodd y Pwyllgor y gwelliannau i'r Bil yn y 

drefn a ganlyn:  

 

Adran newydd: 

 

Gwelliant 56A (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Tudalen 29



Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 56A. 

 

Gwelliant 56 (Kirsty Williams) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 56. 

 

Adran 2: 

 

Gwelliant 111 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees  

Kirsty Williams 

0 

4 6 0 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 71 (William Graham) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Gwelliant 72 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

Tudalen 30



gwrthodwyd gwelliant 71. 

 

Adran 3:  

Ni chafodd gwelliannau eu cyflwyno i’r adran hon, felly bernir bod Adran 3 wedi’i 

derbyn. 

 

Adran 4: 

 

Gwelliant 64 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 64. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 417 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 418 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Gwelliant 65 (William Graham)  

Gan y derbyniwyd gwelliant 418, methodd gwelliant 65. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 419 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 66 (William Graham) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 420 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 421 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 57 (Kirsty Williams) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34 (i). 

 

Gwelliant 180 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Tudalen 31



Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 180. 

 

Adran 5: 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 422 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Gwelliant 67 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 67. 

 

Gwelliant 100 (Kirsty Williams) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

3 7 0 

Gwrthodwyd gwelliant 100. 

 

Adran 6: 

 

Tudalen 32



Gwelliant 472 (Elin Jones)  

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 472. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 84A (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 84 fel y'i diwygiwyd (William Graham) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 

17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 423 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Gwelliant 473 (Elin Jones)   

Gan y gwrthodwyd gwelliant 472, methodd gwelliant 473. 

 

Gwelliant 68 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 68. 

 

Gwelliant 85 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

0 

Tudalen 33



Kirsty Williams David Rees 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 85. 

 

Gwelliant 86 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 86. 

 

Adran 7: 

 

Gwelliant 252 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Elin Jones 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees  

Lindsay Whittle 

 

0 

3 7 0 

Gwrthodwyd gwelliant 252. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 289 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Gwelliant 88 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Tudalen 34



Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees  

 

0 

4 5 0 

Gwrthodwyd gwelliant 88. 

 

Adran 8: 

 

Gwelliant 73 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 73. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 424 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Gwelliant 74 (William Graham)  

Gan y gwrthodwyd gwelliant 73, methodd gwelliant 74. 

 

Adran 9: 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 4 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 5 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 6 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Ni chafodd gwelliant 474 (Elin Jones) ei gynnig. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 7 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Tudalen 35



Adran newydd: 

 

Gwelliant 475 (Elin Jones)  

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 475. 

 

Gwelliant 476 (Elin Jones)   

Gan y gwrthodwyd gwelliant 475, methodd gwelliant 476. 

 

Adran 10: 

 

Gwelliant 234 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 234. 

 

Gwelliant 235 (William Graham)  

Gan y gwrthodwyd gwelliant 234, methodd gwelliant 235. 

 

Gwelliant 89 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

0 

Tudalen 36



 David Rees  

Kirsty Williams 

4 6 0 

Gwrthodwyd gwelliant 89. 

 

Gwelliant 236 (William Graham)  

Gan y gwrthodwyd gwelliant 234, methodd gwelliant 236. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 8 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 9 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Gwelliant 237 (William Graham)  

Gan y gwrthodwyd gwelliant 234, methodd gwelliant 237. 

 

Gwelliant 90 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees  

Kirsty Williams 

0 

4 6 0 

Gwrthodwyd gwelliant 90. 

 

Gwelliant 87 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 87. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 10 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

Tudalen 37



 

Gwelliant 11A (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 11A. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 11 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Gwelliant 115 (Kirsty Williams) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 115. 

 

Adran 11:  

Ni chafodd gwelliannau eu cyflwyno i’r adran hon, felly bernir bod Adran 11 wedi’i 

derbyn. 

 

Adran 12: 

 

Ni chafodd gwelliant 116 (Kirsty Williams) ei gynnig. 

 

Gwelliant 91 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

0 

Tudalen 38



Lindsay Whittle 

 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees  

Kirsty Williams 

4 6 0 

Gwrthodwyd gwelliant 91. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 12 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 13 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 14 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 15 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Gwelliant 117 (Kirsty Williams) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 117. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 290 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Adran 13:  

Ni chafodd gwelliannau eu cyflwyno i’r adran hon, felly bernir bod Adran 13 wedi’i 

derbyn. 

 

Adran 14: 

 

Gwelliant 112 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

0 

Tudalen 39



Kirsty Williams David Rees 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 112. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 16 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Adran 15: 

 

Gwelliant 238 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 238. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 17 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Gwelliant 239 (William Graham)  

Gan y gwrthodwyd gwelliant 238, methodd gwelliant 239. 

 

Gwelliant 240 (William Graham)  

Gan y gwrthodwyd gwelliant 238, methodd gwelliant 240. 

 

Gwelliant 241 (William Graham)  

Gan y gwrthodwyd gwelliant 238, methodd gwelliant 241. 

 

Gwelliant 92 (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

0 

Tudalen 40



Lindsay Whittle 

 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees  

Kirsty Williams 

4 6 0 

Gwrthodwyd gwelliant 91. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 18 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 19 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 20 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Gwelliant 21A (William Graham) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 21A. 

 

Derbyniwyd gwelliant 21 (Gwenda Thomas) yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 17.34(i). 

 

Gwelliant 118 (Kirsty Williams) 

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees 

0 

5 5 0 

Gan fod y bleidlais yn gyfartal, defnyddiodd y Cadeirydd ei bleidlais 

fwrw yn negyddol, yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 6.20(ii). Gan hynny, 

gwrthodwyd gwelliant 118. 

 

Adran 16:  

Tudalen 41



Ni chafodd gwelliannau eu cyflwyno i’r adran hon, felly bernir bod Adran 16 wedi’i 

derbyn. 

 

Adran 17: 

 

Ni chafodd gwelliant 248 (William Graham) ei gynnig. 

 

Gwelliant 249 (William Graham)  

Gan na chafodd gwelliant 248 ei gynnig, methodd gwelliant 249. 

 

Adran newydd: 

 

Gwelliant 477 (Elin Jones)  

O blaid Yn erbyn Ymatal 

Elin Jones 

Lindsay Whittle 

Kirsty Williams 

Leighton Andrews 

Rebecca Evans 

William Graham 

Darren Millar 

Lynne Neagle 

Gwyn Price 

David Rees  

 

0 

3 7 0 

Gwrthodwyd gwelliant 477. 

 

4.2 Bernir bod adrannau 2 i 17 wedi'u derbyn.  

 

5 Papurau i’w nodi  

 

5.1 Nododd y Pwyllgor lythyron gan y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 

a'r Dirprwy Weinidog Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol. 

 

 

Tudalen 42



Additional evidence to the NAfW follow up inquiry into stroke risk reduction. 2013. 

Committee Clerk 

Health and Social Care committee 

National Assembly for Wales 

Cardiff Bay 

CF99 1NA 

Welsh Stroke Alliance 

c/o Dr Anne Freeman 

Unit 16, Bocam Park 

Pencoed 

CF35 5LJ 

 

HSCCommittee@wales.gov.uk 

 

8 November 2013 

 

 

STROKE RISK REDUCTION – FOLLOW-UP INQUIRY (supplementary information) 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit further written evidence following the recent stroke risk 

reduction (follow-up) inquiry.  

As requested, please find enclosed supplementary written evidence in addition to the evidence 

previously supplied on behalf of the Welsh Stroke Alliance.  

Specifically, we would like to expand on the burden of stroke in Wales, including its economic costs, 

and the proposals for the development of a National Clinical Network. 

It is strongly felt that the development of such a network would be an effective and efficient 

investment within Wales and go some significant way to satisfy the Health Ministers expectation for 

the NHS and its partners to “work with ambition...to make us amongst the best in Europe for stroke 

treatment and outcomes”
1
. 

We do not necessarily think that a link with a cardiac or neurosciences network would service the 

needs of our stroke patients. However, linking with a proposed vascular (surgery) network could 

work extremely well. 

If you would like more information, please contact Dr Anne Freeman, Chair WSA at 

anne.freeman2@wales.nhs.uk or on 07889976288. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Dr A. Freeman 

Chair – Welsh Stroke Alliance 

!""#$#%&'()#&*%+,'$#%&)*+%,)$-.)/.(0-)1$+%2.)!((#'&3. Eitem 3a

Tudalen 43



Additional evidence to the NAfW follow up inquiry into stroke risk reduction. 2013. 

Executive Summary 

 

The physical impact of stroke on the population is well known. It is estimated to consume 

around 4% of the NHS Wales budget in direct care alone at a cost of around £285 million per 

year, with the total cost of stroke in Wales, including indirect and social care costs, which are 

estimated to be three times this amount.  

Despite these stark figures, NHS Wales has yet to address the strategic and operational 

deficiencies that remain. 

As you know, services in Wales have seen improvements in the past few years. Both the 

Welsh Government’s tier one acute stroke targets and the Royal College of Physicians (RCP) 

Sentinel Stroke Audit have reported some significant improvements.  

In their most recent (2012) organisational audit report, the Royal College of Physicians go so 

far as to describe Wales as “doing well in terms of ensuring that management and clinicians 

are working together overseeing and running stroke services”
2
 

However, we feel that more needs to be done to address the generational scale of the 

stroke problem ahead of us, and there this is best achieve through the effective clinical 

leadership afforded to us through a resourced clinical network for stroke.  

Unlike the other two leading causes of death in Wales (cancer and cardiac), stroke still does 

not have a dedicated national clinical network. Funded with approximately £300,000 per 

year, each of the above networks has a dedicated core team driving the development and 

delivery of these clinical services forward. The Welsh Stroke Alliance calls for parity with 

these networks. In terms of an “invest-to-save” strategy, the Welsh Stroke Alliance believes 

this small investment could yield significant savings for NHS Wales (see below).  

Regulation of the quality of health care service has risen to the top of the health agenda 

following the publication of the Francis, Keogh and Berwick reports. The Welsh Stroke 

Alliance strongly feels that, in light of the significant burden the condition causes to patients 

and public services, the development of a National Stroke Network would provide a key 

strategic quality-driven function.  

A National Stroke Network would constitute a new organisational model for stroke in Wales, 

linking professionals and organisations together, traversing traditional organisational 

boundaries, including the third sector, to achieve improved outcomes for patients and value 

for money for the NHS.  

Through helping translate evidence-into-practice, creating and monitoring service-specific 

standards for Wales, and working closely with partner organisations in the strategic and 

operational management of stroke services, the Network would support Welsh Government 

and NHS Wales in delivering the objectives laid out in Together for Health: Stroke Delivery 

Plan. 

Tudalen 44



Additional evidence to the NAfW follow up inquiry into stroke risk reduction. 2013. 

Burden of Disease 

1) Incidence, Prevalence and Mortality 

Of the 30,426 deaths in Wales in 2011, the highest causes of death in Wales remain diseases 

of the circulatory system (30%), cancer (29%) and diseases of the respiratory system (15%)
34

 

 

In Wales it is estimated that each year approximately 11,000 people will have a stroke, with 

an additional 65,100 people living with effects of previous stroke
5
. 

2) Economic Burden  

A number of studies have estimated the percentage amount of health care expenditure 

spent on direct stroke care around the world
67

. To date, no such study has taken place for 

Wales. Below we attempt to estimate possible expenditure based on previous studies.  

In one study looking at six developed nations, on average 3% of healthcare expenditure was 

spent on stroke care, with a minimum of 1.6% being reported for the USA and a maximum of 

6.9% reported for NHS Scotland. In a later, separate study NHS England were estimated to 

spend 4% on direct stroke care. 

Based on these rates, it is estimated for the financial year 2011/12 in which Local Health 

Boards spent a reported £7,127 million, direct stroke care in Wales cost anywhere between 

£114million to nearly £492million (£114,032,000 to £491,763,000).  

If, as is likely, NHS Wales spends the same as NHS England at 4% of its budget on direct 

stroke care, it cost NHS Wales just over £285million (£285,080,000) for the 2011/12 financial 

year.  

The burden of disease to the population of Wales and its NHS is clear and presents ample 

opportunity for improvement. 

Reducing the Burden 

3) Patient Outcomes 

In 2006, the Department of Health developed a commissioning tool for stroke services 

drawing on currently available data, evidence and national statistics to estimate the 

outcomes and costs of a number of health service strategies to deal with the burden of 

stroke, including: 

·) Prevention with interventions that reduce 

hypertension 

·) Prevention in patients with atrial fibrillation 

·) Prevention using statins 

·) Prevention through smoking cessation 

·) Use of stroke unit on 100 per cent of patients 

·) Use of thrombolysis on 4 per cent or 9 per cent 

of stroke patients 

·) Use of early supported discharge 

·) One-stop TIA clinics 

 

Tudalen 45



Additional evidence to the NAfW follow up inquiry into stroke risk reduction. 2013. 

The chart below illustrates the estimated impact of these strategies for eight PCTs in central 

London indicating that hypertension reduction has the greatest potential to reduce the 

burden of disease, followed by effective AF management, statin prescribing, use of Early 

Supported Discharge services and 100% use of stroke units.  Without a similar study being 

done in Wales, inference of the impact of these interventions is needed.  

 

 

Chart 1: Number of fatal or disabling stroke events avoided  

 

4) Economic Outcomes 

In June 2010, the National Institute of Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) undertook an 

analysis of the cost implications of implementing the NICE Quality Standards for Stroke.
8
 

Without equivalent research being done in Wales, inferences of the potential impact of a 

number of key interventions is still demonstrably clear, providing a road-map of activity for 

any national clinical network and significant return-of-investment for NHS Wales. 

Appendix 1, overleaf, outlines in more detail the purpose, potential activities, and structure 

for our proposed National Clinical Network for stroke.  

Tudalen 46



Additional evidence to the NAfW follow up inquiry into stroke risk reduction. 2013. 

APPENDIX 1 

Development of a National Clinical Network for Stroke 

 

a)) The purpose of a National Stroke Network would be to:  

i)) To bring together representatives from all organisations involved in the planning, 

commissioning and delivery of stroke care across Wales to promote the rapid and 

continuous improvement in quality stroke services.  

 

ii)) To scrutinise, challenge, and develop clinical practice in stroke across Wales, and to 

develop integrated service planning across the public sector. 

 

iii)) To act as an all-Wales forum to provide expert multi-disciplinary advice and support to 

NHS Wales, its Local Health Boards, the Welsh Government, Royal Colleges, interested 

parties and other associated bodies on all aspects of stroke service delivery.  

 

iv)) To review the clinical aspects of professional and organisational audits related to stroke 

care, taking account of developments in evidence, knowledge and practice.  

 

v)) To advise on national clinical standards, best practice and emerging research. 

 

vi)) Supporting Local Health Boards, WAST, local government and third sector stakeholders 

to plan, monitor, and deliver quality stroke services in line with government 

expectations and clinical guidelines. 

 

Activities of a Network 

b)) Knowledge-Management / Business Planning Support, ,  

Providing a horizon scanning function and knowledge-management resource for Welsh 

Health Boards, the network will help shape the future direction of services in Wales with its 

partners. It will also be instrumental in considering emerging national guidance (for example 

NICE guidelines), regarding the delivery of stroke services, national audits, or related clinical 

or service research. The network will also be responsible for the development of national 

guidelines for Wales where deemed appropriate.  

c)) Service Development 

The network will support the development of local services and monitor progress nationally . 

The Network will take a lead role in advising the management of contracts (where 

appropriate) or planning functions. In conjunction with Health Boards and monitor new 

activity in the development of tertiary services for Wales.  

 

Tudalen 47



Additional evidence to the NAfW follow up inquiry into stroke risk reduction. 2013. 

d)) Clinical Governance and Service Monitoring 

The Network will support clinical governance arrangements with stakeholder organisations 

by: 

(a)) The development or adoption of clinical standards for service delivery 

(b)) The effective implementation of care pathways for specific conditions 

(c)) The audit of clinical service delivery against clinical standards and/or national 

targets. 

(d)) Benchmarking of clinical performance between providers in line with proven 

quality improvement methods. 

(e)) Access to the clinical knowledge and expertise of other UK stroke programmes 

(f)) The facilitation of planning, training, or service review events to support 

effective service delivery.  

 

Network Structure 

e)) The Network Core Team would lead, co-ordinate and facilitate the activities of the Network, 

and will consist of: 

i)) A National Clinical Lead for Stroke / Chair (p/t) 

ii)) A National Nursing Lead for Stroke (p/t)) 

iii)) A National Therapy Lead for Stroke (p/t) 

iv)) A National Primary Care Lead for Stroke (GP p/t) 

v)) A National Stroke Network Manager  (f/t) 

vi)) A Network Support Officer (f/t) 

vii))Other clinicians (e.g. National Vascular lead) may be co-opted to undertake specific 

pieces of work as appropriate.  

5)) This team will provide the core support to the Network in delivering against its priorities. It will 

be supplemented by other skills and resources required to deliver the Network agenda through 

the flexible use of co-opted expertise. This may include analytical skills, audit support, training 

and education, or external clinical advice.  

 

                                                           
1
 Together for Health – Stroke Delivery Plan for NHS Wales up to 2016 

2
 Royal College of Physicians. Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme (2012) 

3
 Health Statistics Wales 2013: Summary (10 October 2013) 

4
 Chief Medical Officer Report 2012-13: Healthier, Happier, Fairer, Welsh Government (2013): 

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/phhs/publications/131009reporten.pdf [accessed 4 November 2013] 
5
 Stroke Association available at www.stroke.org.uk/news/stroke-facts-and-statistics-your-area [accessed 4 

November 2013] 
6
 Evers et al. 2004. International Comparison of stroke cost studies. Stroke 35(5):1209-15 

7
 Saka, McGuire, Wolfe 2008. Cost of stroke in the United Kingdom. Age and Ageing 38 (1):27-32  

8
 NICE: Quality Standards Programme. NICE cost-impact and commissioning assessment: quality standard for 

stroke. June 2010 

Tudalen 48



!

!

!

"#$%&!"'(()*!+!,-./#-0!1(#0%*!,-./#-0!2-3*!,-)4#$$!5-3*!,-)4#$$*!,"67!89:!

1;<=4!>'-?)*!+!1=0%#)!,-./#-0*!"$()44!,-./#-0*!5-=!,-=)4344*!,-=)4344!,"67!89:!

7+@!+78A!8B8B 7+@!+78A!8B77!

!

Cymru Wales National Office 
C=0=)-'!1)-D%#%#(0=).!,(<<#%%==!E2-'=.F!

!

!

9-G#4!H==.!IJ!

,&-#)!($!%&=!K=-'%&!-04!L(D#-'!,-)=!,(<<#%%==*!

M-%#(0-'!I..=<N'3!$()!2-'=.*!

,-)4#$$!5-3*!

,-)4#$$!

,"@@!6MI!

!

!

!

!

General Practitioners Committee 

(Wales)

Pwyllgor Meddygon Teulu 

(Cymru)

!

!

+O
%&!
PD%(N=)!+76Q!

!
9=-)!J)!H==.*!
!
";)%&=)! %(!<3! -%%=04-0D=! N=$()=! 3(;)! D(<<#%%==! #0G=.%#R-%#0R! .%)(S=! )=4;D%#(0*! T! $='%! %&-%! T!
.&(;'4!D'-)#$3!%&=!.%-%=<=0%.!%&-%!T!<-4=!-.!%&=!%#<=!D(0.%)-#0%.!4#4!0(%!-''(?!<=!%(*!-04!T!$='%!
%&-%!<3!)=./(0.=!0==4=4!D'-)#$#D-%#(0U!
!
V&=!$-#';)=!%(!/)(4;D=!-!)=4;D%#(0!#0!.%)(S=!-4<#..#(0!.%=<.!$)(<!%&=!-D%#G=!/;N'#D!D-</-#R0!
N3!%&=!MKL!%(!/)(<(%=!.%)(S=!-?-)=0=..*!-04!-4G#D=!%(!4#-'!@@@U!
!
V&=! "ILV! D-</-#R0! E"-D#-'! ?=-S0=..*! I)<! ()! '=R!?=-S0=..*! L/==D&! -'%=)=4! -04!V#<=! W!
/&(0=!@@@F!&-.!N==0!.;DD=..$;'! #0!R=%%#0R!.%)(S=!G#D%#<.!%(!&(./#%-'!X;#%=!X;#DS'3*!N;%! #%!&-.!
-'.(!'=4!%(!%)-0.#=0%!#.D&-=<#D!-%%-DS.!N=#0R!-4<#%%=4!-04!#0G=.%#R-%=4!-.!?=''*!-'(0R!?#%&!%&=!
0(0Y.%)(S=!D-;.=.!($!0=;)('(R#D-'!.3</%(<.!.;D&!-.!D(</'=Z!<#R)-#0=U!
L(!%&(;R&!%&=!(G=)-''!/#D%;)=!#.!($!#0D)=-.=4!-4<#..#(0.*!(;)!$=='#0R!#.!%&-%!%&=)=!&-.!N==0!-!
4(?0?-)4!%)=04!#0!-D%;-'!.%)(S=!(G=)!%&=!/-.%!$#G=!3=-).U!
!
J;D&!?-.! .%-%=4! -N(;%! %&=! '-DS! ($! -! .%)(S=! )=R#.%=)*! N;%!?=! 4(! &-G=! (0=! W! =G=)3! R=0=)-'!
/)-D%#%#(0=)!?&(! .;N.D)#N=.! %(! %&=!X;-'#%3! $)-<=?()S! #0!2-'=.! E-04! T! N='#=G=! %&-%! =G=)3(0=!
4(=.F!S==/.!-! )=R#.%=)!($!0=?!.%)(S=.!-04!VTI.!-04!4(D;<=0%.! %&-%! %&=!-//)(/)#-%=!-D%#(0!
&-.!N==0!;04=)%-S=0!#0!%&=!/)-D%#D=*!()!%&-%!%&=!-//)(/)#-%=!)=$=))-'!&-.!N==0!<-4=U!I.!$-)!-.!
T! -<! -?-)=*! 1;N'#D! K=-'%&!2-'=.! &-.! -DD=..! %(! %&#.! 4-%-U! V&;.*! %&=)=! #.! -!2='.&! L%)(S=!
H=R#.%=)U!
"()!-!$;''YN'(?0!.%)(S=!%&#.!=0%-#'.!#<<=4#-%=!&(./#%-'!)=$=))-'!$()!#<-R#0R*!-04!#0!%&=!=G=0%!($!
-0! =<N('#D! .%)(S=*! ()! #0$-)D%*! D-;.=4! N3! -! D'(%! E-! .#R0#$#D-0%! <#0()#%3! ($! .%)(S=.F! %&=0!
%&)(<N('3.#.!.&(;'4!N=!;04=)%-S=0!?#%&#0!%&)==!&(;).!%(!)=4;D=!%&=!-)=-!($!4-<-R=4!N)-#0U!
V&#.! <#))().! %)=-%<=0%! D;))=0%'3! ;04=)%-S=0! -$%=)! <3(D-)4#-'! #0$-)D%#(0! -04! T! N='#=G=! #.!
D(<<(0'3!-G-#'-N'=!-D)(..!2-'=.U!
!
V&=)=! #.*! -.! 3=%*! 0(! S0(?0! %)=-%<=0%! $()! &-=<())&-R#D! .%)(S=*! (%&=)! %&-0! )=&-N#'#%-%#(0*! .(!
%&=)=!#.!0(!<-R#D!?-04U!H=&-N#'#%-%#(0!#.!D;))=0%'3!N=#0R!)=.=-)D&=4!-04!%&=)=!#.!(0=!-)<!($!-!
%)#-'! '((S#0R! -%! #0%=0.#G=! G=)3! =-)'3!<(N#'#.-%#(0! ($! %&=.=! ;0$()%;0-%=! /=(/'=U! 1&3.#(%&=)-/3!
-04! (DD;/-%#(0-'! %&=)-/3! #.! %&=! <-#0.%-3! ($! %)=-%<=0%*! -'(0R.#4=! D(;0.=''#0R! -04!
/.3D&(%&=)-/3*! -.! %&=.=! G#D%#<.! -)=! #0G-)#-N'3! 4=/)=..=4! N3! %&=! '#$=YD&-0R#0R! D-%-.%)(/&=!
%&-%!&-.!&-//=0=4!%(!%&=<U!T!-<!0(%!.;)=!#$!-03(0=!&-.!%(;D&=4!(0!%&#.!-./=D%!($!D-)=U!
!
!

I44#%#(0-'!#0$()<-%#(0!$)(<!%&=!5)#%#.&!J=4#D-'!I..(D#-%#(0

Tudalen 49



5)#%#.&!J=4#D-'!I..(D#-%#(0!
N<-U()RU;S!
!

!

!

!

1-R=!+!($!Q!

V&;.*!<-0-R=<=0%!($!.%)(S=!G#D%#<.!N3! )=&-N#'#%-%#(0!-04! )=-N'=<=0%! #.!N=.%!/)(G#4=4!N3!-!
<;'%#4#.D#/'#0-)3!%=-<!#0!-!/;)/(.=YN;#'%!=0G#)(0<=0%!%(!$-D#'#%-%=!%&=!(/%#<;<!)=D(G=)3U!
!
"()!VTI.*!-!D-;.=!#.!.(;R&%U!,-)=$;'!=Z-<#0-%#(0!($!%&=!/-%#=0%!#.!;04=)%-S=0!'((S#0R!$()!-%)#-'!
$#N)#''-%#(0*!$#04#0R!-!N);#%!E0(#.3!N'((4!$'(?!#0!%&=!0=DS!-)%=)3!4;=!%(!0-))(?#0RF*!$#04#0R!-!&=-)%!
<;)<;)!()!)-#.=4!N'((4!/)=..;)=U!
H=$=))-'! #.! =..=0%#-'*! -.! =G=0! #0! %&=! -N.=0D=! ($! -! N);#%! %&=)=! <-3! N=! .#R0#$#D-0%! -)%=)#-'!
0-))(?#0R!N=.%!4=<(0.%)-%=4!N3!-!D-)(%#4!;'%)-.(;04!.D-0U!L#R0#$#D-0%!0-))(?#0R!.&(;'4!N=!
)=$=))=4!%(!-!G-.D;'-)!.;)R=(0U!
!
T0!<3!'(D-'#%3*!$)-0S!-%)#-'! $#N)#''-%#(0!EI"F! #.! #<<=4#-%='3!-0%#YD(-R;'-%=4!#0!/)-D%#D=!-04!%&=0!
)=$=))=4! %(!-!D-)4#('(R#.%! W!-.!-0!=-)'3!4#-R0(.#.!<-3! )=./(04! %(!D-)4#(G=).#(0! E-0!='=D%)#D!
.&(DS! %(! %&=! &=-)%FU! V&=! /-%#=0%! 0==4.! %(! N=! -0%#YD(-R;'-%=4! $()! %&#.! %(! N=! ;04=)%-S=0*! .(!
0(%&#0R! #.! '(.%! N3! =-)'3! #</'=<=0%-%#(0! ($! ?-)$-)#0U! I0! =D&(D-)4#(R)-<! #.! 0=D=..-)3! -.!
G-'G;'-)!/-%&('(R3!E0-))(?=4!()!'=-S#0R!&=-)%!G-'G=.F!#0D)=-.=.!%&=!)#.S!($!D'(%!$()<-%#(0U!
T0%=)<#%%=0%!I"!<-3!N=!<()=!4-0R=)(;.! $)(<!-!.%)(S=!/(#0%!($! G#=?!-.! #%.!.%(/Y.%-)%!0-%;)=!
<-3!/)=D#/#%-%=!<()=!D'(%.U!9#-R0(.#.!0==4.!-!'(0RY%=)<!&=-)%!)-%=!<=-.;)=<=0%!W!-!?==S!()!
.(<=%#<=.! '(0R=)! W! -04! %&#.! #.! ;.;-''3! -))-0R=4! G#-! %&=! D-)4#('(R#.%*!?&(!?(;'4! -'.(! &-G=!
;04=)%-S=0!-0!=D&(D-)4#(R)-<U!K(?=G=)! %&=!/-%#=0%!D-0!&='/*!-.S!-N(;%!-03!D&-0R=.!%&=3!
&-G=!0(%=4! #0!&=-)%! )-%=! E.;D&!-.![/-'/#%-%#(0.\F!-04!=G=0!.&(?#0R!%&=<!&(?!%(!D&=DS!%&=#)!
(?0! /;'.=! ?&=0! %&=3! &-G=! -! [%;)0\! <-3! D(0$#)<! -! D'#0#D-'! .;./#D#(0U! T! N='#=G=! %&-%! %&=!
%&)=.&('4! $()! -0%#YD(-R;'-%#(0! .&(;'4! N=! X;#%=! '(?! R#G=0! %&#.! D'#0#D-'! /#D%;)=*! -04! R#G=0! %&=!
D-%-.%)(/&#D!=$$=D%.!($!.%)(S=U!
!
I.!$-)!-.!.%)(S=!/)=G=0%#(0!#.!D(0D=)0=4*!%&=0!%&#.!#.!4=$#0#%='3!#0!%&=!)=-'<!($!/)#<-)3!D-)=U!T!
?-.!G=)3!.;)/)#.=4!-%!(;)!0;).#0R!D(''=-R;=.!?&#'.%!=Z%(''#0R!%&=!G#)%;=.!($![0;).=!D(0.;'%-0%.\!
$-#'=4!%(!-DS0(?'=4R=!%&=!=0()<(;.!D(0%)#N;%#(0!($!/)-D%#D=!0;).=.!-04!R=0=)-'!/)-D%#%#(0=).!
#0!.%)(S=!/)=G=0%#(0U!
!
L#0D=! .%-)%#0R! #0! /)-D%#D=! #0! 6@OQ*! ?=! &-G=! -'?-3.! ($$=)=4! [JPV.\! $()! /=(/'=! ?#%&! &=-'%&!
D(0D=)0.!-04*! %&(;R&!;.;-''3!(0'3! %-S=0!;/!N3! %&=!?())#=4!?=''*!?=!&-G=!/#DS=4!;/!X;#%=!-!
G-)#=%3!($!/-%&('(R#=.U!
V&#.!&-.!N=D(<=!)=$#0=4!0(?!-04!#.!/-)%!($!%&=!:;-'#%3!")-<=?()S*!?#%&!.%)#D%!N'((4!/)=..;)=!
%-)R=%.*! ],C! -..=..<=0%.! #0! /)-D%#D=*! D&('=.%=)('! <-0-R=<=0%! -04! )=R;'-)! <=4#D-%#(0!
)=G#=?U!
1)=G=0%#(0!#.!)=-''3!<;D&!N=%%=)!%&-0!D;)=!E()!%&=!'-DS!($!D;)=F!-04!#0!D(0^;0D%#(0!?#%&!&=-'%&!
#</)(G=<=0%!'=R#.'-%#(0!.;D&!-.!.<(S#0R!D=..-%#(0!-04!-'D(&('!D(0%)('!-.!-')=-43!#0.%#R-%=4!
N3!2='.&!C(G=)0<=0%*!%&=0!%&=!S=3!%(!%&=!$;%;)=!#.!%&)(;R&!/)#<-)3!D-)=U!V-)R=%!#0G=.%<=0%!
&=)=!-04!%&=!0==4!$()!./=D#-'#.%!#0%=)G=0%#(0!?#''!N=!4)-<-%#D-''3!)=4;D=4U!
!
9=./#%=!%&=!/(/;'-)!(/#0#(0!%&-%!?=!);0!-!D(;R&.!-04!D('4.!.=)G#D=!-04!-)=!-'?-3.!/'-3#0R!
R('$*! 5)#%#.&! R=0=)-'! /)-D%#D=! #.! #0%=)0-%#(0-''3! )=D(R0#.=4! -.! #0! %&=! %(/! %&)==! ?()'4YD'-..!
/)#<-)3!D-)=!.=)G#D=.U!T%!#.!(0=!($!%&=!$#0=.%*!<(.%!D(.%Y=$$=D%#G=!D&)(0#D!4#.=-.=!<-0-R=<=0%!
.=)G#D=.!#0!%&=!?()'4U!T0!2-'=.!?=!&-G=!-!4=4#D-%=4!?()S!$()D=!?()S#0R!N=3(04!D-/-D#%3U!
!
@7_!($!/-%#=0%!D(0%-D%.!?#%&#0!%&=!MKL!(DD;)! #0!/)#<-)3!D-)=*!-04!%&#.! #.!?&=)=!%&=!N#RR=.%!
D&-0R=.!#0!&=-'%&!&-G=*!-04!?#''!D(0%#0;=*!%(!(DD;)!-.!'(0R!-.!%&=!)=.(;)D=!#.!/)(G#4=4U!
!
`(;).!.#0D=)='3*!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Tudalen 50



5)#%#.&!J=4#D-'!I..(D#-%#(0!
N<-U()RU;S!
!

!

!

!

1-R=!Q!($!Q!

!
9)!1&#'!2&#%=*!C1,!E2-'=.F!
5)#%#.&!J=4#D-'!I..(D#-%#(0!

Tudalen 51



Does Anxiety Affect Risk of Dementia? Findings From the Caerphilly
Prospective Study
JOHN GALLACHER, BSC, PHD, ANTHONY BAYER, MB BCH, MARK FISH, MB BCH, JANET PICKERING, BSC, MSC,

SOFIA PEDRO, BSC, MSC, FRANK DUNSTAN, MA, PHD, SHAH EBRAHIM, MB BCH, MD,

AND YOAV BEN-SHLOMO, MB BCH, PHD

Objective: To examine the association of anxiety with incident dementia and cognitive impairment not dementia (CIND).

Methods: We conducted a prospective study of men aged 48 to 67 years at baseline anxiety assessment; we measured cognition

17 years later. We studied 1481 men who were either eligible for examination or were known to have dementia. Trait Anxiety was

assessed using the Spielberger State Trait Anxiety Inventory. Psychological distress was assessed using the 30-item general health

questionnaire. Cognitive screening was followed by a clinical examination. Medical notes and death certificates of those not seen

were also examined. Outcomes were CIND and Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, 4th Edition (DSM-IV)

dementia. Results: Of 1160 men who were cognitively screened, 174 cases of CIND and 69 cases of dementia were identified. A

further 21 cases of dementia were identified from medical records. After adjustment for age, vascular risk factors and premorbid

cognitive function associations with higher anxiety (31st–95th centile) were for CIND odds ratio (OR) 2.31 (95% Confidence

Interval (CI) 5 1.20–4.44) and for dementia OR 2.37 (95% CI 5 0.98–5.71). These associations were slightly stronger for

nonvascular (OR 5 2.45; 95% CI 5 1.28–4.68) than for vascular impairment (OR 5 1.94; 95% CI 5 0.77–4.89). Analyses of

change in cognitive performance, assessed by the Cambridge Cognitive Examination of the Elderly subscales found some evidence

for decline in learning memory with higher anxiety score (bage adj 5 20.291 (20.551, 20.032), but not for any other subscale.

Conclusions: Anxiety is a risk factor for CIND and dementia. The extent to which the association is independent of depression and

whether or not it is causal requires further study. Key words: anxiety, dementia, CIND, depression, cognitive decline, vascular

dementia.

BMI 5 body mass index; CAMCOG 5 Cambridge Cognitive Exam-

ination of the Elderly; CaPS 5 Caerphilly Prospective Study; CIND 5

cognitive impairment not dementia; DSM-IV 5 Diagnostic and

Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, 4th Edition; GHQ30 5

30-item general health questionnaire; GP 5 general practice;

Lowess 5 locally weighted least squares; NINDS-AIREN 5

National Institute of Neurological Disorders and Stroke and As-

sociation Internationale pour la Recherche et l’Enseignement en

Neurosciences; STAI 5 Spielberger State Trait Anxiety Inventory.

INTRODUCTION

Little is known of the role of anxiety as a risk factor for

dementia. A cross-sectional study has reported lower cog-

nitive performance in older persons with high anxiety (1) and

a small prospective study has reported an increased risk of

cognitive decline for patients with high anxiety (2). Anxiety

has also been implicated in the progression from mild cogni-

tive impairment to Alzheimer’s disease (3). Prospective evi-

dence also suggests that the related concept of psychological

distress, a mixture of anxiety and depression, is associated

with Alzheimer’s disease (4,5).

There is accumulating prospective evidence, however, that

depression is a risk factor for dementia in both clinical and

general population samples (6–8). Although some null find-

ings have been reported (9,10), a recent meta-analysis sug-

gested there is a relative risk of 1.87 (95% Confidence Interval

(CI) 5 1.09–3.20) of dementia in persons with depression

(11). These studies have generally not taken into account the

considerable comorbidity between depression and anxiety

(12–14) or the precedence given to depression over anxiety in

the diagnosis of psychiatric symptoms (15). In the present

study, we investigate in a general male population sample the

association of anxiety with cognitive impairment not dementia

(CIND) and dementia assessed after a follow-up averaging 17

years.

METHODS
Study Population and Survey Methods

The Caerphilly Prospective Study (CaPS) has followed a general popu-

lation sample of men for cardiovascular and cerebrovascular disease since

1979. At the time of the first follow-up examination (phase 2: 1983–1988),

when the men were aged 48 to 67 years, the cohort was enlarged to restore

representativeness and a psychosocial assessment, including anxiety measure-

ment, was performed. Cognitive function was assessed at the third (1989–91),

fourth (1993–95), and fifth (2002–04) phases. This report involves the 2398

men who were part of the reconstituted cohort at phase 2 of the study, which

is considered the baseline for the effects of psychosocial exposures (Figure 1).

Baseline Assessment

Psychological assessment included the 20-item trait scale of the State

Trait Anxiety Inventory (STAI) (16) and the 30-item general health question-

naire (GHQ30) (17). Other measures included a detailed medical examination

and lifestyle history. Measurements included blood pressure, cholesterol,

height, and weight. Smoking habit, alcohol consumption, social class, and

marital status were identified by questionnaire. Alcohol consumption was

converted to an estimated number of ml per week based on the reported

frequency of consumption of different types of drink. After complete descrip-

tion of the study to the subjects, written informed consent was obtained.

Ascertainment of Cognitive Impairment

Cognitive screening at the fifth examination was used to identify men

eligible for medical assessment. The criteria were a) all men with Cambridge

Cognitive Examination of the Elderly (CAMCOG) score of ,83; b) all men

From the Department of Epidemiology, Statistics and Public Health (J.G.,
M.F., J.P., S.P., F.D.) and the Department of Geriatric Medicine (A.B.),
Centre for Health Sciences Research, Cardiff University, Cardiff, UK; Lon-
don School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine (S.E.), London, UK; and the
Department of Social Medicine (Y.B.-S.), University of Bristol, Bristol, UK.

Address correspondence and reprint requests to John Gallacher, Depart-
ment of Primary Care and Public Health, Centre for Health Sciences Re-
search, Heath Park, Cardiff CF14 4XN, UK. E-mail: Gallacher@cardiff.ac.uk

Received for publication February 21, 2008; revision received November 6,
2008.

This work was funded by the Alzheimer’s Society. The Caerphilly Study
was initiated by the former MRC Epidemiology Unit (South Wales) and was
funded by the Medical Research Council of the United Kingdom.

DOI: 10.1097/PSY.0b013e3181a6177c

659Psychosomatic Medicine 71:659–666 (2009)
0033-3174/09/7106-0659

Copyright © 2009 by the American Psychosomatic Society

!""#$#%&'()#&*%+,'$#%&)*+%,)-./(#0)12'($3)4'(25

Tudalen 52



whose decline in CAMCOG score between any two cognitive assessments

was $10 points; and c) all men who failed to produce a CAMCOG score

despite an attempt to do so (18).

The medical assessment included the modified Cambridge Mental Disor-

ders of the Elderly Examination subject and informant interview (19), a

neurological examination, the Rosen-modified Hachinski Score, (20), the

Frontal Assessment Battery (21), the Clinical Dementia Rating scale (22), and

the Informant Questionnaire on Cognitive Decline in the Elderly (23). Where

appropriate, all available general practice (GP) records and hospital records

were reviewed. All subjects who had died were identified by “flagging” at the

National Health Service Central Register. Those with a cause of death

recorded as dementia or Alzheimer’s disease were followed up by detailed

review of GP and hospital records to confirm diagnosis. The names of

subjects who had failed to attend the interview for the initial cognitive

assessment were also checked against records of the local Community Mental

Health Team for Older People and those known to the service were followed up.

A diagnosis of dementia was made by consensus based on Diagnostic and

Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, 4th Edition (DSM-IV) (24). Subjects

who were screen positive, but did not exhibit significant impairment in daily

functioning sufficient to warrant dementia diagnosis, met the criteria for

CIND (25,26); all other screened subjects were classed as cognitively healthy.

Subjects with dementia or CIND were classified as having a likely

vascular component if they had clinical features consistent with cerebrovas-

cular disease, operationalized as Rosen revised Hachinski Ischemic Score of

$3, and for demented subjects if they fulfilled the National Institute of

Neurological Disorders and Stroke and Association Internationale pour la

Recherche et l’Enseignement en Neurosciences (NINDS-AIREN) criteria for

possible or probable vascular dementia. All other subjects with dementia

(including probable Alzheimer’s disease, dementia with Lewy bodies, Par-

kinson’s disease dementia, fronto-temporal dementia), or CIND (including

amnestic mild cognitive impairment) were classified as nonvascular. Details

of the diagnostic procedures are given elsewhere (27).

Statistical Methods

Only men whose cognitive status had been determined were included in

the analysis. For descriptive purposes, the STAI was dichotomized at the

median (Table 1). For analytical purposes, owing to the distribution of the

STAI being positively skew, raw STAI scores were loge transformed. Pre-

liminary analysis was conducted using locally weighted least squares (Low-

ess) smoothing plots. These provide model independent plots of the proba-

bility of impairment at the fifth examination as a function of the anxiety score

and informed the choice of an appropriate model for the relationship. These

analyses suggested that the risk of impairment increased markedly above the

30th centile (STAI score 5 31) of the anxiety distribution (Figure 2) with little

dependence on the anxiety score below that. As a result, piecewise linear

logistic regression was used to model the relationship between cognitive

impairment and anxiety, allowing for different models in the different ranges of

anxiety score; the knot point for the analysis being at the 30th centile. Therefore,

odds ratios (ORs) were calculated to identify associations for men at or below the

30th centile and for men at or above the 31st centile. The ORs for men above the

knot point were scaled so that they represented the change in risk between the 31st

and 95th centiles. This provides a more widely relevant estimate of effect size.

Models were checked by analysis of the residuals.

For all multivariable analyses, adjustment was made for age. Adjustment

was then made for standard vascular risk factors. Blood pressure, body mass

index (BMI), and total cholesterol were modeled as continuous variables.

Alcohol consumption (measured in ml/week) was log transformed as ln

(41alcohol), the addition of 4 allowing the log transformation of zero for

nondrinkers; the resulting variable was modeled as a continuous variable.

Social class was modeled as a two-level factor (manual, nonmanual); marital

status was modeled as a two-level factor (married or not); and smoking was

entered as a three-level factor (never smoked, ex-smoker, current smoker).

Evidence of previous vascular disease was a previous heart attack, angina,

electrocardiogram ischemia, or intermittent claudication and was modeled as

a two-level factor. Although psychological distress, as measured by the

GHQ30, assesses both depression and anxiety, it was included in the analysis

to provide adjustment for depression at the risk of overadjustment for anxiety.

GHQ30 was scored in the usual manner with a score of $5 denoting

psychological distress. National Adult Reading Test score was modeled as a

continuous variable to adjust for premorbid cognitive function. Men whose

CAMCOG score declined between phases 3 and 4 and between phases 4 and

5 were defined as having evidence of possible impairment at the time of

psychosocial assessment (phase 2), i.e., an ongoing process of detectable

decline that was detectable early in the study.

The association of anxiety with quantitative change in cognitive perfor-

mance was analyzed by linear regression of standardized (z) scores for change

Figure 1. Cohort recruitment.

J. GALLACHER et al.

660 Psychosomatic Medicine 71:659–666 (2009)Tudalen 53



in CAMCOG subscales between the 3rd and 5th examinations on anxiety

(28). Men who were not cognitively screened were omitted.

All analyses were repeated adjusting for apolipoprotein E (APOE) allelic

status. This reduced the available sample size by .250 men and these

analyses are not shown. For these analyses, allelic status was assessed as a

three-level factor comprising homozygous E4 (high risk), heterozygous E4

(moderate risk), and non-E4 (low risk).

RESULTS

Of the 2398 men assessed at phase 2 of the study, 2358

provided anxiety scores (Figure 1). Of these, 843 died before

follow-up, 50 lived outside of the study area, and 5 had

previously declined further contact with the study, leaving an

eligible population of 1460 (100%). Of these, 235 men refused

to participate and 65 were not found, resulting in 1160 (80%)

participants. Of the 1160 men who were screened, 69 had

dementia, 174 had CIND, and 916 were cognitively healthy.

For one man, a diagnosis could not be reached due to insuf-

ficient information. A further 21 cases of dementia were

identified through medical notes and death certificates, result-

ing in 1180 men with cognitive outcome data. Of the 1180

men with cognitive outcome data, 982 had complete covariate

data. Of these, 71 had dementia and 128 had CIND. Impair-

ment (dementia and CIND) was considered to be vascular in

origin in 62 cases and nonvascular in 137 cases. Of the 982

men with complete covariate data, 127 showed evidence of

possible cognitive decline from phase 3 of the study and were

omitted from secondary multivariable analyses. The maxi-

mum follow-up period was 20 years but averaged at 17.3 6

1.3 (standard deviation) years.

At baseline, men with raised anxiety were more frequently

of manual social class, had no educational qualifications, were

current smokers, and were GHQ30 positive (Table 1). Men

who were not followed were more likely to be manual social

class; have educational qualifications; be married; smoke;

have previous vascular disease; show high anxiety; be older;

have higher systolic pressure, lower BMI, or lower alcohol

intake; and did not differ in GHQ score or serum cholesterol.

Risk of cognitive impairment (CIND or dementia) over 17

years was found to increase with anxiety score (Figure 2).

Observation suggested that the increase in risk began around

the 30th centile of the distribution. Comparison of the log

likelihood between a linear model and a piecewise model with

the knot point at the 30th centile showed the piecewise model

to be preferable (x2
5 3.86, df 5 1, p 5 .05) and this was

adopted for the analyses.

Anxiety was found to be associated with cognitive impair-

ment (CIND or dementia) above the 30th centile of the anxiety

scale only (Table 2). Associations of low anxiety scores with

impairment did not approach statistical significance (not

TABLE 1. Baseline Characteristics of 2358 Men With Baseline Anxiety Scores According to Follow-Up Status

Covariates

Men in Follow-Up
Men With Anxiety

Scores Not

Followed

(n 5 1195)a

p Value for Follow-Up/

Not Follow Up

Difference

Low Anxiety

(20 to 34)

(n 5 575)

High Anxiety

(35 to 72)

(n 5 585)

p Value for

Low/High

Difference

All

(n 5 1160)

Manual social class 334 (58%) 382 (65%) .01 716 (62%) 863 (72%) ,.0005

Education (no qualifications) 213 (39%) 281 (51%) ,.0005 601 (55%) 334 (43%) ,.0005

Married 528 (92%) 520 (89%) .09 1048 (90%) 1024 (86%) ,.0005

Current smoker 187 (33%) 228 (39%) .02 415 (36%) 618 (52%) ,.0005

Prevalent vascular disease 97 (17%) 122 (21%) .08 219 (19%) 390 (33%) ,.0005

GHQ30 positive ($5) 36 (7%) 195 (36%) ,.0005 231 (21%) 256 (23%) .27

Mean age, years (SD) 56.2 (4.3) 56.0 (4.5) .53 56.1 (4.4) 57.6 (4.5) ,.0005

Mean SBP, mm Hg (SD) 145 (21) 144 (22) .75 144 (22) 148 (23) .0001

Mean DBP, mm Hg (SD) 84 (11) 85 (11) .81 84 (11) 85 (13) .31

Mean BMI (SD) 26.8 (3.4) 26.5 (3.4) .13 26.6 (3.4) 26.3 (3.8) .02

Mean Ln (41alcohol) (SD) 4.23 (1.44) 4.34 (1.42) .17 4.28 (1.43) 4.16 (1.51) .04

Mean total Cholesterol,

Mm/l(SD)

5.64 (0.96) 5.66 (1.04) .71 5.65 (1.0) 5.62 (1.01) .56

High anxiety scorers 585 (50%) 690 (58%) , .0005

a Numbers vary due to missing data.

GHQ30 5 30-item general health questionnaire; SD 5 standard deviation; SBP 5 systolic blood pressure; DBP 5 diastolic blood pressure; BMI 5 body mass

index.

Figure 2. Lowess smoothing of cognitive impairment according to Anxiety
score in 1160 men who were cognitively screened.

ANXIETY AND DEMENTIA

661Psychosomatic Medicine 71:659–666 (2009) Tudalen 54



shown). The age-adjusted relative odds of impairment from

the 31st to 95th centiles was 2.87 (95% CI 5 1.68–4.88, p ,

.001). Further adjustment for vascular risk attenuated the

association slightly (OR 5 2.60; 95% CI 5 1.50–4.51; p 5

.001) as did further adjustment for GHQ30 score (OR 5 2.37;

95% CI 5 1.26–4.62; p 5 .007). Adjustment for premorbid

cognitive function score also attenuated the association

slightly (OR 5 2.19; 95% CI 5 1.24–3.88; p 5 .007). The

association for the fully adjusted model was 1.91 (95% CI 5

0.99–3.68; p 5 .053). For CIND, a closely similar pattern was

found. For CIND, the fully adjusted model, the OR was 2.32

(95% CI 5 1.09–4.92; p 5 .029). For dementia, the associ-

ations were slightly weaker but were markedly attenuated by

adjustment for GHQ30 score (OR 5 1.91; 95% CI 5 0.72–

5.09; p 5 .19). If men with evidence of impairment at baseline

are omitted, a closely similar pattern is found, associations

with anxiety being slightly stronger (ORage ajd 5 5.04; 95%

CI 5 1.24–20.45; p , .024) although confidence intervals are

wider due to reduced sample size.

These associations were investigated further by comparing

men with vascular and nonvascular etiology (Table 3).

Slightly stronger associations were found for men with non-

vascular etiology. After adjustment for age, the OR for non-

vascular impairment was 3.28 (95% CI 5 1.79–6.01; p ,

.001) and for vascular impairment, the OR was 2.32 (95%

CI 5 0.95–5.25; p 5 .06). These associations were slightly

stronger after omitting men with evidence of impairment at

baseline.

Associations of anxiety with quantitative changes in CAMCOG

subscales over time were also investigated (Table 4). This anal-

ysis was conducted on 963 men with both phase 3 and phase 5

CAMCOG data available. Anxiety was associated with decline in

learning memory (recall and recognition) (bage adj 5 20.291;

95% CI 5 20.551, 20.032; p 5 .028) and praxis (bage adj 5

20.259; 95% CI 5 20.521, 0.004; p 5 .053) although both

associations were lost after further adjustment.

All of the above analyses (Tables 2–4) were repeated,

adjusting for APOE status (not shown). APOE had no effect

on the association of anxiety with dementia.

DISCUSSION

We have shown that trait anxiety is associated with incident

CIND and dementia 17 years later in a population-based

prospective study. To our knowledge, this is the first study

showing an association of anxiety with incident dementia,

although other studies have shown associations of anxiety

with the related construct of psychological distress (4,5).

Strengths

The CaPS has achieved high levels of participation

throughout and the sample used for this analysis reflected a

79% response rate. Diagnosis of dementia and CIND was

obtained through examination of the men and examination of

medical records using standard criteria. Anxiety was measured

at baseline and before the onset of cognitive impairment, using

a widely used standard instrument. A wide range of risk

TABLE 2. Piecewise Logistic Regression of Cognitive Impairment on Trait Anxiety (31st to 95th Centiles)a in 982 Men With Complete Data and

755 Men Without Evidence of Cognitive Decline at Baseline

Severity of

Impairment
Sample Selection

Model: OR, 95% CI, p

Adjusted for Age
Adjusted for Age 1

Vascular Riskb

Adjusted for Age 1

Vascular Risk 1

GHQ

Adjusted for: Age 1

Vascular Risk 1

NART

Full

Adjustment

CIND and

Dementia

All men 2.87 2.60 2.37 2.19 1.91

1.68, 4.88 1.50, 4.51 1.26, 4.62 1.24, 3.88 0.99, 3.68

,.001 .001 .007 .007 .053

Excluding men with

evidence of

decline at baseline

4.02 3.76 2.93 3.36 2.58

2.05, 7.91 1.84, 7.69 1.29, 6.66 1.61, 7.01 1.11, 5.99

,.001 ,.001 .010 .001 .027

CIND only All men 2.85 2.62 2.80 2.31 2.32

1.55, 5.26 1.39, 4.94 1.35, 5.81 1.20, 4.44 1.09, 4.92

.001 .003 .006 .012 .029

Excluding men with

evidence of

decline at baseline

3.75 3.60 3.28 3.32 2.98

1.82, 7.75 1.67, 7.79 1.35, 7.98 1.51, 7.31 1.20, 7.38

,.001 .001 .009 .003 .018

Dementia only All men 2.89 2.73 1.91 2.37 1.62

1.27, 6.54 1.16, 6.45 0.72, 5.09 0.98, 5.71 0.59, 4.41

.011 .022 .19 .056 .59

Excluding men with

evidence of

decline at baseline

5.04 4.24 2.06 3.60 1.77

1.24, 20.45 0.92, 19.60 0.38, 11.28 0.74, 17.47 00.31, 10.24

.024 .07 .41 .11 .53

a Odds ratios above the knot point scaled to the 31st-95th centile range. Odds ratios below the knot point not shown.
b Vascular risk factors: social class, marital status, smoking, alcohol consumption, blood pressure, body mass index, total cholesterol, previous vascular disease.

OR 5 odds ratio; CI 5 Confidence Interval; GHQ 5 general health questionnaire; NART 5 National Adult Reading Test; CIND 5 cognitive impairment not

dementia.

J. GALLACHER et al.

662 Psychosomatic Medicine 71:659–666 (2009)Tudalen 55



factors and potential confounders, including psychological

distress, was used to reduce the likelihood of confounding.

Analyses were repeated omitting men with evidence of cog-

nitive impairment at baseline.

Limitations

The study used the GHQ30 to adjust for psychological

distress, which has a substantial depressive component at

baseline. The GHQ30 has been validated for depression in this

cohort with 90% of GHQ30 cases being depression related

(29). The CaPS may have been considered sufficiently large at

inception; however, the number of men with cognitive impair-

ment was only just sufficient for the analysis and the subgroup

analyses were based on small numbers. Although only men

were recruited to the study, associations between anxiety and

cognitive impairment in men are important. The high response

rate at recruitment makes selection bias unlikely. Loss to

follow-up is always an issue in cohort studies, but high re-

sponse rates were achieved at each examination (27). Men

who were not screened had higher anxiety levels (Table 1) and

are more likely to be cognitively impaired. This bias is likely

to have reduced case detection rather than altered patterns of

association as it is unlikely that the exposure outcome asso-

ciation was qualitatively different among those who were

followed up compared with those who were not. Baseline

cognitive function was determined 5 years after anxiety. Al-

though the incidence of dementia between the ages of 48 and

67 years is extremely low, the possibility that a small number

of men were cognitively impaired at the time of anxiety

assessment cannot be excluded.

Interpretation

Prodromal Effect of Dementia

These findings are complex and may be interpreted in

various ways. Although anxiety measurement was made

when participants were aged 48 to 67 years of age and 17

years before case ascertainment, the possibility that anxiety

is an early outcome of a dementing process cannot be

discounted. However, analyses were repeated omitting men

with evidence of impairment at baseline (decline in CAM-

COG score). The repeated analysis is a more certain test of

incident dementia and showed highly comparable findings

with the initial analysis. It also represents a conservative

test of the hypothesis as men who were not impaired at

baseline but were impaired at the 10-year follow-up would

also be omitted. If these data support a prodromal effect of

dementia on anxiety, they indicate that the prodromal effect

occurs many years before any detectable cognitive effect.

For the same reason, it is unlikely, although not impossible,

that higher anxiety is due to self-awareness of very early

cognitive decline (30). However, association was found

only between anxiety and learning memory estimates of

cognitive change over time and not for the other ten sub-

scales. It is unlikely that there was any detectable change in

cognitive function at baseline.

Prodromal Effect of Depression

As depression is an established risk factor for dementia, it

may be that the association of anxiety with CIND and demen-

tia reflects a prodromal effect of depression on anxiety and it

is the underlying depression that leads to dementia, although

some would argue that anxiety more typically precedes de-

pression (31). Similarly, associations with anxiety may reflect

the comorbidity of anxiety with depression (12,13). In our

analyses, we adjusted for GHQ30 score, a measure of psycho-

logical distress with a large depression component. The extent

to which this adjustment reflects an appropriate adjustment for

depression or an overadjustment for anxiety is moot. This

adjustment had little impact on the association of anxiety with

TABLE 3. Piecewise Logistic Regression of Type of Cognitive Impairment on Trait Anxiety (31st to 95th Centiles)a in 982 Men With Complete

Data and 755 Men Without Evidence of Cognitive Decline at Baseline

Impairment

Subgroup
Sample Selection

Model: OR, 95% CI, p

Adjusted for Age
Adjusted for Age 1

Vascular Riskb

Adjusted for Age 1

Vascular Risk 1

GHQ

Adjusted for: Age 1

Vascular Risk 1

NART

Full

Adjustment

Nonvascular All men 3.28 3.00 2.68 2.45 2.02

1.79, 6.01 1.61, 5.61 1.30, 5.23 1.28, 4.68 0.95, 4.30

,.001 .001 .008 .002 .07

Excluding men with

evidence of decline

at baseline

4.31 4.13 3.00 3.65 2.61

2.04, 9.12 1.87, 9.14 1.20, 7.46 1.61, 8.28 1.02, 6.66

,.001 ,.001 .019 .002 .045

Vascular All men 2.23 2.06 2.05 1.94 1.91

0.95, 5.22 0.83, 5.11 0.74, 5.67 0.77, 4.89 0.68, 5.37

.06 .12 .17 .16 .41

Excluding men with

evidence of decline

at baseline

3.23 2.92 2.97 2.76 2.79

0.91, 11.48 0.74, 11.58 0.64, 13.81 0.68, 11.13 0.60, 13.06

.07 .13 .16 .16 .19

a Odds ratios above the knot point scaled to the 31st–95th centile range. Odds ratios below the knot point not shown.
b Vascular risk factors: social class, marital status, smoking, alcohol consumption, blood pressure, body mass index, total cholesterol, previous vascular disease.

OR 5 odds ratio; CI 5 Confidence Interval; GHQ 5 general health questionnaire; NART 5 National Adult Reading Test.

ANXIETY AND DEMENTIA

663Psychosomatic Medicine 71:659–666 (2009) Tudalen 56



nonvascular CIND but did attenuate the association with de-

mentia.

Causal Effect of Anxiety on Cognitive Assessment

Of interest is the stronger association of anxiety with CIND

than dementia. It may be that high trait anxiety at baseline

implies higher anxiety levels at follow-up and these lead to

poorer cognitive performance independently of any patholog-

ical implications. It may be that men with dementia are less

likely to be affected by performance anxiety than men with

CIND. However, that stronger associations were found for

nonvascular rather than vascular impairment suggests this is

not a full explanation. The lack of association between anxiety

and quantitative estimate of cognitive change over time also

argues against this explanation.

Causal Effect of Anxiety on Cognitive Status?

A case can be made that these data implicate anxiety

directly or indirectly in the causal pathway to dementia. A

direct pathway would implicate anxiety in the biologic pro-

cesses underlying dementia, whereas an indirect pathway

would implicate anxiety in affecting lifestyle, for example,

which then in turn has biologic effects. Alternatively, both

anxiety and dementia may share some underlying biological

mechanism.

Evidence linking anxiety to dementia is distal from pathol-

ogy. Although not previously reported for dementia, associa-

tions with anxiety have been reported for Parkinson’s disease

in prospective as well as case control and register studies

(32–34). Whether dementia and Parkinson’s disease have sim-

TABLE 4. Linear Regression of CAMCOG Subscales on Trait Anxiety in 965 Men With Complete Covariate Data

CAMCOG Subscale Mean (SD)

Model

Adjusted for Age

Adjusted for Age 1

Vascular Risk

Factorsa

Adjusted for Age 1

Vascular Risk and

GHQ

Adjusted for Age 1

Vascular Risk and

NART

Full Adjustment

Orientation 20.33 (1.41) 20.075 0.001 0.008 0.058 0.064

(20.342, 0.192) (20.271, 0.269) (20.263, 0.278) (20.213, 0.328) (20.207, 0.336)

0.58 0.99 0.96 0.68 0.64

Language

comprehension

20.14 (1.16) 20.001 0.013 0.018 0.054 0.058

(20.267, 0.266) (20.257, 0.284) (20.253, 0.289) (20.218, 0.326) (20.215, 0.330)

1.00 0.92 0.90 0.70 0.68

Language expression 20.49 (2.32) 0.040 0.108 0.103 0.161 0.155

(20.230, 0.309) (20.164, 0.380) (20.170, 0.376) (20.112, 0.434) (20.119, 0.429)

0.77 0.44 0.46 0.25 0.27

Remote memory 0.09 (1.08) 20.021 20.016 20.018 20.014 20.016

(20.283, 0.241) (20.282, 0.249) (20.284, 0.248) (20.281, 0.253) (20.284, 0.253)

0.88 0.90 0.90 0.92 0.91

Recent memory 20.76 (0.68) 0.047 0.107 0.104 0.110 0.108

(20.216, 0.310) (20.160, 0.373) (20.164, 0.371) (20.159, 0.379) (20.162, 0.377)

0.73 0.43 0.45 0.42 0.43

Learning: Recall and

recognition

20.95 (2.43) 20.291 20.234 20.230 20.179 20.177

(20.551, 20.032) (20.495, 0.028) (20.491, 0.032) (20.441, 0.083) (20.439, 0.086)

0.028 0.08 0.09 0.18 0.19

Attention 20.01 (1.43) 20.115 20.073 20.082 20.062 20.070

(20.379, 0.149) (20.341, 0.195) (20.350, 0.187) (20.332, 0.208) (20.341, 0.200)

0.39 0.59 0.55 0.65 0.61

Praxis 20.43 (1.66) 20.259 20.220 20.213 20.177 20.172

(20.521, 0.004) (20.485, 0.046) (20.480, 0.053) (20.444, 0.090) (20.440, 0.096)

0.053 0.11 0.12 0.19 0.21

Calculation 20.06 (0.50) 20.161 20.121 20.123 20.060 20.064

(20.424, 0.102) (20.387, 0.146) (20.391, 0.144) (20.327, 0.207) (20.332, 0.204)

0.23 0.38 0.37 0.66 0.64

Abstract thinking 20.06 (1.74) 0.141 0.132 0.119 0.128 0.116

(20.120, 0.401) (20.133, 0.400) (20.147, 0.385) (20.140, 0.395) (20.152, 0.384)

0.29 0.33 0.38 0.35 0.37

Perception 20.36 (1.72) 20.066 0.017 20.026 0.049 0.038

(20.327, 0.195) (20.281, 0.248) (20.291, 0.238) (20.215, 0.313) (20.226, 0.303)

0.62 0.90 0.85 0.72 0.78

Total CAMCOG

score

22.73 (9.77) 20.771 20.139 20.169 0.414 0.373

(23.411, 1.869) (22.802, 2.524) (22.840, 2.502) (22.255, 3.084) (22.303, 3.049)

0.57 0.92 0.90 0.76 0.78

a Vascular risk factors: social class, marital status, smoking, alcohol consumption, blood pressure, body mass index, total cholesterol, previous vascular disease.

SD 5 standard deviation; CAMCOG 5 Cambridge Cognitive Examination of the Elderly; GHQ 5 general health questionnaire; NART 5 National Adult

Reading Test.

J. GALLACHER et al.

664 Psychosomatic Medicine 71:659–666 (2009)Tudalen 57



ilar etiologies remains an issue of debate (35). Associations

found here relating anxiety to nonvascular impairment and to

decline in recall and recognition are consistent with a greater

effect on Alzheimer’s disease compared with vascular demen-

tia. However, neither of these strands of evidence excludes a

common underlying biological process.

Anxiety has also been shown to be associated with cogni-

tive decline after 3 years in elderly patients, although numbers

were small (2). These findings were not confirmed in the

present study. This may be due to more distant and so less

accurate anxiety assessment in our community sample or to

greater opportunity for reverse causality in the patient sample.

Against a causal interpretation is the lack of a robust associ-

ation with cognitive decline as assessed by the CAMCOG and its

subscales. Although an association was found with the change

in “learning memory” subscale, and this would be consistent

with an effect of anxiety on nonvascular dementia in partic-

ular, the association was not robust to adjustment. The asso-

ciation with praxis was less convincing and, given the number

of hypotheses tested, may have been a chance effect. Never-

theless, this was a conservative test as 17 men with dementia

(24% of available cases) were excluded from the analysis due

to the unavailability of cognitive decline data.

Also, against a causal interpretation is the absence of a

convincing candidate biological mechanism linking anxiety

level with cognitive impairment. The suggestion that APOE

may be linked to increased anxiety as well risk of dementia

(36) was not supported here. However, if an association had

been found, this would have more strongly supported the

common underlying pathway hypothesis. Other candidate

mechanisms involve the hypothalamic-pituitary-adrenal axis

and various neuropeptides (37). The idea of a common bio-

logic pathway linking both anxiety and depression to dementia

is attractive. Serotonergic pathways have been implicated in

both depression and anxiety and both may now be considered

risk factors for dementia (38). For anxiety and/or depression to

be linked noncausally to depression is not uninformative.

Pharmacologic interventions for anxiety might still have some

cognitive benefit depending how far upstream the target

mechanism. An identified common underlying pathway would

also provide insight into the biologic complexity underlying

these conditions and offer new directions for research.

The analysis suggests a nonlinear association over the

range of anxiety scores. Although we consider the study

underpowered to describe precisely the shape of the nonlinear

relationship, it may be inferred that at lower levels of anxiety,

as measured by the STAI, there is no change in risk with

increasing anxiety. It may be that the STAI scale is not

sensitive to the lower range of anxiety score or that larger

studies may show that a linear model or a different knot point

is more appropriate. Finally, the size of the ORs should not be

misinterpreted. They represent a maximal effect of anxiety,

i.e., the change in risk over a wide range of higher anxiety

scores rather than per unit change in anxiety raw score. Nev-

ertheless, the associations represent a substantial increase in

risk over a range of anxiety scores commonly found in the

general population.

CONCLUSION

High trait anxiety, an “exposure” experienced by many and

not just a small number of persons with anxiety disorder, has

been shown to be associated with CIND and dementia. The

extent to which these associations are independent of depres-

sion is unknown although adjustment was made for psycho-

logical distress as measured by the GHQ30. Given the comor-

bidity between anxiety and depression, these data suggest that

previously reported associations of depression with dementia

are complex and that further prospective studies are needed in

which both anxiety and depression are assessed at baseline.

The population base of these findings suggests that they have

broad relevance and that this is an area deserving much closer

attention.

This research was funded by the Alzheimer’s Society. Baseline data

were obtained from the Caerphilly Study Archive, Department of

Social Medicine, Bristol University, UK. Dr. John Gallacher as

Principal Investigator has full access to all data of the study and

takes responsibility for the integrity of the data and accuracy. We

would like to thank Truda Bell and her field team for their excellent

work in collecting these data along with members of the cohort for

their generous cooperation.

REFERENCES

1. Bierman EJ, Comijs HC, Jonker C, Beekman AT. Effects of anxiety
versus depression on cognition in later life. Am J Geriatr Psychiatry
2005;13:686–93.

2. Sinoff G, Werner P. Anxiety disorder and accompanying subjective
memory loss in the elderly as a predictor of future cognitive decline. Int
J Geriatr Psychiatry 2003;18:951–9.

3. Palmer K, Berger AK, Monastero R, Winblad B, Backman L, Fratiglioni
L. Predictors of progression from mild cognitive impairment to Alzhei-
mer disease. Neurology 2007;68:1596–602.

4. Wilson RS, Bienias JL, Mendes de Leon CF, Evans DA, Bennett DA.
Negative affect and mortality in older persons. Am J Epidemiol 2003;
158:827–35.

5. Wilson RS, Barnes LL, Bennett DA, Li Y, Bienias JL, Mendes de Leon
CF, Evans DA. Proneness to psychological distress and risk of Alzheimer
disease in a biracial community. Neurology 2005;64:380–2.

6. Modrego PJ, Ferrandez J. Depression in patients with mild cognitive
impairment increases the risk of developing dementia of Alzheimer type:
a prospective cohort study. Arch Neurol 2004;61:1290–3.

7. Gatz JL, Tyas SL, St JP, Montgomery P. Do depressive symptoms predict
Alzheimer’s disease and dementia? J Gerontol A Biol Sci Med Sci
2005;60:744–7.

8. Barnes DE, Alexopoulos GS, Lopez OL, Williamson JD, Yaffe K.
Depressive symptoms, vascular disease, and mild cognitive impairment:
findings from the Cardiovascular Health Study. Arch Gen Psychiatry
2006;63:273–9.

9. Henderson AS, Korten AE, Jacomb PA, Mackinnon AJ, Jorm AF, Christensen
H, Rodgers B. The course of depression in the elderly: a longitudinal
community-based study in Australia. Psychol Med 1997;27:119–29.

10. Palsson S, Aevarsson O, Skoog I. Depression, cerebral atrophy, cognitive
performance and incidence of dementia. Population study of 85-year-
olds. Br J Psychiatry 1999;174:249–53.

11. Jorm AF. History of depression as a risk factor for dementia: an updated
review. Aust N Z J Psychiatry 2001;35:776–81.

12. Lenze EJ. Comorbidity of depression and anxiety in the elderly. Curr
Psychiatry Rep 2003;5:62–7.

13. Preisig M, Merikangas KR, Angst J. Clinical significance and comorbid-
ity of subthreshold depression and anxiety in the community. Acta
Psychiatr Scand 2001;104:96–103.

14. Schoevers RA, Beekman AT, Deeg DJ, Jonker C, van Tilburg W.

ANXIETY AND DEMENTIA

665Psychosomatic Medicine 71:659–666 (2009) Tudalen 58



Comorbidity and risk-patterns of depression, generalised anxiety disorder
and mixed anxiety-depression in later life: results from the AMSTEL
study. Int J Geriatr Psychiatry 2003;18:994–1001.

15. Krasucki CG. Anxiety as the reason why previous psychiatric illness is a
risk factor for dementia. Age Ageing 1999;28:238–9.

16. Spielberger C. The State Trait Anxiety Inventory. Menlo Park,
California: Mindgarden; 2006.

17. Goldberg DP, Hillier VF. A scaled version of the General Health Ques-
tionnaire. Psychol Med 1979;9:139–45.

18. Roth M, Tym E, Mountjoy CQ, Huppert FA, Hendrie H, Verma S,
Goddard R. CAMDEX. A standardised instrument for the diagnosis of
mental disorder in the elderly with special reference to the early detection
of dementia. Br J Psychiatry 1986;149:698–709.

19. Roth M, Tym E, Mountjoy CQ, Huppert FA, Hendrie H, Verma S,
Goddard R. CAMDEX. A standardised instrument for the diagnosis of
mental disorder in the elderly with special reference to the early detection
of dementia. Br J Psychiatry 1986;149:698–709.

20. Rosen WG, Terry RD, Fuld PA, Katzman R, Peck A. Pathological
verification of ischemic score in differentiation of dementias. Ann Neurol
1980;7:486–8.

21. Dubois B, Slachevsky A, Litvan I, Pillon B. The FAB: a frontal assess-
ment battery at bedside. Neurology 2000;55:1621–6.

22. Morris JC. The clinical dementia rating (CDR): current version and
scoring rules. Neurology 1993;43:2412–4.

23. Jorm AF, Jacomb PA. The informant questionnaire on cognitive decline
in the elderly (IQCODE): socio-demographic correlates, reliability, va-
lidity and some norms. Psychol Med 1989;19:1015–22.

24. American Psychiatric Association. Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of
Mental Disorders, 4th edition. Arlington, VA: American Psychiatric
Association; 1994.

25. Nyenhuis DL, Gorelick PB, Geenen EJ, Smith CA, Gencheva E, Freels S,
Toledo-Morrell L. The pattern of neuropsychological deficits in vascular
cognitive impairment-no dementia (vascular CIND). Clin Neuropsychol
2004;18:41–9.

26. Peters KR, Graf P, Hayden S, Feldman H. Neuropsychological subgroups
of cognitively-impaired-not-demented (CIND) individuals: delineation,
reliability, and predictive validity. J Clin Exp Neuropsychol 2005;27:
164–88.

27. Fish M, Bayer A, Gallacher J, Bell T, Pickering J, Pedro S, Dunstan F,

Ben-Shlomo Y, Ebrahim S. Prevalence and pattern of cognitive impair-

ment in a community cohort of men in South Wales: methodology and

findings from the Caerphilly prospective study. Neuroepidemiology

2008;30:25–33.

28. Gallacher JE, Elwood PC, Hopkinson C, Rabbitt PM, Stollery BT,

Sweetnam PM, Brayne C, Huppert FA. Cognitive function in the Caer-

philly study: associations with age social class, education and mood. Eur

J Epidemiol 1999;15:161–9.

29. Stansfeld SA, Gallacher JE, Sharp DS, Yarnell JW. Social factors and

minor psychiatric disorder in middle-aged men: a validation study and a

population survey. Psychol Med 1991;21:157–67.

30. Small GW, Chen ST, Komo S, Ercoli L, Miller K, Siddarth P, Kaplan A,

Dorsey D, Lavretsky H, Saxena S, Bookheimer SY. Memory self-

appraisal and depressive symptoms in people at genetic risk for Alzhei-

mer’s disease. Int J Geriatr Psychiatry 2001;16:1071–7.

31. Krasucki C, Howard R, Mann A. The relationship between anxiety

disorders and age. Int J Geriatr Psychiatry 1998;13:79–99.

32. Weisskopf MG, Chen H, Schwarzschild MA, Kawachi I, Ascherio A.

Prospective study of phobic anxiety and risk of Parkinson’s disease. Mov

Disord 2003;18:646–51.

33. Nilsson FM, Kessing LV, Bolwig TG. Increased risk of developing

Parkinson’s disease for patients with major affective disorder: a register

study. Acta Psychiatr Scand 2001;104:380–6.

34. Shiba M, Bower JH, Maraganore DM, McDonnell SK, Peterson BJ,

Ahlskog JE, Schaid DJ, Rocca WA. Anxiety disorders and depressive

disorders preceding Parkinson’s disease: a case-control study. Mov Dis-

ord 2000;15:669–77.

35. Ben-Shlomo Y, Whitehead AS, Smith GD. Parkinson’s, Alzheimer’s, and

motor neurone disease. BMJ 1996;312:724.

36. Raber J. Role of apolipoprotein E in anxiety. Neural Plast 2007;2007:

91236.

37. Mathew SJ, Price RB, Charney DS. Recent advances in the neurobiology

of anxiety disorders: implications for novel therapeutics. Am J Med

Genet C Semin Med Genet 2008;148:89–98.

38. Gordon JA, Hen R. The serotonergic system and anxiety. Neuromolecu-

lar Med 2004;5:27–40.

J. GALLACHER et al.

666 Psychosomatic Medicine 71:659–666 (2009)Tudalen 59



Dunstan, James White, John Yarnell and Yoav Ben-Shlomo
John Gallacher, Antony Bayer, Gordon Lowe, Mark Fish, Janet Pickering, Sofia Pedro, Frank

in the Caerphilly Prospective Study
Is Sticky Blood Bad for the Brain?: Hemostatic and Inflammatory Systems and Dementia

Print ISSN: 1079-5642. Online ISSN: 1524-4636 
Copyright © 2009 American Heart Association, Inc. All rights reserved.

Greenville Avenue, Dallas, TX 75231
is published by the American Heart Association, 7272Arteriosclerosis, Thrombosis, and Vascular Biology 

doi: 10.1161/ATVBAHA.109.197368
2009;

2010;30:599-604; originally published online December 3,Arterioscler Thromb Vasc Biol. 

http://atvb.ahajournals.org/content/30/3/599

World Wide Web at: 
The online version of this article, along with updated information and services, is located on the

http://atvb.ahajournals.org/content/suppl/2010/02/18/ATVBAHA.109.197368.DC1.html
Data Supplement (unedited) at:

 
http://atvb.ahajournals.org//subscriptions/
at:

is onlineArteriosclerosis, Thrombosis, and Vascular Biology  Information about subscribing to Subscriptions:
 
http://www.lww.com/reprints

 Information about reprints can be found online at: Reprints:
 

document.Question and Answer
Permissions and Rightspage under Services. Further information about this process is available in the

which permission is being requested is located, click Request Permissions in the middle column of the Web
Copyright Clearance Center, not the Editorial Office. Once the online version of the published article for 

 can be obtained via RightsLink, a service of theArteriosclerosis, Thrombosis, and Vascular Biologyin
 Requests for permissions to reproduce figures, tables, or portions of articles originally publishedPermissions:

 by guest on October 28, 2013http://atvb.ahajournals.org/Downloaded from  by guest on October 28, 2013http://atvb.ahajournals.org/Downloaded from  by guest on October 28, 2013http://atvb.ahajournals.org/Downloaded from  by guest on October 28, 2013http://atvb.ahajournals.org/Downloaded from  by guest on October 28, 2013http://atvb.ahajournals.org/Downloaded from  by guest on October 28, 2013http://atvb.ahajournals.org/Downloaded from  by guest on October 28, 2013http://atvb.ahajournals.org/Downloaded from  by guest on October 28, 2013http://atvb.ahajournals.org/Downloaded from Tudalen 60



Clinical and Population Studies

Is Sticky Blood Bad for the Brain?
Hemostatic and Inflammatory Systems and Dementia in the Caerphilly

Prospective Study

John Gallacher, Antony Bayer, Gordon Lowe, Mark Fish, Janet Pickering, Sofia Pedro, Frank Dunstan,
James White, John Yarnell, Yoav Ben-Shlomo

Objective—Hemostasis and inflammation have been implicated in dementia. This study investigates the role of specific

hemostatic and inflammatory pathways with incident vascular and nonvascular dementia.

Methods and Results—This was a prospective study of a population sample of men aged 65 to 84 years, with baseline

assessment of hemostatic and inflammatory factors and cognition measured 17 years later. The sample included

865 men (59 had dementia and 112 had cognitive impairment, not dementia), free of vascular disease at baseline

and for whom hemostatic and inflammatory marker data were available and cognitive status was known. A total

of 15 hemostatic and 6 inflammatory markers were assessed. Factor analysis was used to identify hemostatic

subsystems. The National Institute of Neurological Disorders and Stroke–Association Internationale pour la

Recherche et l’Enseignement en Neurologie criteria were used to identify vascular dementia. By using standardized

(z) scores for hemostatic and inflammatory markers, and after adjustment for age and risk factors, vascular

dementia was associated with fibrinogen (hazard ratio [HR], 1.68; 95% confidence interval [CI], 1.02–2.76), factor

VIII (HR, 1.79; 95% CI, 1.09 –3.00), and plasminogen activator inhibitor 1 (HR, 3.13; 95% CI, 1.73–5.70). For

vascular dementia, the HR risk from high levels of all three hemostatic variables (fibrinogen, factor VIII, and

plasminogen activator inhibitor 1) was 2.97 (P,0.001). Inflammatory factors were not associated with vascular

dementia.

Conclusion—The associations of these hemostatic markers with vascular dementia may implicate clot formation as the

primary mechanism and are consistent with a microinfarct model of vascular dementia. (Arterioscler Thromb Vasc

Biol. 2010;30:599-604.)

Key Words: dementia n hemostasis n inflammation n cognition n aging

Hemostasis and the inflammatory response are complex

and interrelated processes that are associated with a

variety of phenotypes, including cardiovascular diseases.1

There is limited case-control evidence associating markers of

hemostasis and inflammation with dementia.2–6 Limited pro-

spective data come from the Rotterdam Study, which found

that fibrinogen, but not C-reactive protein (CRP), was asso-

ciated with incident dementia at the age of 6 years.7 There-

fore, further studies of hemostatic and inflammatory markers

and risk of dementia (both vascular and nonvascular) are

required.

See accompanying article on page 461

Hemostasis involves a delicate balance of several closely

related subsystems or pathways. It is possible, therefore, that

associations with these responses reflect the impact of spe-

cific pathways rather than of individual biomarkers. One area

of interest is whether hemostatic markers can be analyzed

within the context of the coagulation pathways that they

represent and whether these pathways can be used to identify

more closely the mechanisms associated with cognitive im-

pairment. In the Caerphilly Prospective Study, a wide range

of available hemostatic markers allows the comparative

influence of several pathways to be assessed.8

Methods

The Study Population
Between 1979 and 1983, all men aged 45 to 59 years within the

locality of Caerphilly in South Wales, England, were invited to

participate. Of the 2818 men found eligible, 2512 (89.1%) were

recruited. For the second examination (1985), the original cohort was

supplemented with all men of a similar age who had moved into the

Received February 17, 2009; revision accepted November 6, 2009.
From the Department of Epidemiology, Statistics and Public Health, Centre for Health Sciences Research, Cardiff University, Cardiff, Wales (J.G.,

M.F., J.P., S.P., F.D., and J.W.); the Department of Geriatric Medicine, Centre for Health Sciences Research, Cardiff University, Cardiff, Wales (A.B.);
the Division of Cardiovascular and Medical Sciences, University of Glasgow, Glasgow Royal Infirmary, Glasgow, Scotland (G.L.); the Department of
Epidemiology, Queen’s University, Belfast, Ireland (J.Y.); and the Department of Social Medicine, University of Bristol, Bristol, England (Y.B.-S.).

Correspondence to John Gallacher, PhD, Department of Epidemiology, Statistics and Public Health, Centre for Health Sciences Research, Heath Park,
Cardiff CF14 4XN, Wales, England. E-mail Gallacher@cf.ac.uk

© 2010 American Heart Association, Inc.

Arterioscler Thromb Vasc Biol is available at http://atvb.ahajournals.org DOI: 10.1161/ATVBAHA.109.197368

599Tudalen 61



area since the first examination. A total of 2398 men were seen and
provided blood samples.8 Data on hemostatic and inflammatory
markers were available for 2318 men. Not all the hemostatic and
inflammatory markers were assessed for all men, because of pro-
gressive depletion of stored plasma samples.9

At the third (1993), fourth (1996), and fifth (2004) examinations,
cognition was assessed. At the fifth examination, when the men were
aged 65 to 84 years, cognitive assessment was used to identify men
eligible for neurological examination to ascertain dementia. In-
formed consent was obtained from every participant, and the study
was approved by the Gwent Research Ethics Committee.

Hemostatic and Inflammatory Markers
A fasting blood sample was obtained during the second examination.
In a sample anticoagulated with potassium EDTA, fibrinogen was
measured using heat precipitation nephelometry; plasma viscosity,
with a Coulter-Harkness capillary viscometer; white blood cell
count, in an automated cell counter; and a2-macroglobulin and
a1-antitrypsin, as previously described.8

Activated partial thromboplastin time, activated protein C ratio,
fibrinogen, factor VII, and factor VIII (FVIII) were assayed in an
MDA-180 coagulometer (Organon Teknika, Cambridge, England).8

Fibrin formation time and reaction clotting time were measured by
thromboelastography.10 Activated factor XII, prothrombin fragment
112 (Frag112), thrombin-antithrombin complexes, tissue plasmin-
ogen activator antigen, von Willebrand factor antigen (VWF), and
fibrin D-dimer were assayed by enzyme-linked immunosorbent
assay8,11; and plasminogen activator inhibitor 1 (PAI-1) was assayed
using a chromogenic assay.8 High-sensitivity CRP was assayed by
immunonephelometry.8 Interleukin 6 (IL-6) was assayed using a
high-sensitivity enzyme-linked immunosorbent assay.11

Ascertainment of Dementia
Cognitive screening at the fifth examination was used to identify
men eligible for a neurological examination.12 The criteria were as
follows: all men whose Cambridge Cognitive Examination score was
lower than 83 or whose decline in Cambridge Cognitive Examination
score between any two cognitive assessments was greater than 10
points or who were unable to complete the CAMCOG were eligible
for a neurological examination. For nearly all men, the neurological
examination occurred within two months of cognitive screening.

The criteria for dementia and cognitive impairment not dementia
(CIND) are detailed elsewhere.12 Briefly, the neurological examina-
tion included the Cambridge Mental Disorders of the Elderly
Examination, a cardiovascular and neurological examination13; the
Rosen-Modified Hachinski Ischaemic Score (HIS)14; the Frontal
Assessment Battery15; and the Clinical Dementia Rating.16 With the
subject’s consent, someone who knew him or her well (usually the
next of kin) was identified and approached to complete an Informant
Questionnaire on Cognitive Decline in the Elderly and the modified
Cambridge Mental Disorders of the Elderly Examination informant
interview.17 Additional questions were asked when appropriate about
symptom onset and progression. All available general practitioner
and hospital records were reviewed and summarized, with particular
attention given to mention of patients’ mental state and relevant
investigations. All subjects who had died were identified by “flag-
ging” at the National Health Service Central Register in Southport,
and their cause of death was noted. Further information was sought
on those with a cause of death recorded as dementia or Alzheimer’s
disease (AD). Subjects with vascular dementia were required to fulfil
National Institute of Neurological Disorders and Stroke–Association
Internationale pour la Recherche et l’Enseignement en Neurologie
criteria for possible or probable vascular dementia.18 Subjects not
meeting the full dementia criteria and with an HIS of 3 or higher
(including history of cerebrovascular disease or consistent lateraliz-
ing neurological signs) were classified as having vascular CIND.12

Subjects who fulfilled the National Institute of Neurological and
Communicative Disorders–Alzheimer’s Disease and Related Disor-
ders Association criteria for probable AD19 and who had no clinical
features suggestive of cerebrovascular disease (HIS #2 and absence
of vascular disease on available neuroimaging) or other causative

disorder were classified as having AD. Subjects with a presentation

or clinical course in keeping with AD and features to suggest

cerebrovascular disease (operationalized as an HIS $3 or neuroim-

aging evidence of infarction) were diagnosed as having mixed

dementia.20 Subjects fulfilling the standardized diagnostic criteria for

other dementia-like conditions were categorized accordingly. Sub-

jects with CIND were classified by cause only if likely cause was

apparent. Because of small numbers, all nonvascular conditions were

combined for the purpose of analysis.

Statistical Analysis
Hemostatic and inflammatory markers were log transformed where

appropriate, and all markers were standardized (ie, z scores were

calculated). Associations of individual biomarkers with dementia

and CIND were performed by Cox regression (STATA 10 software;

Statacorp, Tex). Adjustment was made for age, social class, systolic

blood pressure, body mass index, smoking status (never smoked,

ex-smoker, or current smoker), total cholesterol level, and alcohol

consumption. Men with previous vascular disease, intermittent

claudication, or stroke were not included. Analyses were repeated

adjusting for premorbid cognitive function using the National Adult

Reading Test score obtained at the third examination. The Registrar

General’s classification of social class is a definition of socioeco-

nomic status widely used in England. Social class was modeled as a

4-level indicator variable composed of these levels: I and II, III

nonmanual, III manual, and IV and V. To investigate the possibility

of a prodromal effect of dementia, Cox regressions were repeated,

not including men with evidence of early cognitive decline. Evidence

of early cognitive decline was defined as cognitive scores declining

consistently from the first cognitive examination.21 This is a strong

test of the prodromal hypothesis; however, it excludes men whose

decline began soon after baseline (second) examination and men

whose decline is not the result of a dementing process.

To test the hypothesis that associations with individual biomarkers

reflect the operation of specific coagulation pathways on vascular

dementia, structural equation modeling (SEM) was used. SEM

allows variables to act dependently and independently and enables

the putative causal pathway to be modelled. A two-step procedure

was used. First, specific coagulation pathways were identified by

exploratory factor analysis. Structural modelling (using EQS soft-

ware) was then used to estimate the association between the latent

variables representing specific coagulation pathways and dementia.

The fit statistics used to evaluate the fit of the data to the

hypothesized coagulation pathways and dementia were the compar-

ative fit index (CFI), the root mean square error of approximation

(RMSEA), and the standardized root mean square residual (SRMR).

The SEM glossary describes the coefficients that are shown (Figure).

These are as follow: (1) standardized path coefficients (single-

headed arrows) that are standardized regression coefficients and

indicate the association between dependent and independent vari-

ables, (2) standardized residual covariances (double-headed arrows)

indicating associations between independent variables not accounted

for in the model, and (3) standardized residual variances (adjacent to

independent variables) indicating measurement error for the ob-

served independent variables. An introduction to SEM is provided as

electronically available supplementary material (available online at

http://atvb.ahajournals.org).

Results
Of the 2318 men with data on hemostatic and inflammatory

markers, 750 were known to have died before the current phase

of the study, leaving 1568 considered to be alive; 1429 of these

men were eligible for follow-up, with 1137 (79.6%) successfully

followed up and cognitively screened. Of these men, 71 were

diagnosed as having dementia, 171 were diagnosed as having

CIND, and 895 were cognitively healthy. A further 21 men were

diagnosed as having dementia from medical records, resulting in

the cognitive status being available for 1158 men. Of these men,

600 Arterioscler Thromb Vasc Biol March 2010

Tudalen 62



865 were free of vascular disease at baseline and available for

analysis, of whom 112 had cognitive impairment and 59 had

dementia. If men with evidence of early decline are omitted, 744

were available for analysis, of whom 85 were cognitively

impaired and a further 42 had dementia. The maximum

follow-up was 20 years; however, it averaged 17.3 years (SD,

1.3 years). For the exploratory factor analysis, 476 men had

complete data for all hemostatic variables. For structural mod-

eling, 602 men had complete data.

The baseline characteristics of the 1568 men who were

alive at the beginning of the study show that men who were

not followed up were more likely to be of manual social class

(34.8% vs 62.0%; P,0.01) and more likely to be current

smokers (44.5% vs 35.9%; P,0.01) and to have a lower

cognitive function (National Adult Reading Test mean, 21 vs

25; P,0.01). They did not differ significantly in age or body

mass index, and any differences in blood pressure were small.

Regarding hemostatic markers, all differences were slight,

with men who were not followed up having a longer activated

partial thromboplastin time (mean, 33.4 vs 32.9 seconds;

P50.04) and higher levels of D-dimer (mean, 82.2 vs 78.0

ng/mL; P50.05), factor XIIa (mean, 3.23 vs 3.02 ng/mL;

P50.04), and tissue plasminogen activator antigen (mean,

11.9 vs 11.2 ng/mL; P,0.01). Men who were not followed

up also had slightly higher levels of the inflammatory

markers a2-macroglobulin (mean, 15.7 g/100 g vs 15.2

g/100g; P50.03) and a1-antitrypsin (mean, 16.7 g/100 g vs

16.1 g/100 g; P,0.01) and substantially higher levels of IL-6

(mean, 4.91 vs 2.20 pg/mL; P,0.01). The following markers

required log transformation for the analysis: D-dimer,

Frag112, thrombin-antithrombin complex, VWF, plasma

viscosity, CRP, IL-6, and a2-macroglobulin.

Associations with cognitive impairment (CIND and de-

mentia) were investigated in 865 men free of vascular disease

at baseline (Table 1). After adjustment for age, social class,

systolic blood pressure, body mass index, smoking status,

total cholesterol level, and alcohol consumption, an associa-

tion with vascular impairment was found for fibrinogen.

Evidence of association was also found for PAI-1. There was

no evidence of association with any of the inflammatory

markers. For nonvascular impairment, there was no evidence

of increased risk with any of the hemostatic markers or

inflammatory markers, although factor VII appeared to have

a protective effect.

The analysis was repeated for dementia. For the hemostatic

markers, vascular dementia was associated with fibrinogen,

FVIII, and PAI-1. The analysis was repeated, excluding men

with evidence of early cognitive decline. The smaller num-

bers reduced the power of the analysis, but the point estimates

were closely comparable to those found in the sample as a

whole, with the strongest associations being found for fibrin-

ogen (hazard ratio [HR], 1.79; 95% confidence interval [CI],

0.98-3.28; P50.06), FVIII (HR, 1.77; 95% CI, 0.88–3.57;

P50.11), and PAI-1 (HR, 2.68; 95% CI, 1.22–5.88; P50.04).

For nonvascular dementia, evidence of a protective associa-

tion was found for the hemostatic marker Frag112 and for

the inflammatory marker plasma viscosity.

The associations of FVIII, fibrinogen, and PAI-1 with

vascular dementia may either reflect a general effect of the

coagulation cascade or identify specific coagulation pathways

that confer increased risk. These alternatives were investi-

gated by including FVIII, fibrinogen, and PAI-1 in the same

analysis to show whether their effects were independent of

one another. The presence of a general hemostatic effect

would be indicated by the absence of independent associa-

tions. The analysis was consistent with each biomarker

making some independent contribution to the association:

fibrinogen, HR, 2.11 (95% CI, 0.88–5.04; P50.09); FVIII,

HR, 2.09 (95% CI, 1.02–4.31; P50.04); and PAI-1, HR, 4.39

(95% CI, 1.97–9.77; P,0.001). The combined independent

effects of these biomarkers on risk for vascular dementia was

2.97 (95% CI, 1.38–4.56; P,0.001).

The SEM was used to further investigate the relative

contribution to risk of vascular dementia of the coagulation

pathways represented by the available hemostatic markers.

Exploratory factor analysis found four statistical factors

corresponding to components of the coagulation pathway

(Table 2). The high loadings on statistical factor 1 of FVIII

(0.88) and VWF (0.82) were interpreted to represent the

FVIII/VWF complex (indicating potential for platelet and

fibrin plug formation). High loadings on statistical factor 2 of

PAI-1 (0.80) and tissue plasminogen activator antigen (0.75)

were interpreted to represent the potential for impaired

fibrinolytic activity. High loadings on statistical factor 3 of

fibrinogen (0.81) and D-dimer (0.69) were interpreted to

represent clotting activity. High loadings on statistical factor

four of thrombin-antithrombin complexes (20.75) and

Frag112 (20.77) were interpreted to represent thrombin

generation. These statistical factors were used as latent

variables for the purposes of structural modeling.

The four-factor structural model (Figure), using the two

highest loading biomarkers per latent variable as identified in

the exploratory factor analysis (Table 2, boldface), provided

a poor fit to the data (N5524, x2
22583.46, P,0.001,

Figure. Structural equation modeling analysis of hemostatic
pathways.

Gallacher et al Hemostasis and Dementia 601

Tudalen 63



CFI50.90, RMSEA50.07, SRMR50.06) and simpler mod-

els were sought. The best-fitting model used five observed

variables (yellow background) and included two latent vari-

ables (pink background) (N5602, x2
655.27, P50.51,

CFI51.00, RMSEA50.01, SRMR50.015), explaining 3.5%

of the variance in vascular dementia (Figure). The analysis

indicated that the latent variables FVIII/VWF complex

(b5.05, P,0.05) and clot formation and lysis (b5.15,

P,0.05) were associated with vascular dementia. The

observed variable PAI-1 was also independently associated

with vascular dementia (b5.08, P,0.05). If this analysis

is repeated using just the five observed variables with

no latent variables, the model fit is poor (N5602,

x2105426.59, P,0.001, CFI50.03, RMSEA50.26,

SRMR50.17).

Discussion
In this 17-year prospective study, hemostatic rather than

inflammatory markers have been shown to predict vascular

cognitive impairment and vascular dementia. Specifically,

fibrinogen, FVIII, and PAI-1, representing the coagulation

pathways of clotting activity, platelet and fibrin plug forma-

tion, and fibrinolytic potential, were identified as increasing

the risk of vascular dementia.

Strengths and Limitations
High levels of participation have been achieved throughout

the study, although the sample was composed of men only.

The sample used herein reflects an 80% response rate.

Diagnosis of cognitive status was obtained through examina-

tion of participants and medical records using standard

criteria. Hemostatic factors were assayed using standard

techniques, and internal laboratory quality assurance was

evaluated.8,11 Adjustment for a wide range of potential con-

founding variables was made. Cognitive status was not available

at baseline, but adjustment was made for premorbid cognitive

function assessed within 5 years of baseline. Men who were not

followed up were more likely to have higher levels of some

biomarkers and were more likely to be manual social class, to be

current smokers, and to have lower cognitive function. These

Table 1. Associations of Individual Hemostatic and Inflammatory Markers With Cognitive Impairment and Dementia in 865 Men Free

of Vascular Disease and Not Taking Anticoagulants at Baseline*

Type of Marker

Vascular Impairment

(n553)

Non Vascular Impairment

(n5133)

Vascular Dementia

(n527)

Non Vascular Dementia

(n526)

HR (95% CI) P Value HR (95% CI) P Value HR (95% CI) P Value HR (95% CI) P Value

Hemostatic

Fibrinogen 1.41 (1.01–1.98) 0.04 1.06 (0.80–1.26) $0.99 1.68 (1.02–2.76) 0.04 0.77 (0.47–1.28) 0.30

Factor VII 1.05 (0.74–1.50) 0.80 0.74 (0.55–1.00) 0.046 0.98 (0.61–1.55) 0.90 0.86 (0.50–1.47) 0.60

Factor VIII 1.35 (0.92–1.98) 0.10 0.88 (0.67–1.14) 0.30 1.79 (1.09–3.00) 0.02 0.96 (0.62–1.48) 0.90

von Willebrand factor antigen 1.16 (0.82–1.65) 0.40 0.93 (0.75–1.17) 0.50 1.26 (0.77–2.05) 0.40 1.03 (0.66–1.60) 0.90

von Willebrand factor activity 1.12 (0.79–1.60) 0.50 0.99 (0.80–1.23) 0.90 1.32 (0.79–2.20) 0.30 0.99 (0.66–1.47) $0.99

Factor XIIa 1.11 (0.74–1.66) 0.60 0.87 (0.64–1.18) 0.40 0.96 (0.53–1.73) 0.90 0.90 (0.52–1.57) 0.70

Activated partial

thromboplastin time

1.14 (0.87–1.49) 0.30 1.04 (0.83–1.31) 0.70 1.12 (0.87–1.45) 0.40 1.23 (0.89–1.71) 0.20

Activated protein C ratio 0.89 (0.61–1.31) 0.60 1.18 (0.86–1.62) 0.30 0.97 (0.55–1.68) 0.90 1.31 (0.72–2.37) 0.40

Reaction clotting time 1.07 (0.76–1.50) 0.70 0.92 (0.73–1.15) 0.40 1.08 (0.81–1.44) 0.60 0.98 (0.65–1.49) 0.90

Fibrin clotting time 1.10 (0.82–1.49) 0.50 1.05 (0.84–1.31) 0.70 0.90 (0.48–1.68) 0.70 1.04 (0.69–1.56) 0.90

Fragment 112 0.89 (0.56–1.41) 0.60 0.88 (0.63–1.23) 0.40 0.71 (0.41–1.24) 0.20 0.51 (0.26–0.98) 0.04

Thrombin-antithrombin

complex

0.87 (0.51–1.48) 0.60 1.12 (0.83–1.50) 0.50 0.75 (0.38–1.50) 0.40 0.79 (0.45–1.39) 0.40

Tissue plasminogen activator 1.00 (0.68–1.46) $0.99 0.90 (0.71–1.14) 0.40 1.45 (0.84–2.51) 0.20 0.95 (0.58–1.55) 0.80

Plasminogen activator

inhibitor

1.77 (1.13–2.77) 0.01 1.18 (0.88–1.60) 0.30 3.13 (1.73–5.70) ,0.001 1.43 (0.77–2.66) 0.30

D-dimer 0.99 (0.72–1.33) 0.90 1.10 (0.87–1.39) 0.40 1.09 (0.74–1.62) 0.70 1.18 (0.76–1.87) 0.50

Acute-phase inflammatory

response

Plasma viscosity 1.18 (0.80–1.76) 0.40 0.95 (0.75–1.21) 0.70 1.42 (0.82–2.47) 0.07 0.55 (0.31–0.96) 0.03

a2-Macroglobulin 0.86 (0.58–1.29) 0.50 1.08 (0.85–1.37) 0.60 0.68 (0.36–1.29) 0.20 0.99 (0.57–1.73) $0.99

a1-Antitrypsin 1.04 (0.71–1.52) 0.80 0.91 (0.71–1.17) 0.50 1.14 (0.65–2.00) 0.60 1.33 (0.82–2.17) 0.30

White blood cell count 0.95 (0.63–1.44) 0.80 0.92 (0.71–1.19) 0.50 1.40 (0.80–2.42) 0.20 0.70 (0.42–1.19) 0.20

C-reactive protein 1.04 (0.66–1.64) 0.90 0.97 (0.74–1.28) 0.90 1.29 (0.69–2.40) 0.40 0.78 (0.42–1.44) 0.40

Interleukin 6 0.90 (0.54–1.49) 0.70 0.87 (0.63–1.21) 0.40 1.05 (0.54–2.04) 0.90 0.66 (0.32–1.35) 0.30

CI indicates confidence interval; HR, hazard ratio.

*Data adjusted for age, social class, systolic pressure, body mass index, smoking, total cholesterol, and alcohol consumption.

602 Arterioscler Thromb Vasc Biol March 2010

Tudalen 64



biases indicate that the current analysis is likely to be conserva-

tive. The use of SEM to explore the effect of specific hemostatic

pathways is limited to the variables available to the study and

does not represent the influence of the coagulation cascade as a

whole. Although SEM generated a biologically plausible anal-

ysis, the analysis requires confirmation elsewhere. Although

sufficiently powered for its intended purpose, the study is small

for the present purpose. Despite this, consistent and robust

associations were found. However, much larger studies are

required for precise estimates of risk to be available.

Interpretation
These analyses address two basic mechanisms that may be

related to risk of dementia: inflammation and coagulation.

The hypothesis that inflammatory processes increase risk of

nonvascular dementia22, 23 was not supported. This lack of

association may be the result of lack of power or the

nonvascular dementia category, including men with mixed

dementia and men with AD. Alternatively, it may be that

previously reported associations of cognitive decline with

inflammatory markers indicate the effects of incipient demen-

tia.24 An apparently protective effect of plasma viscosity for

nonvascular dementia is anomalous and likely to be a chance

effect.

The hypothesis that hemostasis affects vascular dementia

was strongly supported. Our findings confirm those of several

case-control studies showing that hemostatic markers are

related to vascular dementia in particular,4,6 and dementia in

general.2 Our findings extend this evidence to show prospec-

tively over 17 years that hemostatic markers are associated

with vascular dementia but not nonvascular dementia. Previ-

ous prospective evidence has shown that fibrinogen, but not

CRP, was associated with vascular dementia.7 Our findings

extend this evidence to FVIII, PAI-1, and the inflammatory

marker plasma viscosity.

Of particular interest are the mechanisms by which hemo-

static factors affect risk of vascular dementia. SEM indicated

that coagulation pathways (represented by latent variables)

provided a better model fit than individual biomarkers. Two

coagulation pathways conferred increased risk of vascular

dementia. The association with the latent variable “FVIII/

VWF complex” implicates the formation of the platelet and

fibrin plug, whereas the association with the latent variable

“clot formation and lysis” implicates the formation and lysis

of the fibrin plug. The association of PAI-1 suggests an

additional risk due to impaired fibrinolytic activity. The

relative strengths of these associations suggest that clot

formation and lysis have the major role. The presence of error

covariance linking FVIII/VWF complex and clot formation

and lysis (0.27) is consistent with the association of primary

with secondary hemostasis. In contrast to the findings in the

Rotterdam Study, no independent association was found of

vascular dementia with D-dimer, although D-dimer did con-

tribute to the structural model. The association of impaired

fibrinolytic potential with vascular dementia implicates fibri-

nolysis. Whether this is the result of inhibition of fibrinolysis

by PAI-1 or is a response to higher coagulation levels is

unknown.

Our findings may be attributed to residual confounding.

However, the fact that robust associations are found with

some hemostatic markers and not others, and with vascular

and not nonvascular dementia, argues against this conclusion.

Associations with the hemostatic markers are unlikely to

reflect reverse causality because attenuation by adjustment

for premorbid cognitive function was generally slight and in

some cases the association was strengthened. However, all

three hemostatic markers associated with vascular dementia

are also acute-phase protein reactants.1,25 Therefore, it is

possible that the associations of fibrinogen, FVIII, and PAI-1

with vascular dementia simply reflect associations with other

inflammatory markers rather than associations with hemosta-

sis or fibrinolysis. However, the fact that no association was

found with CRP and IL-6 implicates hemostatic rather than

inflammatory activity. The analyses excluding men with

evidence of early decline demonstrate that a prodromal effect

of vascular dementia on hemostatic factors is unlikely to

account for the associations found.

These data present a picture of vascular dementia being

related to clot formation as the primary mechanism. These

data are consistent with a microinfarction model of vascular

dementia. The small amount of longitudinal data on cognitive

decline supports this conclusion, with some evidence that

D-dimer and fibrinogen are associated with decline in global

function26 and fluid intelligence.27 The clinical implication of

these findings is that reducing clot formation through antico-

agulation is likely to result in greater cognitive benefit than

just the established benefit of a reduction in ischemic stroke,

as suggested in a study of patients with atrial fibrillation.28

However, many of the hemostatic factors identified are

Table 2. Varimax-Rotated Factors From 476 Men With

Complete Hemostatic Marker Data

Hemostatic Marker

Latent Variable

1

(Platelet Plug

Formation) 2 3 4

Fibrinogen 0.05 0.13 0.81 0.05

Factor VII 0.01 0.58 0.09 0.13

Factor VIII 0.88 0.05 0.09 20.01

von Willebrand factor

antigen

0.82 20.05 0.18 0.07

Factor XIIa 0.06 0.36 20.17 20.48

Activated partial

thromboplastin time

20.69 20.06 0.27 0.14

Activated protein C

ratio

20.41 20.20 20.06 0.22

Reaction clotting time 20.13 20.13 0.35 0.01

Fibrin clotting time 20.01 0.06 20.25 20.04

Fragment 112 20.01 0.04 0.11 20.77

Thrombin-antithrombin

complex

0.02 20.13 0.03 20.75

Tissue plasminogen

activator

0.12 0.75 0.09 0.04

Plasminogen activator

inhibitor

20.05 0.80 0.02 0.05

D-dimer 0.17 20.01 0.69 20.28

Gallacher et al Hemostasis and Dementia 603

Tudalen 65



acute-phase reactant proteins; similar associations were ob-

served for plasma viscosity and white blood cell count.

Therefore, these associations may also reflect an association

of systemic inflammation with vascular dementia.

In conclusion, specific hemostatic mechanisms, notably

those related to clot formation and lysis, are related to

increased risk of vascular dementia. Further studies are

required, however, to confirm these findings and to establish

whether there is any cognitive benefit from interventions

targeting the clotting process.

Acknowledgements
The Caerphilly Study was undertaken by the former MRC Epidemi-
ology Unit (South Wales) and was funded by the Medical Research
Council of the United Kingdom. The database is currently main-
tained by the Department of Social Medicine, University of Bristol,
Bristol, England. We thank Truda Bell, MSc, and her field team for
their excellent work in collecting these data and the men of the
Caerphilly cohort for their strong support.

Source of Funding
This study was supported by the Alzheimer’s Society.

Disclosures
None.

References
1. Lowe GD. Circulating inflammatory markers and risk of cardiovascular

disease. J Thromb Haemost. 2005;3:1618–1627.

2. Mari D, Parnetti L, Coppola R, Botasso B, Reboldi GP, Senin U, Manucci

PM. Hemostasis abnormalities in patients with vascular dementia and

Alzheimer’s disease. Thromb Haemost. 1996;75:216–218.

3. Sevush S, Jy W, Horstman LL, Mao WW, Kolodny L, Ahn YS. Platelet

activation in Alzheimer disease. Arch Neurol. 1998;55:530–536.

4. Bots ML, Breteler MM, van Kooten F, Haverkate F, Meijer P,

Koudstaal PJ, Grobbee DE, Kluft C. Coagulation and fibrinolysis

markers and risk of dementia: the Dutch Vascular Factors in Dementia

Study. Haemostasis. 1998;28:216 –222.

5. Bots ML, van Kooten F, Breteler MM, Slagboom PE, Hofman A,

Haverkate F, Meijer P, Koudstaal PJ, Grobbee DE, Kluft C. Response to

activated protein C in subjects with and without dementia: the Dutch

Vascular Factors in Dementia Study. Haemostasis. 1998;28:209–215.

6. Stott DJ, Spilg E, Campbell AM, Rumley A, Mansoor MA, Lowe GD.

Haemostasis in ischaemic stroke and vascular dementia. Blood Coagul

Fibrinolysis. 2001;12:651–657.

7. van Oijen M, Witteman JC, Hofman A, Koudstaal PJ, Breteler MM.

Fibrinogen is associated with an increased risk of Alzheimer disease and

vascular dementia. Stroke. 2005;36:2637–2641.

8. Yarnell JW, Sweetnam PM, Rumley A, Lowe GD. Lifestyle and

hemostatic risk factors for ischemic heart disease: the Caerphilly

Study. Arterioscler Thromb Vasc Biol. 2000;20:271–279.

9. Lowe GD, Sweetnam PM, Yarnell JW, Rumley A, Bainton D, Ben-

Shlomo Y. C-reactive protein, fibrin D-dimer, and risk of ischemic heart

disease: the Caerphilly and Speedwell studies. Arterioscler Thromb Vasc

Biol. 2004;24:1957–1962.

10. Yu S, Lowe GD, Yarnell JW, Sweetnam PM. Resonance-thrombography

indices of the haemostatic process in relation to risk of incident coronary

heart disease: 9 years follow-up in the Caerphilly Prospective Heart

Disease Study. Br J Haematol. 2004;126:385–391.

11. Yarnell JW, Sweetnam PM, Rumley A, Lowe GDO. Lifestyle factors

and coagulation activation markers: the Caerphilly Study. Blood

Coagul Fibrinolysis. 2001;12:721–728.

12. Fish M, Bayer A, Gallacher JE, Bell T, Pickering J, Pedro S, Dunstan FD,

Ben-Shlomo Y, Ebrahim S. Prevalence and pattern of cognitive

impairment in a community cohort of men in South Wales: methodology

and findings from the Caerphilly Prospective Study. Neuroepidemiology.

2008;30:25–35.

13. Roth M, Tym E, Mountjoy CQ. CAMDEX: a standardised instrument for

the diagnosis of mental disorder in the elderly with special reference to

the early detection of dementia. Br J Psychiatry. 1996;149:698–709.

14. Rosen WG, Terry RD, Fuld PA, Katzman R, Peck A. Pathological

verification of ischemic score in differentiation of dementias. Ann Neurol.

1980;7:486–488.

15. Dubois B, Slachevsky A, Litvan I, Pillon B. The FAB: a Frontal

Assessment Battery at bedside. Neurology. 2000;55:1621–1626.

16. Morris JC. The Clinical Dementia Rating (CDR): current version and

scoring rules. Neurology. 1993;43:2412–2414.

17. Jorm AF, Jacomb PA. The Informant Questionnaire on Cognitive Decline

in the Elderly (IQCODE): socio-demographic correlates, reliability,

validity and some norms. Psychol Med. 1989;19:1015–1022.

18. Roman GC, Tatemichi TK, Erkinjuntti T, Erkinjuntti T, Cummings JL,

Masdeu JC, Garcia JH, Amaducci L, Orgogozo J-M, Brun A, Hofman A,

Moody DM, O’Brien MD, Yamaguchi T, Grafman J, Drayer BP, Bennett

DA, Fisher M, Ogata J, Kokmen E, Bermejo F, Wolf PA, Gorelick PB,

Bick KL, Pajeau AK, Bell MA, DeCarli C, Culebras A, Korczyn AD,

Bogousslavsky J, Hartmann A, Scheinberg P. Vascular dementia: diag-

nostic criteria for research studies: report of the NINDS-AIREN Interna-

tional Workshop. Neurology. 1993;43:250–260.

19. McKhann G, Drachman D, Folstein M, Katzman R, Price D, Stadlan EM.

Clinical diagnosis of Alzheimer’s disease: report of the

NINCDS-ADRDA Work Group under the auspices of Department of

Health and Human Services Task Force on Alzheimer’s Disease. Neu-

rology. 1984;34:939–944.

20. Rockwood K, MacKnight C, Wentzel C, Black S, Bouchard R, Gauthier

S, Feldman H, Hogan D, Kertesz A. The diagnosis of ‘mixed‘ dementia

in the Consortium for the Investigation of Vascular Impairment of Cog-

nition (CIVIC). Ann N Y Acad Sci. 2000;903:522–528.

21. Gallacher J, Bayer A, Fish M, Pickering J, Pedro S, Dunstan FD, Ebrahim

S, Ben-Shlomo Y. Does anxiety affect risk of dementia? findings from the

Caerphilly Prospective Study. Psychosom Med. 2009;71:659–666.

22. Schmidt R, Schmidt H, Curb JD, Masaki K, White LR, Launer LJ. Early

inflammation and dementia: a 25-year follow-up of the Honolulu-Asia

Aging Study. Ann Neurol. 2002;52:168–174.

23. Sundelöf J, Kilander L, Helmersson J, Larsson A, Rönnemaa E,

Degerman-Gunnarsson M, Basun H, Lannfelt L, Basu S. Systemic

inflammation and the risk of Alzheimer’s disease and dementia: a pro-

spective population-based study. J Alzheimers Dis. 2009;18:70–87.

24. Yaffe K, Lindquist K, Penninx BW, Simonsick EM, Pahor M,

Kritchevsky S, Launer L, Kuller L, Rubin S, Harris T. Inflammatory

markers and cognition in well-functioning African-American and white

elders. Neurology. 2003;61:76–80.

25. Woodward M, Lowe GD, Rumley A, Tunstall-Pedoe H. Fibrinogen as a

risk factor for coronary heart disease and mortality in middle-aged men

and women: the Scottish Heart Health Study. Eur Heart J. 1998;19:

55–62.

26. Wilson CJ, Cohen HJ, Pieper CF. Cross-linked fibrin degradation prod-

ucts (D-dimer), plasma cytokines, and cognitive decline in community-

dwelling elderly persons. J Am Geriatr Soc. 2003;51:1374–1381.

27. Rafnsson SB, Deary IJ, Smith FB, Whiteman MC, Rumley A, Lowe GD,

Fowkes FG. Cognitive decline and markers of inflammation and hemo-

stasis: the Edinburgh Artery Study. J Am Geriatr Soc. 2007;55:700–707.

28. Barber M, Tait RC, Scott J, Rumley A, Lowe GD, Stott DJ. Dementia in

subjects with atrial fibrillation: hemostatic function and the role of anti-

coagulation. J Thromb Haemost. 2004;2:1873–1878.

604 Arterioscler Thromb Vasc Biol March 2010

Tudalen 66



T
udalen 67



Caerphilly Prospective Study (CAPS)  

Introduction 

The Caerphilly Prospective Study (CAPS) was set up by the MRC Epidemiology Unit 

(South Wales). At that time it was the fifth prospective study of cardiovascular disease in 

the United Kingdom, although only the second population based study, after the British 

Regional Heart Study. 

Its initial aims were to examine the importance of lipids,haemostatic factors, and hormones 

such as testosterone, cortisol and insulin (Lichtenstein et al 1987) in the development of 

ischaemic heart disease (IHD). Subsequently, other hypotheses were included with a 

specific interest in platelet function, and psychosocial variables. 

With the ageing of the cohort, additional outcomes have been included in particular stroke, 

hearing problems and cognitive function. 

Phase I 

The initial design attempted to contact all men aged 45 to 59 years from the town of 

Caerphilly and adjoining villages. 2512 subjects (response rate 89%) identified from the 

electoral register and general practice lists were examined between July 1979 until 

September 1983 (phase I). 

Men were initially seen at an evening clinic, where they completed a questionnaire, had 

anthropometric measures and an ECG taken. They also completed a food frequency 

questionnaire at home (Fehily et al 1994). They subsequently re-attended an early morning 

clinic to have fasting blood samples for a wide variety of tests. 

Quality control was examined by the use of both "blind" split samples as well as a second 

repeat measure on a random sub-sample to examine intra-individual variation. 

Phase II 

Phase II was undertaken between July 1984 to June 1988. An additional 447 new men were 

included who had moved into the study areas. In addition to the tests undertaken at phase I, 

new tests included audiometry. 

Phase III 

Phase III was undertaken between November 1989 to September 1993. It followed the same 

methods as before. The main new features were a standardised battery of cognitive function 

tests as well as a variety of new platelet and bleeding time tests. 

Phase IV 

Tudalen 68



Phase IV, the last time the men were examined, was undertaken between October 1993 to 

February 1997. Audiometry measured at phase II was repeated as was cognitive function 

measured at phase III. 

All men have been followed up for incident IHD through mortality flagging, self-reported 

information confirmed by medical records, positive history to the Rose angina 

questionnaire, checking hospital admissions and new evidence of ECG ischaemia. The 

WHO criteria were used to define cases of non-fatal myocardial infarction. 

At each phase, 40-50 mls of blood were taken and stored at either -40 or -80 C. This 

insightful decision has enabled subsequent researchers to rapidly test new hypotheses (e.g. 

the role of H. Pylori, cytomegalovirus and C. Pneumoniae with respect to IHD risk: see 

Strachan et al 1999, 1999, 1998). 

A large amount and variety of samples (serum, plasma, sodium citrate, etc.) remain for 

future potential analyses. Unfortunately, no whole blood was stored from phase I. 

Follow-up research 

Since that time the men have been contacted on two further occasions by post. This has 

enabled data on stroke events as well as new non-fatal myocardial infarctions to be 

collected. 

Clinical records of all strokes have been studied in detail and CT scans obtained where 

possible. In the most recent follow-up, standardised data on disability and functional 

limitation was included to derive a measure of healthy ageing (Ebrahim and Kalache 1996). 

All deaths and cancer registrations are flagged (NHSCR) and added to the database. The 

research from the MRC Caerphilly Prospective Study has already resulted in around 150 

publications and this will continue to increase as currently there are three funded research 

projects in progress. 

Source: http://www.bris.ac.uk/social-community-

medicine/projects/caerphilly/about/ 

 

Tudalen 69



Benzodiazepine use and risk of dementia: evidence
from the Caerphilly Prospective Study (CaPS)

John Gallacher,1 Peter Elwood,1 Janet Pickering,1 Antony Bayer,2 Mark Fish,3

Yoav Ben-Shlomo4

ABSTRACT

Background Benzodiazepine use is widespread in older

people, although its benefit is uncertain.

Aim To investigate the long-term effect of

benzodiazepine use upon dementia risk.

Methods A prospective cohort of men seen on five

occasions over 22 years with full medication histories,

repeat measures of cognitive function and a clinical

diagnosis of dementia.

Results Of 1134 men with complete data, 103 (9.1%)

had been taking benzodiazepines regularly at one or

more phases. These men showed a marked increased

incidence of dementia (OR¼3.50, 95% CI 1.57 to 7.79,

p¼0.002), which persisted despite adjustment for

psychological distress and other covariates. Men

exposed in earlier phases showed a greater association

than more recent exposure, counter to what one would

expect if this was due to reverse causation, though we

failed to demonstrate a doseeresponse effect with drug

duration.

Conclusion The taking of benzodiazepines is associated

with an increased risk of dementia.

INTRODUCTION
With the ageing of the population, dementia has
become a major public health problem. Many drugs,
and especially benzodiazepines, are believed to cause
cognitive impairment, yet the use of these drugs
appears to be widespread. Puustinen et al

1 found
that ‘nearly every second patient’ in an acutely
hospitalised population in Finland were taking
benzodiazepines, and Paterniti et al2 estimated that
>1 million French people aged 60 years and older are
chronic users. In the UK, 11.7 million prescriptions
were issued for benzodiazepines in 2007.3 Published
evidence on the relationship between benzodiaze-
pines and cognitive decline or dementia is inconsis-
tent. While a number of studies report an increase in
cognitive decline in benzodiazepine users,2 4 others
find no such evidence.5 6 Evidence on dementia is
more limited. Two small prospective studies found
no evidence of harm over 3 and 5 years, respec-
tively,7 8 while two caseecontrol studies report an
increased risk of dementia with benzodiazepine
use.9 10 In a review of the evidence, Verdoux et al

11

commented on the ‘discrepant findings’ on the risk
of cognitive decline and concluded that ‘the
hypothesis that long-term exposure to benzodiaze-
pines may induce permanent brain damage is
merely speculative’. A third strain of evidence comes
from pharmacological studies that have identified
acute adverse cognitive effects of benzodiazepine

use in older persons,1 12 which may persist for over
6 months after withdrawal of medication.13 Further
evidence is therefore required to establish whether
benzodiazepine use has any long-term adverse
cognitive implications. In the present study, we
report the first long-term prospective evidence on
the association between benzodiazepine use and risk
of dementia.

METHODS
Sample
The Caerphilly Prospective Study is based on
a representative population sample of men born
between 1920 and 1939, resident in a typical small
town in South Wales. The men were first seen
between 1979 and 1983 when aged 45e64 years.
The initial response rate was 89%, and the survi-
vors have been re-examined on four occasions:
1983e1988, 1989e1991, 1993e1995 and
2002e2004 (phases 2e5). Ethical approval has been
obtained for each phase of the study with the most
recent approval being obtained from the South East
Wales Research Ethics Committee.

Assessment
Complete lists of drugs taken ‘regularly’ by each
man were recorded at each examination. Two
measures of benzodiazepine use are used in what
follows: first, the reporting of the use of the drug at
any phase of the study. Second, an estimate of the
likely duration of use of the drug was made by
identifying men who reported its use at only one
examination (referred to as ‘4 years or less’ in what
follows) and those who reported its use at two or
more examinations (referred to as ‘>4 years’).
In phase 3, when the men were aged

55e74 years, several tests of cognitive function,
including the AH4, National Adult Reading Test
(NART) and four choice reaction time task, the
Mini-Mental State Examination (MMSE) and
Cambridge Cognitive Examination (CAMCOG),
were completed by each man.14 The AH4 is a test
of fluid IQ, while NART is a test of crystallised IQ
and is considered to estimate premorbid cognitive
ability. The MMSE and CAMCOG are tests of
global impairment. Each man also completed the
General Health Questionnaire (GHQ-30),15 and the
standard cut-off of a score of >4 was used as an
indication of psychological distress, which involves
both anxiety and depression. Data on trait
anxiety16 were also available from the examination
5 years prior to this (phase 2), and we have used
a log-transformed anxiety score due to its
skewed distribution. Data were also collected at

1Department of Primary Care
and Public Health, Cardiff
University, Cardiff, UK
2Department of Geriatric
Medicine, Cardiff University,
Cardiff, UK
3Department of Neurology,
Musgrove Park Hospital,
Taunton, Somerset, UK
4School of Social and
Community Medicine, University
of Bristol, UK

Correspondence to
Dr John Gallacher, Department
of Primary Care and Public
Health, Cardiff University,
Neuadd Meirionnydd, University
Hospital of Wales, Heath Park,
Cardiff CF14 4XY, UK;
gallacher@cf.ac.uk

Baseline data were obtained
from the Caerphilly Study
Archive, Department of Social
Medicine, Bristol University, UK.

Accepted 22 August 2011

Gallacher J, Elwood P, Pickering J, et al. J Epidemiol Community Health (2011). doi:10.1136/jech-2011-200314 1 of 5

Research report
JECH Online First, published on October 27, 2011 as 10.1136/jech-2011-200314

Copyright Article author (or their employer) 2011. Produced by BMJ Publishing Group Ltd under licence. 

Tudalen 70



phase 3 for a number of aspects of sleep, including daytime
sleepiness.17

In the fifth examination, the men being aged 65e84 years,
tests of cognitive function were repeated, and those men who
had a score of <83 on the CAMCOG or a decline in CAMCOG
score of $10, together with subjects who failed to complete the
CAMCOG, were selected for a clinical assessment (by MF).18

Full details of the clinical assessment of the selected men are
reported elsewhere.18 In brief, this included a modified
CAMDEX interview of subject and informant,19 the Rosen-
revised Hachinski Ischaemic score,20 neurological examination
with Frontal Assessment Battery,21 Clinical Dementia Rating22

and the Informant Questionnaire on Cognitive Decline in the
older people.23 Available medical records were reviewed for
details of relevant medical history, evidence of functional
impairment due to cognitive impairment and results of neuro-
imaging and other relevant investigations.

Subjects diagnosed with vascular dementia fulfilled the
NINCDS-AIREN criteria for possible or probable vascular
dementia.24 Subjects were classified as non-vascular dementia if
they fulfilled DSM-IV criteria for dementia25 and had no clinical
features to suggest cerebrovascular disease operationalised as
a Hachinski Ischaemic score #2 and an absence of cerebral
infarction or significant white matter change on available
neuroimaging. Most of these subjects fulfilled the NINCDS-
ADRDA criteria for probable Alzheimer ’s disease,26 but due to
small numbers, all non-vascular conditions were combined in
the analyses which follows. Subjects who had screened positive
but with insufficient impairment to warrant dementia diagnosis
on clinical assessment were classified as cognitive impairment
not dementia (CIND).

Analysis
We first present the relationships between benzodiazepine
taking at any phase of the study and the subsequent develop-
ment of dementia. We present ORs (95% CIs and p values) from
a logistic regression model adjusted for confounding at baseline
by age, social class, education, smoking, cardiovascular disease
and at phase 3 of the study for a number of cognitive tests as
factors that may determine both risk of dementia and use of
benzodiazepines. Three further models were tested with further
adjustment for psychological distress, trait anxiety and daytime
sleepiness and more proximal determinants of benzodiazepine
use. We investigated a doseeresponse relationship by grouping
men according to duration of drug use as defined above. To
investigate reverse causation, that is, that any association
between benzodiazepines and dementia reflects premorbid
changes that increase the risk of being prescribed benzodiaze-
pines secondary to the disease process, we repeated the analyses
comparing more recent exposure to benzodiazepines, within
12 years of outcome (phases 4 or 5) with earlier exposure and
between 13 and 22 years prior to outcome (phase 1, 2 or 3). If
associations are due to reverse causation, we would hypothesise
that associations would be stronger for more recent exposure
than past exposure.

RESULTS

At the time of the most recent re-examination of the Caerphilly
cohort, there were 1634 surviving eligible men of whom 1134
(70%) provided complete data and are the subject of this anal-
ysis. One hundred and three men (9.1%) reported taking
benzodiazepines regularly at some time. Of these, 41 men
reported benzodiazepine use at only one phase of the study

(shown as ‘#4 years’) and 62 men reported at more than one
phase (shown as ‘>4 years’). Mean follow-up was 22 years
(range 19e24 years).
Men who were not followed were more likely to be older, have

manual occupations, hold no educational qualifications and be
current smokers at baseline (table 1). They were less likely to be
married and slightly more anxious, although less likely to use
benzodiazepines. Not followed men had poorer cognitive func-
tion. The differences in age and marital status were small. No
difference in psychological distress was detected.
A comparison between men who had and had not taken

benzodiazepines found men who took benzodiazepines were
more likely to be psychologically distressed and have higher
levels of trait anxiety and daytime sleepiness and a slightly lower
body mass index (table 2). Men who had ever taken benzodi-
azepines had slightly worse cognitive function performance
except for the NARTscore. Although there was no association of
NART with benzodiazepine use, there was an association of
education with benzodiazepine use.
When the men were aged 65e84 years, 268 (24%) were

selected by the criteria described above for a clinical examination
and 93 were found to have dementia (table 3). In 44 of the men
with dementia, this was judged to be due to vascular disease
processes, and in 49, the dementia was judged to be due to non-
vascular disease, mostly Alzheimer ’s disease. There were asso-
ciations for both vascular dementia (OR¼3.10, 95% CI 0.98 to
10.72) and non-vascular dementia (OR¼3.34, 95% CI 1.10 to
10.18). In contrast, there was no evidence of an association with
CIND (OR¼0.63, 95% CI 0.27 to 1.48). Further adjustment for
psychological distress, trait anxiety and daytime sleepiness had
little effect on these associations, although NARTscore was not
related to dementia independently of benzodiazepine use.
No evidence for a doseeresponse relationship was found

(table 4). Men who were exposed to benzodiazepines for
#4 years showed a much higher risk of dementia (OR¼4.38,
95% CI 1.15 to 16.75) than those who took them for >4 years
(OR¼2.31, 95% CI 0.74 to 7.20). This pattern was found for
both vascular and non-vascular dementia.
Evidence for reverse causation was sought by comparing

earlier (13e22 years prior to outcome: study phases 1, 2 and 3)
and more recent benzodiazepine use (within 12 years of
outcome: study phases 4 and 5) (table 5). A recency effect was
not found. For earlier use of benzodiazepines, evidence of an
association was strongest for non-vascular dementia (OR¼4.19,

Table 1 Sample characteristics according to follow-up status

Variable
Phase 2
followed

Phase 2
not followed p Value

Age in years, mean (SD) 56.1 (4.4) 57.6 (4.5) <0.001

Log alcohol: ml/wk, mean (SD) 4.28 (1.43) 4.15 (1.52) 0.03

State anxiety, mean (SD) 35.9 (8.9) 37.4 (9.4) <0.001

Fluid intelligence, mean (SD) 26.7 (10.7) 22.5 (10.9) <0.001

Choice reaction time: msec,
mean (SD)

0.872 (0.22) 0.931 (0.24) <0.001

NART, mean (SD) 25.12 (12.0) 21.13 (11.4) <0.001

MMSE, mean (SD) 26.68 (2.5) 26.1 (2.7) <0.001

CAMCOG, mean (SD) 90.4 (7.2) 88.4 (7.3) <0.001

Benzodiazepine used, % 7.5 3.9 <0.005

Ischaemic Heart Disease free, % 75 64 <0.001

Manual social class, % 62 73 <0.001

Married, % 90 85 <0.001

No educational qualification, % 45 58 <0.001

Current smokers, % 36 52 <0.001

Psychological distress present, % 21 23 NS

2 of 5 Gallacher J, Elwood P, Pickering J, et al. J Epidemiol Community Health (2011). doi:10.1136/jech-2011-200314

Research report

Tudalen 71



95% CI 0.90 to 19.49). Raised ORs were also found for later use,
but these were smaller than for earlier use and, possibly due to
small numbers, statistical significance was not achieved.
Counter to a reverse causation hypothesis, the association
between benzodiazepine use and dementia was stronger with
a longer latency period than for those men who had commenced
therapy more recently.

DISCUSSION
In a representative population sample of men with high follow-
up rates over 22 years, the risk for dementia associated with the
use of benzodiazepines is high and if causal would be alarming for
what may be an iatrogenic cause. Although an element of reverse
causality cannot be totally excluded, this is unlikely to be
a complete explanation as there was only a modest difference in
cognitive function when assessed at phase 3 of the study; the
association was sustained once men with more recent exposure to
benzodiazepines were excluded and the ORs were more marked
for men only exposed in earlier than later phases of the study.

We observed little evidence that our association differed by
whether the dementia was thought to be of vascular as
compared with non-vascular origin. This may reflect difficulties
in clinically differentiating these subtypes, and it is well recog-
nised that mixed dementia with both Alzheimer ’s and
vascular pathology is under diagnosed. Prior reports have noted

a reduction in benzodiazepine receptors in various brain regions
at autopsy of Alzheimer ’s disease patients.27

Previous literature
It is difficult to compare the results we present with those in the
literature. First, most of the published studies relate benzodi-
azepine taking to cognitive decline and not to clinical dementia.
In fact, if we ignore the distinction between dementia and
CIND in our data, the adjusted OR with benzodiazepine taking
which we obtain is 1.60 (95% CI 0.88 to 2.92). This finding is
reasonably similar to the findings of Paterniti et al

2 in
a prospective 4-year study (OR 1.9, 95% CI 1.0 to 3.6). A number
of other retrospective caseecontrol studies reported finding no
significant effect on cognitive function.1 4 6

Only a few studies appear to have reported on dementia, rather
than cognitive decline. Lagnaoui et al9 conducted a caseecontrol
study with 150 patients with dementia and reported an OR of 2.3
(95% CI 1.2 to 4.5) for the use of benzodiazepine. Wu et al

10

compared benzodiazepine use in a caseecontrol study of 779
patients with dementia and reported an OR of 2.37 (p<0.001) in
subjects who had taken benzodiazepine for >180 days within
a 1-year period, together with a significant relationship between
dementia and the cumulative dose of the drug taken. On the
other hand, Fastbom et al

7 followed a sample of 242 subjects
with low cognitive function test results for 3 years and found a

Table 2 Use of benzodiazepines and possible confounding factors at baseline

Variable

Use of benzodiazepines

Difference
(95% CI) p Value

103 men taking
benzodiazepines at any phase

1085 men never
used benzodiazepines

Age, mean (SD) 61.7 (4.6) 61.2 (4.4) 0.5 ("0.5 to 1.4) 0.31

Alcohol >20cc/day, % 26.5 28.2 "1.7 ("10.9 to 7.5) 0.72

Log anxiety, mean (SD)y 3.73 (0.24) 3.53 (0.24) 0.20 (0.15 to 0.25) <0.001

AH4, mean (SD) 24.1 (10.2) 27.0 (10.7) "2.9 ("5.1 to "0.7) 0.02

MMSE, mean (SD) 26.08 (2.57) 26.73 (2.47) "0.65 ("1.20 to "0.11) 0.02

NART, mean (SD) 25.4 (12.3) 25.1 (11.9) 0.3 ("2.4 to 2.9) 0.84

CRT, mean (SD) 0.94 (0.21) 0.87 (0.21) 0.07 (0.03 to 0.12) 0.002

CAMCOG, mean (SD) 88.8 (8.4) 90.6 (7.1) "1.81 ("3.58 to "0.04) 0.02

IHD free, % 66.0 76.1 "10.1 ("19.6 to "1.0) 0.019

Manual social class, % 64.7 59.8 4.8 ("5.0 to 14.7) 0.35

Married, % 85.4 90.8 "5.3 ("12.4 to 1.7) 0.08

No educational qualification, % 53.8 44.2 9.6 ("0.75 to 19.95) 0.07

Current smokers, % 29.3 28.8 0.5 ("8.9 to 9.9) 0.91

Psychological distress present, %* 40.7 20.3 20.4 (9.7 to 31.1) <0.001

*‘Distress’ implies a score on the General Health Questionnaire score of >4 (see text).
yThe anxiety score is the log-transformed Spielberg questionnaire score (see text).
NART, National Adult Reading Test; MMSE, Mini-Mental State Examination; CAMCOG, Cambridge Cognitive Examination; CRT, Choice Reaction Time; IHD, Ischaemic Heart Disease.

Table 3 OR for dementia and for cognitive impairment not dementia (CIND) in men who reported taken benzodiazepine compared with those who
reported never taking the drug

ORs adjusted for

Clinical dementia CIND ‘Vascular’ dementia ‘Non-vascular’ dementia
93 men, 22 on
benzodiazepine

175 men, 13 on
benzodiazepine

44 men, 12 on
benzodiazepine

49 men, 10 on
benzodiazepine

Age, social class, smoking, alcohol intake,
Education, BMI, angina, IHD and NART, MMSE,
AH4, CRT, CAMCOG at baseline

3.10 (1.33 to 7.23),
p¼0.009

0.63 (0.27 to 1.48),
p¼0.29

3.24 (0.98 to 10.72),
p¼0.05

3.34 (1.10 to 10.18),
p¼0.03

Above, plus distress 3.10 (1.28 to 7.51),
p¼0.01

0.65 (0.27 to 1.56),
p¼0.33

3.20 (0.90 to 11.39),
p¼0.07

3.72 (1.15 to 12.04),
p¼0.03

Above, plus anxiety 2.98 (1.18 to 7.55),
p¼0.02

0.57 (0.23 to 1.43),
p¼0.23

3.39 (0.87 to 13.16),
p¼0.08

3.50 (1.02 to 11.97),
p¼0.05

Above, plus daytime sleepiness 2.94 (1.16 to 7.46),
p¼0.02

0.58 (0.23 to 1.45),
p¼0.25

3.61 (0.91 to 14.30),
p¼0.07

3.59 (1.04 to 12.36),
p¼0.04

BMI, body mass index; NART, National Adult Reading Test; MMSE, Mini-Mental State Examination; CAMCOG, Cambridge Cognitive Examination; CRT, Choice Reaction Time; IHD, Ischaemic
Heart Disease.

Gallacher J, Elwood P, Pickering J, et al. J Epidemiol Community Health (2011). doi:10.1136/jech-2011-200314 3 of 5

Research report

Tudalen 72



reduced incidence of dementia in those who used benzodiazepine
(9%) compared with the incidence in non-users of the drug (23%).

The division we make by duration of drug taking is crude, and
yet a difference in the incidence of dementia was found, and is
consistent with the previous finding of Lagnaoui et al,9 who
found a higher risk of dementia in former (OR¼2.3, 95% CI 1.2
to 4.5) than current (OR¼1.0, 95% CI 0.6 to 1.6) benzodiazepine
users. One would normally expect to see a positive
doseeresponse relationship so that greater duration of exposure
is associated with greater risk, but a contrary pattern shown by
two studies deserves closer attention.

Strengths and limitations

The main strength of our data comes from their prospective
nature and the long follow-up period of 22 years. This period is
more than double the duration of all previous studies. In addi-
tion, we were able to control for the major confounders
(depression and anxiety), which are strong determinants of
benzodiazepine prescribing behaviour as well as risk factors for
dementia. Further adjustment was also made for socioeconomic
indicators (social class, education, marital status). Drug taking
was carefully and repeatedly recorded at each 5-year phase of the
study, although the reasons for prescribing benzodiazepines was
not recorded, and dementia was diagnosed clinically at the end
of the follow-up period by two observers, who were blind with
regard to previous drug taking habits removing any possibility of
recall or observer bias. A major limitation of the study is,
however, the small number of subjects who reported the taking
of benzodiazepine and hence our relatively imprecise estimates
of risk. The division into vascular and non-vascular dementia is
known to have considerable uncertainty when validated against
postmortem verification.28 Nevertheless, we have already shown
within the same cohort of men that sleep disturbance, anxiety
and haemostatic factors are differentially predictive of the two
types of dementia.29e31

Interpretation
We think it is unlikely that reverse causation (also known as
‘protopathic bias’) explains our findings and believe that these

data are cause for concern. Although evidence of an association
with recent benzodiazepine use was found, indicating an effect
of prodromal or early dementia on benzodiazepine prescribing,
this did not account for the association of dementia with
benzodiazepine exposure 13e22 years prior to outcome.
Furthermore, apart from the modest differences in cognitive
function at phase 3 of the study, NART score, which is an
estimate of premorbid cognitive function, did not show
a difference with benzodiazepine exposure, hence making
‘confounding by indication’ unlikely. Although measures of
sleepiness and psychological state were not available at baseline,
when adjustment was made for daytime sleepiness and
psychological state assessed at phase 3 of the study, no attenu-
ation of effect was found. The absence of an association with
CIND requires consideration. It either suggests that the associ-
ation with dementia is spurious or that any harm due to
benzodiazepine use was advanced at the point of CIND
assessment. This latter explanation would be consistent with
finding of an association of dementia with earlier benzodiaze-
pine use.
It is possible that this is a chance phenomenon or due to

residual confounding, although where numbers allowed, the
associations found were reasonably strong and adjustment was
made for socioeconomic indicators. An alternative explanation is
that men who are more sensitive to drug-related side effects (and
who stop taking benzodiazepines after a short time) are either
more susceptible to dementia or their risk of dementia is
increased due to benzodiazepines. Men who do not experience
detectable side effects of the drug, however, are either less
susceptible to dementia or suffer less cerebral harm from taking
the drug. In this case, benzodiazepines may either be a phar-
macological biomarker or a causal agent for dementia or both.

Conclusions
In conclusion, we have provided long-term prospective evidence
of a possible adverse effect of benzodiazepines on the develop-
ment of dementia. This is consistent with previous findings on
dementia but is based on a far greater follow-up period reducing
the likelihood of reverse causation. This association was

Table 4 OR for cognitive impairment in 93 men by estimated duration of taking benzodiazepine

Estimated duration of
benzodiazepine taking

All dementia ‘Vascular’ dementia ‘Non-vascular’ dementia
93 men 44 men 49 men

4 years or less 10 men 4 men 6 men

OR (95% CI), p 4.38 (1.15 to 16.75), 0.03 2.96 (0.25 to 35.71), 0.39 6.61 (1.42 to 30.83), 0.02

>4 years 12 men 8 men 4 men

OR (95% CI), p 2.31 (0.74 to 7.20), 0.15 3.83 (0.86 to 17.11), 0.08 1.86 (0.31 to 10.96), 0.50

ORs have been adjusted for age, social class, education, smoking, alcohol intake, body mass index, angina, IHD, cognitive function
(NART, CAMCOG, AH4, MMSE, CRT), distress, anxiety and daytime sleepiness.
NART, National Adult Reading Test; MMSE, Mini-Mental State Examination; CAMCOG, Cambridge Cognitive Examination; CRT, Choice
Reaction Time; IHD, Ischaemic Heart Disease.

Table 5 OR for dementia according to benzodiazepine use in phase of study

Estimated duration of benzodiazepine taking All dementia ‘Vascular’ dementia ‘Non-vascular’ dementia

Men on benzodiazepines at phases 1, 2 and 3
(excluding men on benzodiazepines at phases 4 and 5)

12 men 6 men 6 men

OR (95% CI), p 2.64 (0.71 to 9.78), 0.15 1.45 (0.13 to 16.27), 0.76 4.19 (0.90 to 19.49), 0.07

Men on benzodiazepines at phases 4 and 5 10 men 6 men 4 men

OR (95% CI), p 2.44 (0.78 to 7.57), 0.12 4.25 (0.94 to 19.17), 0.06 2.03 (0.38 to 10.75), 0.40

Men on benzodiazepines at phase 5 7 men 3 men 4 men

OR (95% CI), p 2.64 (0.64 to 10.97), 0.18 3.31 (0.42 to 25.96), 0.26 3.47 (0.61 to 19.85), 0.16

ORs have been adjusted for age, social class, education, smoking, alcohol intake, body mass index, angina, IHD, cognitive function (NART, CAMCOG, AH4, MMSE, CRT), distress, anxiety and
daytime sleepiness.
NART, National Adult Reading Test; MMSE, Mini-Mental State Examination; CAMCOG, Cambridge Cognitive Examination; CRT, Choice Reaction Time; IHD, Ischaemic Heart Disease.

4 of 5 Gallacher J, Elwood P, Pickering J, et al. J Epidemiol Community Health (2011). doi:10.1136/jech-2011-200314

Research report

Tudalen 73



observed for both vascular and non-vascular dementia. Given the
widespread use of these drugs and the ageing population, it is
important that other studies with better data on the determi-
nants of benzodiazepine prescribing, side effects and reasons for
drug cessation examine this association. Furthermore, it is
important to examine if these associations are specific for
benzodiazepines or are seen with other types of hypnotic drugs
or anxiolytic therapies. In view of the evidence now available, it
is doubtful if randomised trials of benzodiazepine would be
ethically acceptable.

Acknowledgements We would like to thank Truda Bell and her field team for their
excellent work in collecting these data along with members of the cohort for their
generous co-operation.

Funding This work was funded by the Alzheimer’s Society. The Caerphilly Study was
initiated by the former MRC Epidemiology Unit (South Wales) and was funded by the
Medical Research Council of the United Kingdom.

Competing interests None.

Patient consent Obtained.

Ethics approval This study was approved by South east Wales Research Ethics
Committee.

Provenance and peer review Not commissioned; externally peer reviewed.

REFERENCES
1. Puustinen J, Nurminen J, Kukola M, et al. Associations between use of

benzodiazepines or related drugs and health, physical abilities and cognitive function:
a non-randomised clinical study in the elderly. Drugs Aging 2007;24:1045e59.

2. Paterniti S, Dufouil C, Alperovitch A. Long-term benzodiazepine use and cognitive
decline in the elderly: the Epidemiology of Vascular Aging Study. J Clin
Psychopharmacol 2002;22:285e93.

3. Hansard. 16 June 2009;494(92):28WH.

4. Dealberto MJ, Mcavay GJ, Seeman T, et al. Psychotropic drug use and cognitive
decline among older men and women. Int J Geriatr Psychiatry 1997;12:567e74.

5. Hanlon JT, Horner RD, Schmader KE, et al. Benzodiazepine use and cognitive
function among community-dwelling elderly. Clin Pharmacol Ther 1998;64:684e92.

6. Allard J, Artero S, Ritchie K. Consumption of psychotropic medication in the elderly:
a re-evaluation of its effect on cognitive performance. Int J Geriatr Psychiatry
2003;18:874e8.

7. Fastbom J, Forsell Y, Winblad B. Benzodiazepines may have protective effects
against Alzheimer disease. Alzheimer Dis Assoc Disord 1998;12:14e17.

8. Lagnaoui R, Tournier M, Moride Y, et al. The risk of cognitive impairment in older
community-dwelling women after benzodiazepine use. Age Ageing 2009;38:226e8.

9. Lagnaoui R, Begaud B, Moore N, et al. Benzodiazepine use and risk of dementia:
a nested case-control study. J Clin Epidemiol 2002;55:314e18.

10. Wu CS,Wang SC, Chang IS, et al. The association between dementia and long-term
use of benzodiazepine in the elderly: nested case-control study using claims data. Am
J Geriatr Psychiatry 2009;17:614e20.

11. Verdoux H, Lagnaoui R, Begaud B. Is benzodiazepine use a risk factor for cognitive
decline and dementia? A literature review of epidemiological studies. Psychol Med
2005;35:307e15.

12. Larson EB, Kukull WA, Buchner D, et al. Adverse drug reactions associated
with global cognitive impairment in elderly persons. Ann Intern Med
1987;107:169e73.

13. Barker MJ, Greenwood KM, Jackson M, et al. Persistence of cognitive effects after
withdrawal from long-term benzodiazepine use: a meta-analysis. Arch Clin
Neuropsychol 2004;19:437e54.

14. Gallacher JE, Elwood PC, Hopkinson C, et al. Cognitive function in the Caerphilly
study: associations with age social class, education and mood. Eur J Epidemiol
1999;15:161e9.

15. Goldberg DP, Hillier VF. A scaled version of the General Health Questionnaire.
Psychol Med 1979;9:139e45.

16. Spielberger CD, Gorsuch RL, Lushene RE. State-Trait Anxiety Inventory Manual.
Consulting Psychologists Press. Palo Alto,1970.

17. Johns MW. Daytime sleepiness, snoring, and obstructive sleep apnea. The Epworth
Sleepiness Scale. Chest 1993;103:30e6.

18. Fish M, Bayer A, Gallacher J, et al. Prevalence and pattern of cognitive impairment
in a community cohort of men in South Wales: Methodology and findings from the
Caerphilly Prospective Study. Neuroepidemiology 2008;30:25e33.

19. Roth M, Tym E, Mountjoy CQ, et al. CAMDEX. A standardised instrument for the
diagnosis of mental disorder in the elderly with special reference to the early
detection of dementia. Br J Psychiatry 1986;149:698e709.

20. Rosen WG, Terry RD, Fuld PA, et al. Pathological verification of ischemic score in
differentiation of dementias. Ann Neurol 1980;7:486e8.

21. Dubois B, Slachevsky A, Litvan I, et al. The FAB: a Frontal Assessment Battery at
bedside. Neurology 2000;55:1621e6.

22. Berg L. Clinical Dementia Rating (CDR). Psychopharmacol Bull 1988;24:637e9.
23. Jorm AF, Jacomb PA. The Informant Questionnaire on Cognitive Decline in the

Elderly (IQCODE): socio-demographic correlates, reliability, validity and some norms.
Psychol Med 1989;19:1015e22.

24. Roman GC, Tatemichi TK, Erkinjuntti T, et al. Vascular dementia: diagnostic criteria
for research studies. Report of the NINDS-AIREN International Workshop. Neurology
1993;43:250e60.

25. Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders. 4th edn. Washington DC:
American Psychiatric Association, 1994.

26. McKhann G, Drachman D, Folstein M, et al. Clinical diagnosis of Alzheimer’s
disease: report of the NINCDS-ADRDA Work Group under the auspices of
Department of Health and Human Services Task Force on Alzheimer’s Disease.
Neurology 1984;34:939e44.

27. Shimohama S, Taniguchi T, Fujiwara M, et al. Changes in benzodiazepine receptors
in Alzheimer-type dementia. Ann Neurol 1988;23:404e6.

28. Neuropathology Group. Medical Research Council Cognitive Function and
Aging Study. Pathological correlates of late-onset dementia in a multicentre,
community-based population in England and Wales. Neuropathology Group of the
Medical Research Council Cognitive Function and Ageing Study (MRC CFAS). Lancet
2001;357:169e75.

29. Elwood PC, Bayer AJ, Fish M, et al. Sleep disturbance and daytime sleepiness
predict vascular dementia. J Epidemiol Community Health 2011;65:820e4.

30. Gallacher J, Bayer A, Lowe G, et al. Is sticky blood bad for the brain? hemostatic
and inflammatory systems and dementia in the caerphilly prospective study.
Arterioscler Thromb Vasc Biol 2010;30:599e604.

31. Gallacher J, Bayer A, Fish M, et al. Does anxiety affect risk of dementia? Findings
from the Caerphilly Prospective Study. Psychosom Med 2009;71:659e66.

What is already known on this subject

Benzodiazepines are prescribed widely for older people and can

affect cognitive function. The effect of benzodiazepines on
dementia is unclear due, in part, to a dearth of long-term follow-
up data.

What this study adds

From this study, we know that benzodiazepine use is associated
with dementia in the long term (22 years) and that this is unlikely
to be due to protopathic bias or confounding by indication. The

absence of a dose (duration)eresponse relationship suggests
that any effect is limited to a susceptible subgroup rather than
widespread. Whether benzodiazepines are an iatrogenic cause of

dementia or a biomarker for dementia risk is unclear. These
findings indicate that great care should be taken upon the
beginning of benzodiazepines with middle-aged and older people.

PAGE fraction trail=5

Gallacher J, Elwood P, Pickering J, et al. J Epidemiol Community Health (2011). doi:10.1136/jech-2011-200314 5 of 5

Research report

Tudalen 74



There are 2  additional points which I would like the committee to consider;-  

Our RCN members tell us how difficult it is to get study leave even for 

mandatory training. This is reflected in the staff survey. It would be great if 

there was stroke education available in Wales but we would have to be 

mindful how difficult it would be for nurses to attend. 

I believe when talking about stroke prevention we have to consider the 

prevention messages in the other Service Development Plans and consider 

the same prevention messages which span stroke, cardiac and diabetes. 
 

!""#$#%&'()#&*%+,'$#%&)*+%,)$-.)/%0'()1%((.2.)%*)34+5#&2

Tudalen 75



During the evidence session, you noted that that Professor Marcus Longley, 

of the Welsh Institute of Health and Social Care (WIHSC), has agreed to work 

with the Stroke Association to develop an economic assessment of stroke 

services in Wales. You also noted that the National Institute for Social Care 

and Health Research Clinical Research Centre (NISCHR-CRC) has indicated 

that funds are available to undertake the assessment and you agreed to 

present this work to the Committee on completion. It would be helpful if you 

could indicate when this is likely to be. 

I’d like to emphasise that we are due to hold an initial exploratory meeting 

with Professor Longley to agree how we can take this piece of work forward.  

We have had a conversation, on an enquiry basis with NISCHR who have 

indicated that the study would fit into their funding programme.  However, 

at this stage the conversations are exploratory and no commitments are yet 

made.  Of course we will be very pleased to share the development and 

outcome of this work as and when it is ready and appropriate to do so. 

!""#$#%&'()#&*%+,'$#%&)*+%,)$-.)/$+%0.)!11%2#'$#%&

Tudalen 76



    
Bwrdd Iechyd Aneurin Bevan  
Pencadlys, Ysbyty Sant Cadog 
Ffordd Y Lodj, Caerllion 
Casnewydd, De Cymru  NP18 3XQ 
Ffôn: 01633 234234 (prif switsfwrdd) 
e-bost: abhb.enquiries@wales.nhs.uk 
  

Aneurin Bevan Health Board 
Headquarters, St Cadoc’s Hospital 
Lodge Road, Caerleon 
Newport, South Wales  NP18 3XQ 
Tel: 01633 234234 (main switchboard) 
e-mail: abhb.enquiries@wales.nhs.uk 

 www.aneurinbevanhb.wales.nhs.uk 

 Bwrdd Iechyd Aneurin Bevan yw enw gweithredol Bwrdd Iechyd Lleol Aneurin Bevan 
 Aneurin Bevan Health Board is the operational name of Aneurin Bevan Local Health Board                 
  

 
 

 
!

FAO Llinos Madeley, Committee Clerk 
Health and Social Care Committee  
National Assembly for Wales  
Cardiff Bay  
CF99 1NA  
HSCCommittee@wales.gov.uk 
 
     
 
Dear Ms Madeley, 
 
Re. Stroke risk reduction follow-up inquiry 2013, Additional 
Information 

 
During the Health and Social Care Inquiry of 23rd October Panel 3 – LHB and 
Public Health Wales evidence session - the chair asked for additional 
information on the cost of the Welsh Cardiac and Cancer Networks to be 
submitted as additional information.  Please therefore find below a brief 
overview of the Networks and their running costs.  
 
 
CARDIAC NETWORKS 

There are two Cardiac Networks in Wales: the South Wales Cardiac Network, 
covering 6 Health Boards, was formed in 2011 through the merger of two 
former Regional Networks; and the North Wales Cardiac Network which is 
coterminous with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board.  Both Networks 
engage their local Health Boards, WAST and Public Health Wales, and work in 
partnership with stakeholders including WG, WHSSC, LMCs, other clinical 
networks, CHCs, other patients groups and the voluntary sector.  
 

 Ref: JS/LM/sm Direct Line:  01633 435933     11 November 2013 
 

"##$%$&'()!$'*&+,(%$&'!*+&,!"'-.+$'!/-0('!1-()%2!/&(+#

Tudalen 77



2 
 

The South Wales Network is hosted and chaired by Aneurin Bevan University 
Health Board.  The North Wales Network is integral to Betsi Cadwaladr 
University Health Board.   
 
The Networks provide support to their Health Boards in the development of 

cardiac services to meet the Cardiac Disease National Service Framework and 

Quality Requirements, and more recently the newly published Heart Disease 

Delivery Plan.  Their core functions are to provide consistent clinical oversight 

and ownership of service planning and developments; to highlight inequity and 

gaps in service and to support improvement actions; to gather, disseminate 

and promote evidence based practice; and to support Health Boards to achieve 

the benefits of their integrated structure across the patient pathway from 

primary to tertiary care.   

 

Due to the integral nature of the North Wales Network to Betsi Cadwaladr 
University Health Board and the cross border pathways of North Wales patients, 
the Network has a lead role in managing service development and significant 
projects (e.g. 2nd Cardiac Catheter Laboratory at YGC), writing and developing 
all cardiac business plans, as well as writing the Heart Disease Delivery Plan on 
behalf of the Health Board.  Additionally, the Network is responsible for leading 
the Health Board’s Repatriation Plans working closely with Operations to 

monitor and manage repatriated activity and monitoring contracts with English 
providers. 
 

The South Wales Cardiac Network is now providing the secretariat for the all 
Wales Heart Disease Implementation Group and is working with Welsh 
Government to co-ordinate the Strategic Action Plan for that Group. 
 

Cardiac Network Funding 
 
The annual funding for the South Wales Cardiac Network, agreed in 
2011/12 by the Welsh Assembly Government, is £326,226 pa.   
 
The annual funding for the North Wales Cardiac Network, agreed in 
2011/12 by the Welsh Assembly Government, is £157,311 pa. 

   
This funding covers the employment and functioning of the Network core team 
of employed staff and clinical leads, together with non staff Network costs.  
There is no specific funding for service developments or improvement 
initiatives.  Since reorganisation in July 2011 the funding for the South Wales 
Network has been included within Aneurin Bevan Health Board budget. 
 
 

 
CANCER NETWORKS 

There are two Cancer Networks in Wales: the South Wales Cancer Network, 
covering 6 Health Boards and Velindre NHS Trust, which was formed in 2011 
through the merger of two former Regional Networks; and the North Wales 
Cancer Network which is coterminous with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health 
Board.  Both Networks work in partnership with their Health Boards and Trusts, 
Community Health Councils, Voluntary Organisations and Public Health Wales to 

Tudalen 78



3 
 

co-ordinate the planning, organisation and delivery of cancer services in their 
areas. 
 
The South Wales Network is hosted and chaired by Abertawe Bro Morgannwg 
University Health Board.  The North Wales Network is integral to Betsi 
Cadwaladr University Health Board.   
 
The Networks provide support to their Health Boards and Trusts in the 
development of cancer services to meet the quality requirements of the 
National Cancer Standards, and more recently the newly published Cancer 
Delivery Plan.  Their core functions are to provide consistent clinical oversight 
and ownership of service planning and developments; to highlight inequity and 
gaps in service and to support improvement actions; to gather, disseminate 
and promote evidence based practice; and to support Health Boards to achieve 
the benefits of their integrated structure across the patient pathway from 
primary to tertiary care.  The Cancer Networks are also currently working with 
Health Inspectorate Wales on the development of standards for peer review and 
systems for implementation which will be used by HIW to inform similar 
systems in other disease specific networks.  
 
The North Wales Network has a lead role in managing local service 
developments and the commissioning of specialist services from English 
providers. 
 

Cancer Network Funding 

 
The core annual funding for the South Wales Cancer Network, agreed in 

2011/12 by the Welsh Assembly Government, is £368,000 pa.   
 
The annual funding for the North Wales Cancer Network, agreed by the 
Welsh Assembly Government, is £125,000 pa. 

 
This funding covers the employment and functioning of the Networks core 
teams of employed staff and clinical leads, together with non staff Network 
costs.  There is no specific funding for service developments or improvement 
initiatives which is sought through business case or bidding processes to 
number sources. Since reorganisation in 2011 the funding for the South Wales 
Network has been included within the Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University 
Health Board budget. 
 
 
I trust the above meets your requirements but please do not hesitate to contact 
me should you require clarification or any further information. 
 
Yours sincerely 
  

 
 
J M Smith 
Executive Director of Therapies and Heath Science 

Aneurin Bevan Health Board Tudalen 79



4 
 

!

 

Tudalen 80



E
item

 3b

T
udalen 81



E
item

 3c

T
udalen 82



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 –

 M
B

/M
D

/5
0

8
9

/1
3

 
  

  

U
n

sch
e

d
u

le
d

 C
a

re
 a

n
d

 W
in

te
r P

la
n

s - P
u

b
lish

in
g

 P
ro

g
re

ss a
n

d
 Lin

k
s to

 P
u

b
lish

e
d

 P
la

n
s 

  H
e

a
lth

 B
o

a
rd

 A
re

a
 

P
u

b
lish

e
d

 U
S

C
 P

la
n

 
P

u
b

lish
e

d
 W

in
te

r P
la

n
 

C
w

m
 T

a
f  

P
u

b
lish

e
d

 a
t: 

h
ttp

://w
w

w
.w

a
le

s.n
h

s.u
k/site

sp
lu

s/

8
6

5
/p

a
g

e
/4

9
1

2
8

 

 

P
u

b
lish

e
d

 a
t: 

h
ttp

://w
w

w
.w

a
le

s.n
h

s.u
k/site

sp
lu

s/8
6

5
/p

a
g

e
/4

9
1

2
8

 

 

B
e

tsi C
a

d
w

a
la

d
r  

P
u

b
lish

e
d

 a
t: 

h
ttp

://w
w

w
.w

a
le

s.n
h

s.u
k/site

sp
lu

s/

d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts/8
6

1
/1

3
_

1
1

9
_

3
%

2
0

U
rg

e
n

t%
2

0
a

n
d

%
2

0
E

m
e

rg
e

n
cy%

2
0

C
a

re
%

2

0
S

tra
te

g
y

%
2

0
N

W
%

2
0

2
0

1
3

_
2

0
1

6
%

2

0
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

%
2

0
p

6
.p

d
f  

 

D
u

e
 to

 b
e

 p
u

b
lish

e
d

: 2
8

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

A
n

e
u

rin
 B

e
v

a
n

  
P

u
b

lish
e

d
 a

t: 

h
ttp

://w
w

w
.w

a
le

s.n
h

s.u
k/site

sp
lu

s/

8
6

6
/n

e
w

s/2
9

6
5

6
 

D
u

e
 to

 b
e

 p
u

b
lish

e
d

: 2
7

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

A
B

M
U

 
D

u
e

 to
 b

e
 p

u
b

lish
e

d
: 1

4
 N

o
v

e
m

b
e

r 
D

u
e

 to
 b

e
 p

u
b

lish
e

d
: 1

4
 N

o
v

e
m

b
e

r 

C
a

rd
iff &

 V
a

le
 

D
u

e
 to

 b
e

 p
u

b
lish

e
d

: b
y

 e
n

d
 o

f 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

D
u

e
 to

 b
e

 p
u

b
lish

e
d

: b
y

 e
n

d
 o

f 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

H
y

w
e

l D
d

a
 

D
u

e
 to

 b
e

 p
u

b
lish

e
d

: 2
1

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

D
u

e
 to

 b
e

 p
u

b
lish

e
d

: 2
1

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

P
o

w
y

s 
P

u
b

lish
e

d
 D

ra
ft a

t: 

h
ttp

://w
w

w
.w

a
le

s.n
h

s.u
k/site

sp
lu

s/

8
6

7
/p

a
g

e
/7

0
2

2
1

 

 F
in

a
l v

e
rsio

n
s d

u
e

 to
 b

e
 p

u
b

lish
e

d
: 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 

 

P
u

b
lish

e
d

 D
ra

ft a
t: 

h
ttp

://w
w

w
.w

a
le

s.n
h

s.u
k/site

sp
lu

s/8
6

7
/p

a
g

e
/7

0
2

2
1

 

 F
in

a
l v

e
rsio

n
s d

u
e

 to
 b

e
 p

u
b

lish
e

d
: 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 

 

W
A

S
T

 
D

u
e

 to
 b

e
 p

u
b

lish
e

d
: b

y
 e

n
d

 o
f 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

D
u

e
 to

 b
e

 p
u

b
lish

e
d

: b
y

 e
n

d
 o

f 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

  

T
udalen 83



Eitem 6

Tudalen 84

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



Eitem 7

Tudalen 94

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



Eitem 8

Tudalen 109

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon


	Agenda
	2 Sesiwn graffu gyffredinol gyda™r Prif Swyddog Deintyddol
	HSC(4)-33-13 - Paper 1

	3 Papurau i™w nodi
	Cofnodion o'r cyfarfod ar 13 Tachwedd

	3a Gwybodaeth ychwanegol a gyflwynwyd i™r ymchwiliad dilynol i leihau™r risg o strôc yn dilyn y sesiwn ar 23 Hydref
	3b Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol - darparwr brechiad sengl ar gyfer y frech goch
	3c Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol - cynlluniau gofal heb ei drefnu a chynlluniau gaeaf ffurfiol
	6 Trafod y materion allweddol sy™n codi o™r ymchwiliad dilynol i leihau™r risg o strôc
	7 Trafod y materion allweddol sy™n codi yn sgîl sesiwn graffu™r Pwyllgor ar ofal heb ei drefnu - bod yn barod ar gyfer gaeaf 2013/14
	8 Cylch Gorchwyl

